
1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Meeting Agenda  
Special Continuum of Care (CoC) Board 

Wednesday, September 11, 2024 
2:00-3:30pm 

Ventura County Office of Education 
5189 Verdugo Way Camarillo, California  93012 

Simi Room at the Administrative Services Center 
 

Zoom Meeting ID: 838 0635 1730 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83806351730 

1. Call to Order 

2. Board Comments 

3. CoC Staff Comments 

4. Public Comments: An opportunity for the public to participate in public meetings by addressing the Ventura 
County Continuum of Care Board in connection with one or more agenda or non-agenda items. Public 
comment is limited to 3 minutes per person during the opening part of the meeting and per item. The time 
allotment can be increased or decreased by the Chair depending on the number of speakers. This meeting is 
subject to the Brown Act and public comments may be submitted by using one of the following options: 

 Email in advance of the meeting: If you wish to make a written public comment, the comment must be 
submitted via email no later than 4:30pm on the day prior to the Board meeting. Send emails to: 
venturacoc@ventura.org  Please indicate the agenda item you would like to speak on if relevant and 
whether you would like your message read by staff or if you will be participating in person. 

 During the meeting: Participants attending online may use the chat function in zoom to indicate they 
would like to make a comment. Participants attending in-person can complete a public comment card 
indicating which item they would like to comment on and submit to the Board Chair. Staff will call on 
participants during the public comment section of the meeting or during specific items following staff 
presentation of the item. 

 
Continuum of Care Governance Board Business 

 

5. Approval of Board Minutes from August 26, 2024. 
 

6. Authorization for Staff to Release the 2024 Request for Proposals for New Projects for the 2024 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care (CoC) Builds Grant (Presenter Alicia 
Morales-McKinney and Tracy McAulay) 

 

7. Authorization for the Ventura County CoC’s Administrative Entity to contract with Simtech Solutions 
for the 2025 Homeless Point In Time Count (Presenter Alicia Morales-McKinney) 

 

8. Approval of the updated 2024 Ventura County CoC Written Standards (Presenter Alicia Morales-
McKinney). 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83806351730
mailto:venturacoc@ventura.org


1 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Meeting Agenda  
 Continuum of Care (CoC) Special Board Meeting 

Monday August 26, 2024 
10:00am-11:00am 

Ventura County Office of Education 
5189 Verdugo Way Camarillo, California  93012 

Simi Room at the Administrative Services Center 
 

1. Call to Order: Dawn Dyer, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 10:02am.  

Board Members: Jack Edelstein, Paul Drevenstedt, Mara Malch, Dawn Dyer, Kevin Clerici, Emilio 
Ramirez, Stefany Gonzalez, Manuel Minjares, Pauline Preciado, Michael Nigh  
 

Absent: Dr. Sevet Johnson, Ingrid Hardy, Katherine Aguilar 

2. Board Comments: Dawn Dyer shared that today is National Women’s Equality Day and the 104th anniversary 
upon which our county affirmed women’s true participation in our democracy by granting women the right 
to vote in the US Constitution. Dawn invited everyone to lift a glass this evening and toast to the tenacity of 
our suffragists who worked for 70 years for women to have the right to vote.  

3. CoC Staff Comments: Alicia Morales-McKinney shared that our HHAP 5 application has been tentatively 
approved and will bring 6.8 million dollars to our county and Continuum of Care. Once the fully executed 
agreement with the State is received, CoC staff will return to the Board to request authorization to release a 
request for proposals (RFP) for HHAP 5. Felipe Flores shared that HCD has not yet released the NOFO for the 
upcoming round of ESG funding. Similarly to the HUD CoC NOFO, ESG will become a two-year grant with an 
RFP expected to be released in November with a due date of January. Felipe shared he will return to the 
Board to request authorization to apply for ESG funds in the coming months.  

4. Public Comments: none.  

Continuum of Care Governance Board Business 

 

5. Approval of Board Minutes from July 10, 2024. 
Paul Drevenstedt moved to approve; Jack Edelstein was second; all in favor.  
 

6. Approval of the 2024 Ventura County Continuum of Care Rank and Review Policy for the Housing 
and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care FY2024 and FY2025 Funding Competition and the 
2024 VC CoC Notice of Funding Opportunity Calendar, Authorization for Staff to release the 2024 
Letter of Intent to Apply and Authorization for Staff to Release the 2024 Request for Proposals for 
New Projects and Reallocation (Presenter: Alicia Morales-McKinney) 
Alicia shared that the HUD CoC NOFO was released on July 31st with substantial changes. Alicia shared 
that we are moving from a one-year collaborative application to a two-year application. With this 
change, CoC staff will submit one collaborative application for FY 2024 and 2025. CoC staff has only 
received appropriations for FY24. Should more appropriations be awarded in 2025, CoC staff would 
request to release an RFP for those funds in FY25. In line with our VC CoC FY24 HUD CoC NOFO 
calendar, RFP and LOIs will be due to CoC staff by September 23rd. The Data Committee will be meeting 
on October 2nd for the Rank and Review and recommendations will be brought to the CoC Board on 
October 9th. The collaborative application is due to HUD by October 30th.  
 



2 
 

Alicia reviewed the NOFO, Rank and Review policy, and RFP in detail with the Board. The full 
documents can be found on the CoC Website. Alicia shared that we received CoC Bonus funding in the 
amount of $638,698 and DV Bonus funding in the amount of $798,372, which allows for the 
opportunity to release an RFP to bring new projects. If we are awarded, this Bonus funding would be 
ongoing. CoC planning dollars also increased to $266,124 for FY 24.  
 
Dawn Dyer requested clarification that renewal projects will also be ranked in the scoring process and 
could potentially fall into the tier two category and be at risk. Dawn also inquired how we are notifying 
applicants of these changes. Alicia confirmed the scoring criteria and explained that CoC staff will 
notify all renewal applicants and the RFP will be sent via the Alliance email and posted on the CoC 
Website. CoC staff, in collaboration with Urban Initiatives, will also be hosting a CoC NOFO Workshop 
to review these changes in detail. Pauline inquired regarding the possibility of renewal applicants 
falling into tier two, if CoC staff is providing technical assistance to help these programs be successful. 
Alicia explained that CoC staff has identified some projects that may fall into the tier two threshold and 
CoC staff is looking into possibilities for re-allocation as a pre-emptive way to keep funding in our 
Continuum of Care. Mara Malch inquired if CoC staff are looking at other agencies that could apply for 
potentially reallocated RRH funding so that we don’t lose funding in our Continuum. Alicia explained 
that the County of Ventura is considered the applicant and providers are considered subrecipients. 
CoC staff intends to apply for the funding and should not be at risk if a subrecipient is not yet 
identified. CoC staff can release an additional RFP if no proposals are received. Lastly, Dawn inquired 
how HUDs cost of living adjustments are being made and if their inflation adjustment factor is 
accurate. Alicia shared that our consultant has reached out to HUD on that piece and CoC staff can 
report back to the Board.  

 
Manuel Minjares moved to approve; Pauline Preciado was second; all in favor 

 

7. Approval of the recommendation to Contract with The Partnership for Safe Families as a Qualified 
Organization to Engage People with Lived Experience of Homelessness (Presenter: Alicia Morales-
McKinney) 
Alicia shared that CoC staff released an RFP for $95,000 of CoC planning grant dollars in June to solicit 
proposals from qualified organizations to engage people with lived experience. CoC staff received one 
sole proposal from The Partnership for Safe Families in response to the RFP. The VC CoC Data 
committee reviewed the proposal and recommended the funding to The Partnership. The activities for 
the PLE contract would be to engage persons with lived experience across various subpopulations 
(singles, youth, Veterans, older adults, etc.). Ensure participation of PLE voices across the homeless 
response system, provide training to VC CoC service providers on how to better engage with PLE, 
debrief after community meetings for feedback, attend VC CoC committee meetings to provide 
feedback, and offer peer support. The PLE workgroup will also coordinate with the Ventura County 
Diversity Equity and Inclusion Division to support the development of a Youth Action Board (YAB). 
Lastly, the contract will require quarterly reporting to the CoC Board on goals and milestones.   

 
The Partnership has been operational for over 42 years as a non-profit. Dr Kathleen Antwerp, the 
director of The Partnership, shared that the Partnership for Safe Families and Communities is the 
designated Childhood Abuse Prevention Council of Ventura County and runs the Ventura County 
Network of Care which is a state approved model in which they connect individuals going through 
adversity to community resources. Kathleen shared the Partnership also runs the Ventura County 
Parent Voice group, also known as CORE. The group currently has 12- 15 CORE individuals who provide 
feedback on systems such as probation, child warfare, education, homelessness, etc. Kathleen shared 
that 6 individuals in that group currently have lived experiences with homelessness and encouraged 
the Partnership to apply for this grant to expand CORE meetings to be inclusive of the homeless 
services system.  



3 
 

 
The Board expressed excitement and gratitude for The Partnership for lifting the voices of those with 
lived experience and encouraged participation across the system. Board members inquired if training 
to providers will be mandatory. Alicia shared that trainings will be strongly encouraged and that 
typically providers participate in these trainings because they want to learn new modalities and 
improve services. Mara suggested incorporating mandatory training by PLE in the RFP/Rank and 
Review policy for future cycles of funding. Mara Malch also requested expenditures on the various 
activities be included in the quarterly reporting so that we develop a level of understanding of needed 
resource allocations in the future. Pauline inquired if the goal is to expand the CORE group to include 
more individuals with lived experience. Kathleen explained they will be hosting focus groups twice a 
month and will be working on expanding to further subpopulations such as older populations, families, 
youth, etc. Kathleen further shared that all participants will be compensated for their involvement and 
all activities will be offered county-wide and will offer Spanish and Mixteco interpretation.  
 
Jack Edelstein moved to approve; Manuel Minjares was second; all in favor.  

 
Additional items not on the agenda: none.  
 
Next meeting set for September 11th, 2024 
Meeting adjourned at 11:04am  

 
 

 



 

 

 

September 11, 2024 

CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Authorization for Staff to release a Request for Proposals for New Projects for the 2024 

U.S. Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care (CoC) Builds Grant and submit the 

consolidated application on or before November 21, 2024.  

 
BACKGROUND:  The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) released a Notice of 

Funding Opportunity (NOFO) for Continuums of Care (CoC) to targets efforts within CoC geographic 

areas to address and reduce the number of persons experiencing homelessness by adding new units of 

permanent supportive housing (PSH) through new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation through 

one-time CoC Builds awards under the CoC Program. The estimated federal funding amount is 

$175,000,000 with a minimum CoC award amount of $1,000,000 and maximum of $5,000,000. HUD 

expects to make approximately 25 awards from the funds available under this competitive NOFO. 

Through the CoC Builds NOFO, HUD is encouraging CoCs to leverage funds provided for construction, 

acquisition, or rehabilitation of new PSH units with other funding sources to maximize the amount of 

housing that can be directed to meeting the needs of individuals and families experiencing 

homelessness. PSH is permanent housing in which supportive services are provided to assist individuals 

with a disability, as well as families where at least one household member has a disability, who are 

experiencing homelessness to live independently. Additionally, no more than 20 percent of each award 

may be used for other eligible CoC Program activities associated with the PSH project (e.g., supportive 

services, operating costs), and no more than 10 percent of an award may be used for project 

administration. Applications are due to HUD no later than November 21, 2024 

DISCUSSION: The eligible program components under this HUD NOFO include acquisition, rehabilitation, 

new construction, project based rental assistance limited to 24 months, supportive services, operating 

costs and project administrative costs. Grant terms may be two, three or five years. The project selected 

for conditional award must be able to provide proof of site control prior to execution of the grant 

agreement and a completed environmental before awarded funds may be drawn for project activities. 

The grant agreement with HUD must be executed no later than September 1, 2025, and project must 

meet timeliness standards for new construction or rehabilitation activities.  

HUD has the following six goals for this competition:  

1. Increase housing opportunities for people with high risk of levels of need.  

2. Increase the supply of permanent supportive housing units within CoC geographic areas to address 

individuals and families experiencing homelessness where one member of the household has a 

disability.  



3. Encourage coordination between housing providers, health care organizations, and social service 

providers.  

4. Ensure access to resources for projects to expand opportunities for new PSH units in States with 

populations less than 2.5 million.  

5. Ensure new PSH units are conveniently located near local services; e.g., walking distance, near reliable 

transportation services, provide access to telehealth.  

6. Affirmatively further fair housing by addressing barriers which perpetuate segregation, hinder access 

to areas of opportunity for protected class groups and concentrate affordable housing in under-

resourced areas. 

VC CoC staff propose to: 1) release a Requests for Proposals (Exhibit A) and CoC Builds Application 

(Exhibit B) by September 13, 2024, with a submission deadline of October 11, 2024 by 2pm, 2) request 

the VC CoC Data Committee to review and rank proposed projects by November 6, 2024, and 3) return 

to the VC CoC Board with the funding recommendations for review and approval on November 13 2024.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:   

1. Authorize VC CoC staff to release the Request for Proposals (Exhibit A) and CoC Builds 

Application (Exhibit B) for new units of permanent supportive housing (PSH); and  

2. Authorize VC CoC staff to submit the consolidated application on or before November 21, 2024. 



 
 

 
Request for Proposals 

Continuum of Care (CoC) Builds 2024 NOFO  
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) announced the release of the 
Continuum of Care (CoC) Builds Notice of Funding Availability on July 22, 2024. A total of 
$175,000,000 is available under this NOFO. Of this amount, $65,000,000 is available only for 
CoCs that are located in states with populations of fewer than 2.5 million people. 
 
HUD recently released the funding opportunity’s CoC Consolidated Application in Grants.gov 
and related Detailed Instructions. 
 
HUD will award new projects under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Builds (CoC Builds) NOFO that 
will add new units permanent supportive housing (PSH) for individuals and families 
experiencing homelessness through new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation. The CoC 
Builds NOFO outlines additional CoC Program eligible activities and costs that may be included 
in your application. Additionally, CoCs are encouraged to leverage funds provided for 
construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation of new PSH units with other funding sources to 
maximize the amount of housing that can be directed to meeting the needs of individuals and 
families experiencing homelessness.  
 
The Collaborative Applicant (Ventura County CoC) for this Request for Proposals must submit 
the CoC Consolidated Application in Grants.gov on behalf of the CoC. Required attachments 
include: 
 

Forms/Assurances/Certifi
cations  

Submission Requirement  Notes/Description  

Application for Federal 
Assistance (SF-424)  

This form is required.  Review section IV.B.2.a. 
of this NOFO for 
detailed application 
requirements.  

Applicant and Recipient 
Assurances and 
Certifications (HUD 424-B)  

This form is required.  Review section IV.B.2.a. 
of this NOFO for 
detailed application 
requirements.  

Applicant/Recipient 
Disclosure/Update Report 
(HUD 2880)  

This form is required.  Review section IV.B.2.a. 
of this NOFO for 
detailed application 
requirements.  

Disclosure of Lobbying 
Activities (SF-LLL)  

This form is conditionally 
required.  

Review section IV.B.2.a. 
of this NOFO for 
detailed application 
requirements.  

https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc/specialCoCNOFO
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/CoC/Unsheltered-and-Rural-Homelessness-NOFO-FR-6500.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/cfo/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps/CoCBuilds


Certification Regarding 
Lobbying Activities  

This form is required.  

Grant Application 
Detailed Budget 
Worksheet (HUD-424-
CBW)  

This form is contained within the Instruction Package.  

Assurances for Non-
Construction Programs 
(SF-424B)  

This form is required.  This form is contained 
within the Application 
Package.  

Assurances for 
Construction Programs 
(SF-424D)  

This form is required.  This form is contained 
within the Application 
Package.  

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/Project_Applicant_CoC_Responsiblities.pdf 
 

• CoC Review, Score, and Ranking Procedures. 

• Longitudinal Systems Analysis (LSA) Report. 

• The CoC’s Plan for serving Individuals and families experiencing homelessness with 
severe service needs described in Section VII.B.4 of this HUD NOFO. 

• Letters of commitment, contracts, or other formal written agreements demonstrating 
the development of new units and new housing opportunities for people experiencing 
homelessness. 

• Written commitments from hospitals, healthcare clinics, Medicaid State agencies, public 
health departments, mental health clinics, Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC), or 
drug treatment facilities. 

• Letter signed by workgroup comprised of persons with lived experience of 
homelessness. 

• Letter of commitment from PHA(s) serving the CoC’s geographic area (1) pair vouchers 
with CoC-funded supportive services; and (2) to work with the CoC and other 
stakeholders to develop a prioritization plan for a potential allocation of Stability 
Vouchers or a preference for general admission to Housing Choice Voucher Program 
through the coordinated entry process for individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness, at risk of homelessness, or fleeing or attempting to flee domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

 
HUD also recently released the Project Application in grants.gov (CoC Builds NOFO) and related 
Detailed Instructions, which provides information for each question within the project 
application for CoC Builds project applicants. Additionally, the CoC will require submission of 
the attached underwriting workbook demonstrating that each proposed project meets the 
underwriting benchmarks.  
 
Funding: 

• $175,000,000 is available under this NOFO  

• Ventura County CoC is potentially eligible to apply on a competitive basis for up to 
$5,000,000. Amounts subject to change based on HUD approval. If awarded funding, 
funds will be provided as a grant to the Applicant. As set forth in {include regulatory 

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/Project_Applicant_CoC_Responsiblities.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/CoC/Unsheltered-and-Rural-Homelessness-NOFO-FR-6500.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/cfo/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps/CoCBuilds


citation prohibiting loan of funds, if available}, funds may not be provided as a loan from 
the Applicant to a limited partnership. 

• 24 CFR 578.73 which requires a 25% match through leveraged funding or in-kind 
support. Eligible sources of match include any other federal source (excluding CoC 
program funds), as well as state, local and private sources, provided that funds from the 
source are not statutorily prohibited from being used as match. 

 
Program Description: The purpose is to increase housing opportunities for people with high risk 
of levels of need, increase the supply of permanent supportive housing units within CoC 
geographic areas to address individuals and families experiencing homelessness where one 
member of the household has a disability; Encourage coordination between housing providers, 
health care organizations, and social service providers; Ensure access to resources for projects 
to expand opportunities for new PSH units in States with populations less than 2.5 million; 
Ensure new PSH units are conveniently located near local services (e.g., walking distance, near 
reliable transportation services, provide access to telehealth); Affirmatively further fair housing 
by addressing barriers which perpetuate segregation, hinder access to areas of opportunity for 
protected class groups and concentrate affordable housing in under-resourced areas. HUD is 
encouraging CoCs to leverage funds provided for construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation of 
new PSH units with other funding sources to maximize the amount of housing that can directed 
to meeting the needs of individuals and families experiencing homelessness. PSH is permanent 
housing in which supportive services are provided to assist individuals with a disability and 
families where at least one household member has a disability and is experiencing 
homelessness to live independently. 
 
Eligible Costs. You may include a budget request with the following eligible costs in the 
application. However, HUD will award no more than 20 percent of the total funds for use in 
project-based rental assistance, operating costs, or supportive services. Additionally, HUD will 
award no more than 10 percent of the total budget (capital costs plus additional eligible costs) 
for project administrative costs.  
 

a. Acquisition (24 CFR 578.43);  
b. Rehabilitation (24 CFR 578.45);  
c. New Construction (24 CFR 578.47);  
d. Project-based rental assistance (24 CFR 578.51(e));  
e. Supportive Services (24 CFR 578.53);  
f. Operating Costs (24 CFR 578.55); and  
g. Project administrative costs (24 CFR 578.59).  
If a project application’s budget exceeds the cost limits noted above, HUD will reduce 
the costs to the eligible amount which will result in a reduction in the total amount of 
funds requested. See 24 CFR 578.87(c) for restrictions on combining funds. 

 
CoC Review of Project Applications: HUD expects each CoC to implement a thorough review 
and oversight process at the local level for the project applications submitted to HUD in the 
Special NOFO Competition.  Project applications must be submitted to the CoC to be included 
on the CoC Priority Listing. CoCs must review and either accept and rank or reject project 
applications submitted to them.  
 



Each project application must include the following:  
 

1. Universal Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM.gov) Requirements  
2. Outstanding Delinquent Federal Debts  
3. Debarments or Suspensions, or both  
4. Mandatory Disclosure Requirement  
5. Pre-selection Review of Performance  
6. Sufficiency of Financial Management System  
7. False Statements  
8. Prohibition Against Lobbying Activities  
9. This Program requires cost sharing or matching as described below.  
24 CFR 578.73 provides the information regarding match requirements. Project 
applicants that intend to use program income as a match must provide an estimate of 
how much program income will be used for the match. 

 
Project Application Funding/Budget: 

1. The initial grant term for projects will be 5 years. This includes projects awarded for 
acquisition or new construction for Permanent Supportive Housing. 

2. CoC Program funds cannot be awarded if used to replace state or local government 
funds. 

3. No funds may be used to shelter program participants in existing shelter beds. 
4. Normal indirect cost rules under 2 CFR part 200, subpart E apply. 
5. 2 CFR 578.73 requires a 25% match through leveraged funding or in-kind 

support.  Match must be no less than 25 percent of the total request, including 
Administration costs, but excluding Leasing costs (i.e., Leased Units and Leased 
Structures). 

 
Other Program Specific Requirements: 
1. Project Applications:  

a. must include capital costs for new construction, acquisition, or rehabilitation of new 
PSH units;  
b. may include costs for other eligible CoC Program Costs associated with the PSH 
project as outlined in Section IV.G.3 of this NOFO that are no more than 20 percent of 
the total budget requested (HUD will award no more than 20 percent of final award for 
non-capital costs eligible CoC activities associated with the PSH project); and  
c. may include administrative costs of no more than 10 percent of the total amount 
requested for capital costs and, if included, eligible CoC Program costs outlined in 
Section IV.G.3 of this NOFO. HUD will award no more than 10 percent of final award for 
administrative costs associated with the PSH project).  

2. Grant terms may be two, three, four, or five years. Projects selected for conditional award 
must be able to:  

a. provide proof of site control (24 CFR 578.25) prior to execution of the grant 
agreement; and  
b. execute the grant agreement with HUD no later than September 1, 2025.  
 
Additionally, projects selected for conditional award must:  



c. have a completed environmental review before awarded funds can be drawn for 
project activities. Applicants selected for conditional award are responsible for 
preparing and submitting to the CoC all required documentation related to a National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for review and approval; and  
d. meets the timeliness standards outlined in 24 CFR 578.85 for new construction or 
rehabilitation activities (9 months to start construction after signing of grant agreement 
and 24 months to complete construction). 
 

A PDF of the RFP application and Narrative Responses and an Excel underwriting workbook 
must be emailed to the CoC Collaborative Applicant (Ventura County CoC) alicia.morales-
mckinney@ventura.org no later than October 11, 2024, 2pm.  
 
Training and Resources. Applicants that need assistance understanding the program 
requirements under the CoC Program and this NOFO may access the Rule, training materials, 
and program resources located on the of HUD’s website which are posted here: CoC Program 
page. 
 

Timeline: 
 

VC CoC Board Authorized Request for 
Proposals (RFP) 

September 11, 2024 

Local Competition Announcement  
Request for Proposals Posted 

September 13, 2024 

Proposals due to the Collaborative 
Applicant (VC CoC) to alicia.morales-

mckinney@ventura.org 

October 11, 2024 

VC CoC Data Committee review & ranking 
 

November 6, 2024 

VC CoC Board Budget review and 
approval 

November 13, 2024 

VC CoC Staff to notify local applicants of 
any projects rejected or reduced  

November 14, 2024 

Collaborative Application submitted to 
HUD 

 

On or before 
November 21, 2024 

 
 
For Ventura County CoC specific questions, please reach out to Alicia Morales-McKinney via 
email at alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org or phone 805-654-5108.  

mailto:alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org
mailto:alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/comm_planning/coc
mailto:alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org
mailto:alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org
mailto:alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org


 

 

HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 

SEPTEMBER 13, 2024 

 
Completed Applications Must Be Submitted to: 

Alicia Morales-McKinney, MANAGEMENT ANALYST 
alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org 

 
COUNTY OF VENTURA 

CEO - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION  
 800 SOUTH VICTORIA AVENUE, VENTURA, CA  93009 

 
NO LATER THAN  

OCTOBER 11, 2024, 2 PM 
 

 

 

  

alicia.morales-mckinney@ventura.org


 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 1 

1. APPLICANT CAPACITY & FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

Legal Name of Organization: _______________________________________________________ 

 

Is the organization a 501(c)?     ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

Mailing Address: _________________________________________________________ 

 

City:  _____________________________________ Zip: ______________________ 

 

Executive Director Name & Title: ___________________________________________________ 

 

Organization Contact Name & Title: _________________________________________________ 

 

 Work Phone: __________________________ Fax: _____________________________ 

  

 E-mail Address: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Organization Website Address: _____________________________________________________ 

 

Organization’s DUNS #: ____________________      Tax Payer ID #: ________________________ 

 

Fiscal Agent Contact Name & Title: __________________________________________________ 

 

 Work Phone: __________________________ Fax: _____________________________ 

  

 E-mail Address: ___________________________________________________________ 

 

Years in operation: ____________ 

 

Date of most recent 990 filed: __________________ 

 

Does your organization have any outstanding financial audit findings?  ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

If yes, please explain: 

Is your organization required to file a Federal Single Audit (2 CFR 200.501)? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 If yes, please submit a copy of your most recently completed single audit with this 

application.  Single Audit attached?  ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

 

 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 2 

Eligible Costs. You may include a budget request with the following eligible costs in the application. 

However, HUD will award no more than 20 percent of the total funds for use in project-based rental 

assistance, operating costs, or supportive services. Additionally, HUD will award no more than 10 

percent of the total budget (capital costs plus additional eligible costs) for project administrative costs. 

 

Please check off the application type you are applying for (select all that apply): 

☐Acquisition (24 CFR 578.43);  

☐ Rehabilitation (24 CFR 578.45);  

☐ New Construction (24 CFR 578.47);  

☐Project-based rental assistance (24 CFR 578.51(e));  

☐Supportive Services (24 CFR 578.53);  

☐Operating Costs (24 CFR 578.55); and  

☐Project administrative costs (24 CFR 578.59).  
 

Does your organization comply with 2 CFR 200 Part 2400 Uniform Requirements? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 How many members are part of your Board of Directors? ____________________ 

 How often does your Board meet? ______________________________________ 

 Describe the financial expertise of your current board members:  

Has your organization received and managed State/Federal funds? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

 

Please complete the chart below with the most recent State/Federal grant awards received within the 

last five years for your organization. If your organization has experience with federal grants, include this 

experience below. 

Grant Year(s) 
Start-End Date 

Grant Number Activity Type: HomeKey, CDBG, CoC, HOME, 
etc.  

Grant Amount 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 3 

 
 

  $ 

 
 

  $ 

2.PROJECT INFORMATION: 

Title of proposed project: _________________________________________________________ 

Project Address: ________________________________________________________ 

 

City:  _____________________________________ Zip: ______________________ 

 

Project anticipated start date for serving clients: ______________________ 

 

             

Number of beneficiaries to be served by the project: ___________________________________ 

 

a. Project service area (check all that apply): 

☐ Camarillo ☐ Fillmore  ☐ Moorpark 

☐ Ojai   ☐ Oxnard  ☐ Port Hueneme 

☐ Santa Paula ☐ Simi Valley  ☐ Thousand Oaks 

☐ Ventura  ☐ County-wide  ☐ Unincorporated County  

 

b. Amount requested for this project: $_______________________________________ 

c. Amount of leveraged funds available for this project: $________________________ 

d. Amount and Source of Match funds (25% minimum):  

$ ________________________________________ Source: ___________ 

e. Total project cost (all sources): $__________________________________________ 

 

Note: The amounts for b, c and d should equal the amounts in Project Budget. 

Comprehensive budget should be submitted in provided budget template. Permanent 

Supportive Housing Applications should submit the PSH program budget.  

 

Identify the population(s) that the project will serve (check all that apply): 

  ☐ Single Adults     ☐ Older Adults 55+ 

  ☐ Families with children    ☐ Persons with disabilities 

  ☐ Transitional Age Youth (TAY) 18 to 24 years old ☐ Veterans  

  ☐ Chronic Homeless 

☐ Persons fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 4 

4. HUD Rating Criteria: 

a. Development Experience and Leveraging-24 points 

b. Managing Homeless Projects- 12 points 

c. Implementation Schedule- 12 points 

d. Property Maintenance- 5 points 

e. Unmet Housing Need- 7 points 

f. Managing of Rental Housing- 10 points 

g. Coordinated Entry- 3 points 

h. Coordination with Housing Providers, Healthcare Organizations, and Social Service 
Providers- 10 points 

i. Experience Promoting Racial Equity- 8 points 
j. Community Integration for Persons with Disabilities- 7 points 
k. Section 3 Requirements- 2 points  

 
CoC Builds Total Application Maximum Points: 100 

 

5. You are expected to align your application to the applicable strategic goals and objectives below. Use 

the information in this section to describe in your application the specific goals, objectives, and 

measures that your project is expected to help accomplish. If your project is selected for funding, you 

are also expected to establish a plan to track progress related to those goals, objectives, and measures. 

HUD will monitor compliance with the goals, objectives, and measures in your project. 

 

Applicable Goals and Objectives from HUD’s Strategic Plan 
HUD’s Strategic Plan sets the direction and focus of our programs and staff to create strong, sustainable, 
inclusive communities and quality, affordable homes for all. This NOFO supports HUD’s Strategic Plan for 
Fiscal Years (FY) 2022-2026 to accomplish HUD’s mission and vision. Each of the five goals in the 
Strategic Plan include what HUD hopes to accomplish, the strategies to accomplish those objectives, and 
the indicators of success. 
Strategic Goal 1: Support Underserved Communities Fortify support for underserved communities and 
support equitable community development for all people.  
1B: Reduce Homelessness Strengthen Federal, State, Tribal, and community implementation of the 
Housing First approach to reducing the prevalence of homelessness, with the ultimate goal of ending 
homelessness.  
Strategic Goal 2: Ensure Access to and Increase the Production of Affordable Housing Ensure housing 
demand is matched by adequate production of new homes and equitable access to housing 
opportunities for all people.  
2A: Increase the Supply of Housing Enhance HUD's programs that increase the production and supply of 
housing across the country.  
Strategic Goal 4: Advance Sustainable Communities Advance sustainable communities by strengthening 
climate resilience and energy efficiency, promoting environmental justice, and recognizing housing's role 
as essential to health.  
4B: Strengthen Environmental Justice Reduce exposure to health risks, environmental hazards, and 
substandard housing, especially for low-income households and communities of color.  
4C: Integrate Health and Housing Advance policies that recognize housing's role as essential to health 
 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 5 

You are expected to align your application to the applicable strategic goals and objectives below. Use 
the information in this section to describe in your application the specific goals, objectives, and 
measures that your project is expected to help accomplish. If your project is selected for funding, you 
are also expected to establish a plan to track progress related to those goals, objectives, and measures. 
HUD will monitor compliance with the goals, objectives, and measures in your project. 
 

The following are policy priorities specific to this NOFO. Which HUD/COC priorities best align with the 

project? 

o  Increasing Affordable Housing Supply. The lack of affordable housing is the main driver of 
homelessness. This NOFO provides funding for new construction, rehabilitation, or acquisition 
that can increase permanent supportive housing stock in a CoC’s geographic area. CoCs, 
applicants, and developers should partner to determine an economical way to increase 
permanent supportive housing supply for individuals and families experiencing homelessness 
that considers adaptive reuse and conversion of hotel properties. Additionally, CoCs and 
applicants should engage local leaders to mitigate zoning and land use issues that may impact 
adding permanent supportive housing units to the CoC’s housing stock.  

o Ensuring Access to Supportive Services and Public Services. Providing voluntary supportive 
services to individuals and families experiencing homelessness, particularly for these households 
that also include a family member who has a disability, can ensure the households have the 
tools and resources needed to successfully maintain permanent housing. Applicants must 
ensure households that will reside in the units developed under this NOFO will have access to 
CoC Program supportive services as well as other public services such as easy access to local 
parks and recreation, post office, etc. Ensure new PSH units are conveniently located near local 
services (e.g., walking distance, near reliable transportation services, provide access to 
telehealth). Additionally, applicants proposing projects in rural areas are encouraged to consider 
the most cost-effective method for supportive services delivery (e.g., use of internet for check-
ins with program participants) and access to public services.  

o Partnering with Housing, Health, and Service Agencies. Using cost performance and outcome 
data, applicants should improve how all available resources are utilized to end homelessness. 
This is especially important as the CARES Act and American Rescue Plan have provided 
significant new resources to help end homelessness. HUD encourages CoCs to maximize the use 
of mainstream and other community-based resources when serving persons experiencing 
homelessness and should:  

o Work closely with public and private healthcare organizations and assist program participants 
who are interested in assistance with receiving primary care, housing related services, and with 
obtaining medical insurance to address healthcare needs. This includes developing close 
partnerships with public health agencies to analyze data and design approaches that reduce 
homelessness, improve the health of people experiencing homelessness, and prevent and 
address disease outbreaks, including HIV/AIDS.  

o Partner closely with PHAs and state and local housing organizations to utilize coordinated entry, 
develop housing units, and provide housing subsidies to people experiencing homelessness. 
These partnerships can also help CoC Program participants exit permanent supportive housing 
through Housing Choice Vouchers and other available housing options. CoCs and PHAs should 
especially work together to implement targeted programs such as Emergency Housing 
Vouchers, HUD-VASH, Mainstream Vouchers, Family Unification Program (FUP) Vouchers, and 
other housing voucher programs targeted to people experiencing homelessness. CoCs should 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 6 

coordinate with their state and local housing agencies on the utilization of new program 
resources provided through the HOME Investment Partnerships - American Rescue Plan 
Program (HOME-ARP) that was created through the American Rescue Plan.  

o Partner with local workforce development centers to improve employment opportunities.  
o Work with Tribes and Tribal organizations to ensure that Tribal members can access CoC funded 

assistance when a CoC's geographic area borders a Tribal area.  
 

6. Format and Form: 
Narratives and other attachments to your application must follow the following format guidelines. Do 
not submit password protected or encrypted files.  

• Respond to the Rating Factors (Section V.A.1 of the NOFO) via Word Document using each rating 

factor as the heading for the responses, 

• 25 Pages maximum length of narratives, 

• Double spaced 12-point (minimum),  

• Times Roman font on letter sized paper (8 1/2 x 11 inches) with at least 1-inch margins on all 
sides.  

• Each rating factor includes the maximum number of pages per rating factor. CoC/HUD will not 
review additional pages submitted over the limit.  

• Budget worksheets do not count toward the maximum number of pages. 

Narrative Responses MUST be attached to the application and MUST incorporate strategic goals and 

objectives in your narrative responses. This NOFO supports HUD’s Strategic Plan for Fiscal Years (FY) 

2022-2026 to accomplish HUD’s mission and vision. Each of the five goals in the Strategic Plan include 

what HUD hopes to accomplish, the strategies to accomplish those objectives, and the indicators of 

success. 

Please reference each section for pagination limitations: 
A. Development Experience and Leveraging (Maximum 5 pages for this narrative) 
Demonstrate that the applicant, developer, and relevant subrecipients have experience with at least 
four other projects that have a similar scope and scale as the proposed project. (up to 8 points)  
 
Demonstrate that the applicant, developer, and relevant subrecipients have experience leveraging 
resources substantially similar to the funds being proposed in the current project. HUD will evaluate 
up to 3 examples of prior leveraging experience for up to the five largest (by dollar value being 
contributed to the project) resources being leveraged for the proposed project. Examples of 
resources that will be considered include Low Income Housing Tax Credits, HOME, CDBG, Section 
108, Section 202, and Section 811. Include a description of your experience with federal cross 
cutting overlays (up to 8 points)  
 
Provide information regarding the availability of low-income housing tax credit commitments, 
project-based rental assistance, and other resources dedicated to the proposed project. Describe 
the dollar value of each of these commitments and describe the overall cost of the project, including 
the estimated cost per unit. In cases where the project includes more than one type of housing (e.g. 
townhouses and apartments), or has multiple sites, provide cost per unit information on each site or 
housing type to the extent possible. (up to 8 points)  
In addition to the bulleted items above, provide all of the following documentation, or an 
explanation of when the documentation is expected to be available:  

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CFO/documents/Foa_Content_of_FR-6800-N-25A.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/HUD-FY22-26-Strategic-Plan-Focus-Areas
https://www.hud.gov/HUD-FY22-26-Strategic-Plan-Focus-Areas


 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 7 

o the amount and type of funds being used to construct the property (included in the 
attached underwriting workbook);  

o evidence of site control;  
o evidence of completed and approved environmental review;  
o identify the owner of the property and their experience with constructing or rehabilitation; 

and  
o the number of units that will be finished using CoCBuilds funds.  

 
B. Managing Homeless Projects (Maximum 4 pages)  

Demonstrate that your organization and that your proposed subrecipients have experience 
administering programs for individuals and families experiencing homelessness where one 
member of the household has a disability.  
Your response must include:  
o Experience managing at least 4 properties that at a minimum includes how you determine 

the amount of rent to charge based on unit size, addressing program participant complaints, 
working with other service organizations that may place program participants in the units, 
and maintaining the properties. (Up to 8 points)  

o Supportive services, provide the organization(s) name, address, email address, and phone 
number. If your organization will provide direct supportive services with CoC Builds funds, 
you must complete the Supportive Services Budget. (Up to 3 points) 

o Providing transportation for program participants. Describe the methods of transportation 
that will be available for program participants to travel to doctor appointments, recreation, 
public services (e.g., post office, library), shopping, other services, etc. If public 
transportation is available, indicate the hours of operation and the distance from the units. 
(1 point)  

• Type and frequency of supportive services that will be available (e.g., case 
management, life skills, health care). See 24 CFR part 578.53 for full list of CoC 
Program eligible supportive services. State whether your organization or another 
organization will provide supportive services. If other organizations will provide 
some or all of the above services. 

 

C. Implementation Schedule (Maximum page length not to exceed 2 pages) 
o Complete an implementation schedule based on the proposed CoC Builds project.  
o  Based on type of capital cost requested, provide:  

• New Construction – date construction will begin and end, and date property will be 
available for move-in. 

• Acquisition – date property will be acquired.  

• Rehabilitation – dates rehabilitation of the property will begin and end.  
o Provide the proposed schedule for the following activities:  

• site control, indicate if the property has already been identified;  

• environmental review completion;  

• execution of grant agreement;  

• start and completion dates:  

• anticipated date the jurisdiction will issue the occupancy certificate;  

• date property will be available for individuals and families experiencing 
homelessness to begin occupying units.  

 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 8 

 HUD will evaluate the implementation schedule and provide up to 4 points based on whether 

 the development schedule is complete and has all necessary elements, up to 4 points depending 

 on likelihood that development milestones will be met, and up to 4 points based on the 

 likelihood that the project will be ready for occupancy within 36 months of award.  

D. Property Maintenance (Maximum 2 pages) 

o Demonstrate how you will ensure the property is maintained annually to prevent 

unnecessary costly repairs. Your description must include: 

o how the property will be maintained annually and needed repairs are conducted (e.g., 

checking for roof leaks, routine maintenance for heating and cooling). Identify the source of 

funds that will be used and whether there will be a reserve fund established specifically for 

maintenance and repair of proposed units.  

o Demonstrate how the project will be able to cover replacement costs (e.g., replacing broken 

or damaged appliances, major equipment). Indicate if there will be funds provided from 

other sources and what those sources will be.  

 
E. Unmet Housing Need (Maximum 1 page) 

o Describe the population that will be served by the project and the level of unmet need for 
new units of permanent supportive housing in your area for that population.  

o Using the PIT Count and HIC information, estimate the gap between the number of units of 
permanent supportive housing available and the number of homeless individuals and 
families experiencing homelessness where at least one household member has a disability. 
Maximum points will be awarded for applicants that demonstrate that there are fewer than 
50 PSH beds available in a given year for each 100 people in the population that is proposed 
to be served. (Up to 7 points)  

 
F. Management of Rental Housing (Maximum 2 pages) 

 
o Describe the rental housing projects you have managed. If you have or will partner with 

other organization(s) within the CoC to manage a property(s), provide the organization’s 
information, type of program participants assisted, and experience.  

o Include the number of grants for affordable housing awarded over the last three years, total 
amount of awards, and the type of subsidy funding or financing provided for housing.  

o Specify the number of assisted and non-assisted units in each property you list.  
Maximum points will be available for adequately describing management of at least 4 times 
the number of properties and units proposed in this application.   

 

G. Coordinated Entry (Maximum 2 pages) 
 Demonstrate how the project will use the CoC’s coordinated entry process, or in the case of 
 victim service providers, another coordinated entry process that meets HUD’s minimum 
 requirements, to refer individuals and families experiencing homelessness in the new PH-PSH 
 units. The response must include the coordinated entry process implemented and how program 
 participants will be placed in the project.  
 
 
 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 9 

 
H. Coordination with Housing Providers, Healthcare Organizations, and Social Service Providers 

(Maximum 2 pages) 
 Demonstrate either that:  

o The project is leveraging non-CoC funded housing resources through coordination with housing 
providers, healthcare organizations, and social service providers for new construction, 
acquisition, and rehabilitation to provide at least 50 percent of the amount being requested in 
the application, or  

o The project is leveraging non-CoC funded housing resources to provide subsidies for at least 25 
percent of the units that are proposed in the application.  

 You must attach letters of commitment, contracts, or other formal written documents that 
 demonstrate the percentage of subsidies or number of units being provided to support the 
 project. (5 points)  

• Demonstrate through written commitment from a healthcare organization, housing 
provider, and/or social service provider:  

• Access to housing resources (e.g., supportive services, home-based and long-term services 
and supports, primary and medical care, behavioral health, substance use disorder 
treatment and recovery, and other services); or  

• The value of assistance being provided is at least an amount that is equivalent to at least 
$7,500 per unit included in the proposed project.  

Acceptable forms of commitment are formal written agreements and must include:  
o value of the commitment, and  
o dates the housing and resources will be provided.  

In-kind resources must be valued at the local rates consistent with the amount paid for services 
not supported by grant funds. (5 points)  
 

I. Experience Promoting Racial Equity (Maximum 4 pages) 
 Describe:  

o Experience soliciting, obtaining, and applying input from underserved groups when designing, 
planning, and implementing housing projects.  

o Experience building community partnerships with grassroots and resident-led organizations that 
provide housing, health care, and supportive services.  

o Experience designing or operating programs that have improved racial equity, particularly 
among people experiencing homelessness.  
 

J. Community Integration for Persons with Disabilities (Maximum 2 pages)  
Demonstrate how permanent supportive housing will enable program participants to make 
meaningful choices about housing, health care, and long-term services and supports that will allow 
them to fully participate in the community. The response should include how the PSH units will 
ensure non-segregation of individuals and families experiencing homelessness where at least one 
household member has a disability. Additionally, the response should include state whether the PSH 
units will be part of mixed-use development, meaning individuals and families that will reside in the 
units are not all disabled. 

 
K. Section 3 Requirement (Maximum 1 page) 
 Describe the actions that will be taken by project applicants to comply with Section 3 of  the 
 Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u) (Section 3) and  HUD’s 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 10 

 implementing rules at 24 CFR part 75 to provide employment and training opportunities for low- 
and very low-income persons, as well as contracting and other  economic opportunities for 
business that provide economic opportunities to low- and  very low-income persons. This does not 
affect applicant's existing responsibilities to provide training, employment, and other economic 
opportunities pursuant to Section 3 that result from their receipt of other HUD funding. Grants to 
Indian Tribes are subject to Indian Preference under Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination 
and Education Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 5307(b) and are not subject to Section 3 requirements.  

• Section 3 In accordance with HUD's Section 3 regulations at 24 CFR 75.7, your application 
will receive up to 2 points based on the quality of Section 3 plans submitted. The program 
office will consider the following in evaluating the quality of the Section 3 plan: Section 
V.A.1.k of this NOFO.  

7. Local CoC Rating Criteria based on HUD Rating Criteria, with local priorities adopted: 

a. Development Experience and Leveraging-24 points 

b. Managing Homeless Projects- 12 points 

c. Implementation Schedule- 15 points 

d. Number of PSH Units Created- 8 points 

e. Property Maintenance- 5 points 

f. Managing of Rental Housing- 8 points 

g. Coordinated Entry- 3 points 

h. Coordination with Housing Providers, Healthcare Organizations, and Social Service 
Providers- 8 points 

i. Experience Promoting Racial Equity- 8 points 
j. Community Integration for Persons with Disabilities- 7 points 
k. Section 3 Requirements- 2 points  

 
CoC Builds Total Application Maximum Points: 100 

 
8. Other Factors  
HUD may employ rating panels to review and rate all or part of the applications according to the rating 
criteria in Section V.A of this NOFO.  

a. Threshold Review. CoC first will review applications to determine whether you meet the 
project eligibility in Section III.A., and whether the applications meet eligibility and quality 
thresholds detailed in Section V.A of this NOFO and Underwriting, Developer Benefits & Rate of 
Return Summary. If HUD determines these standards are not met, HUD will reject the 
application, unless otherwise provided in this NOFO. There are 100 points available for 
applications. To be considered for possible funds, a project application must score at least 60 
points or higher.  

 
b. Projects on Tribal reservations or trust land. HUD will next set aside up to three awards for 
the highest scoring project applications where new PSH units will be constructed, rehabilitated, 
or acquired on Tribal reservations or trust lands.  
c. Conditional Selection and Adjustments to Funding. HUD will finally conditionally select 
applications based on CoC Builds application score using the following process:  

i. From all the applications for projects in states that have a population of 2,500,000 or 
fewer, HUD will select the highest scoring applications until a cumulative total of 
$65,000,000 has been selected;  



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 11 

ii. Select the highest scoring projects remaining, regardless of the population of the 
state in which the project is located. If there are not enough eligible projects submitted 
as outlined in Section V.A.2.c.i, HUD intends to add the remaining amount to this 
amount.  

 

Guidance 
Relates to:  

(check all that apply) 

 
1. Has your agency/service provider adopted the local CoC’s 
Written Standards with regards to the following?  
 

 
□  Coordinated Entry 
 
□  Housing First 
 
 
 

 
2. Does your agency/service provider have Program Rules, Policies 
and Procedures that address the following? 
 
 

 
□  Coordinated Entry 
 
□  Housing First 
 
 
 

3. Does your agency/service provider commit to adopt and follow 
the local CoC Coordinated Entry Policies and Procedures? 
 

□  Coordinated Entry 
 
□  Housing First 
 

 
4. Does your agency utilize HMIS for entering client level data. 
Please include attachments that demonstrate data quality and 
annual performance of an existing project from October 1, 2023- 
September 30, 2024.  

 
□  HMIS participating project  
 
□  Attach HMIS generated reports 
showing data quality and 
performance of existing project 
 
  
 

 

AGENCY CERTIFICATIONS: 

The following certification must be completed and signed by an authorized agency representative to 

be further considered for HUD CoC Builds program funding. 

 

The undersigned agency hereby certifies that: 

a. The information contained herein and in the attached is complete and accurate. No material 
information has been omitted, including financial information.  
 

[U.S. Code, Title 31, Section 3729, False Claims, provides a civil penalty of not less than $5,000 
and not more than $10,000, plus 3 times the amount of damages for any person who knowingly 



 HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 

COC BUILDS 2024 NOFO 

2024 PROJECT APPLICATION 

 12 

presents, or causes to be presented, a false or fraudulent claim; or who knowingly makes, or 
caused to be used, a false record or statement; or conspires to defraud the Government by 
getting a false or fraudulent claim allowed or paid. HUD will prosecute false claims and 
statements and conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 
1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)]. 
 

b. The agency certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that its principals are not presently 
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any Federal debarment or agency. 
 

c. The agency shall comply with all federal and County policies and requirements applicable to the 
HUD CoC Builds program as appropriate for the funding if received.  
 

d. The proposed project will assist in alleviating the homeless shelter crisis in the jurisdiction it 
proposes to serve. 
  

e. If HUD CoC Builds funds are approved in the requested amount, then to the best of your 
knowledge, sufficient funds will be available to complete the project as proposed. 
 

f. The agency certifies that the funded program will participate in the locally approved HMIS 
system and CES. 

 
g. If HUD CoC Builds funds are approved in the requested amount, the agency will provide a final 

budget summary. 
 

 

 

Name of Agency 

 

Typed Name and Title of Agency Official 

  

Agency Official’s Signature Date of Signature 

  

Phone Number of Agency Official E-Mail Address of Agency Official 

 



 

 

 

September 11, 2024 

VC CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Authorization for the Ventura County Continuum of Care’s Administrative Entity to contract 

with Simtech Solutions for the 2025 Homeless Point In Time Count 

BACKGROUND: The Ventura County Continuum of Care (VC CoC) is required by U.S. Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) to conduct the annual Point in Time Count and Subpopulation Survey of homeless 
persons throughout our CoC geographic area. Surveys include demographics and subpopulation details 
of sheltered and unsheltered persons during a one-day count of homelessness across the community. 
HUD also requires the annual Housing Inventory Count of all emergency shelter, transitional housing, 
rapid re-housing, supportive housing, and other housing dedicated to homeless persons. These reports 
are submitted to HUD as part of the requirements of receiving HUD Continuum of Care grant funding. 
The data helps to inform the VC CoC Board as well as other stakeholders in the community on the need 
for resources within the community as well as trends in the populations experiencing homelessness. 
Data collected is also being used by the State of California in allocating funding for the Homeless 
Housing Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) program.  
 
DISCUSSION: VC CoC Staff has proposed to allocate $15,747 of HUD CoC Planning grant funding to achieve 

the goals and objectives of the annual Homeless Point In Time (PIT) Count. These funds will be used by 

the Ventura County CoC to engage and collaborate with a technical assistance consultant that will develop 

training for the annual PIT count, recruit volunteers for the annual PIT count, provide a data dashboard 

with mapping, and retain Simtech Solutions mobile application to assist with the surveying efforts. The 

Ventura County CoC will manage the responsibilities in the agreement and carry out the annual PIT count 

activities as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urben Development (HUD). VC CoC Staff are 

recommending the following funding allocations to achieve the PIT Count goals and objectives: 

Proposed Activity Type Description Funding 

Simtech Solutions  
Mobile Application 

Retain a new mobile application to assist volunteers 
in collecting surveys for HUD required demographic 

information with GIS mapping technology. 

$4,897 

Simtech Solutions 
Professional Services 

Professional services such as Team lead training, 
customization of assessment questions, volunteer 

registration portal, count area and team 
management, shelter-based surveys, family 

reunification and known location survey, Spanish 
version survey, point in time results and Formal Point 

in Time Summary report 

$10,850 

   

 TOTAL $15,747 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

1) Authorize VC CoC Staff to contract with SimTech Solutions (Exhibit A), a training consultant for 

higher levels of PIT Count engagement utilizing their mobile application with mapping 

technology and Professional Services; and  

2) Approve the allocation of $15,747 in CoC Planning Grant funds for Simtech Solutions. 



 

 

  

Professional Services & Tools to Support 

the Annual Point in Time Census 
   

P a g e  | 1 

Simtech Solutions Inc. – Architects and Developers of the Framework to End Homelessness 

 

AGREEMENT dated as of ______________ between _____________________________ (hereinafter 

“Client”), located at __________________________________ and Simtech Solutions Inc., located at 

PO Box 231508, Encinitas, CA 92023. 

 

1.0 TOOLS TO BE PROVIDED 

1.1  Subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement (the “Agreement”), Simtech Solutions Inc. 

agrees to provide the following technical resources in support of the Client’s objective of 

conducting an efficient and accurate 2025 Point In Time homeless censuses for the CA-611 - 

Oxnard/San Buenaventura/Ventura County Continuum of Care: 

 

• Access to the Counting Us mobile app that includes the following key features: 

o HUD-compliant Point in Time survey collection for both individuals and 

households from a native app available on both Google Play and the App Store. 

o Observation Tally forms to gather information from people who cannot be engaged. 

o Access to an optional “Brief Unsheltered Survey” to capture the minimum amount 

of data in order to uniquely identify a person. 

o Support for data entry via any web browser from http://Counting.Us. 

o Ability to assign GPS coordinates to the location of each interaction. 

o Ability for the Counting Us app to work without an Internet connection or cell 

service. Surveys can be saved as “Drafts” and submitted later. 

 

• Point in Time Regional Command Center, which includes the following key features:  

o Ability to change the count activity from being in “test” or “live” mode to enable 

users to field test the app prior to the date of the count.  

o Collect and display survey data submitted from the Counting Us mobile app in real 

time. This provides Count Administrators with the ability to review the quality of 

incoming data and address issues as needed. 

o Tools for Count Administrators to make edits to the incoming data as necessary; 

o Ability to produce HUD-compliant Point in Time Reports over data collected for 

both sheltered and unsheltered populations. 

o Data export in either Microsoft Excel or Comma Separated Variable (CSV) format; 

o Incorporation of shape files to denote the geographic boundaries of the region and 

to run Point in Time reports by city, county, or zip code. 

o Access to the data within the command center for a period of up to one year from 

the date of this Agreement. Access to this data will be extended if the Client decides 

to continue to subscribe to these services in subsequent years. 

  

2.0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED 

2.1 Subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement (the “Agreement”), Simtech Solutions Inc. 

agrees to provide the Client with ongoing technical consulting services in support of the Client’s 

Point in Time count.  

• Virtual support to address technical issues and respond to questions from the designated 

Technical Lead on the use of either the Counting Us app or the Regional Command Center. 

• Upon request, the Client will be provided up to one hour of virtual training to Count 

Administrators and “team leaders” in preparation for the count. Client may also request 

virtual trainings for Count leads. 

• Templates for posters and training materials to accompany the use of the Counting Us app. 

https://protect.checkpoint.com/v2/___http://counting.us/___.YzJ1OmNvdmF2YW5hbjpjOm86MzE5NDk0ZGU1Zjg1N2FiOGVmYTZiZThkNjkyMzY1YWI6Njo0NzkwOjAxM2I1NzVjM2Q5MTc3OTYxOTg1M2Q0NjI4NGEzNzljNzRjOTJmZDZiNWE1YThkOTFkNDQ4MjU0ZDg0NGZjODI6cDpUOk4


 

 

  

Professional Services & Tools to Support 

the Annual Point in Time Census 
   

P a g e  | 2 

Simtech Solutions Inc. – Architects and Developers of the Framework to End Homelessness 

 

• Technical support services to assist with the addressing of any data quality issues or other 

open items that need to be addressed prior to producing the Point in Time Reports for 

submission to HUD. 

 

2.2  This Agreement includes the option for Custom Sheltered and Unsheltered Surveys found within 

the Counting Us app by adding or revising up to twenty (20) questions per survey. The results 

will be gathered in the Point in Time Regional Command Center and be available for export in a 

CSV data file alongside the results from the questions that must be asked to produce a valid 

HUD Point in Time Report. The questions to be added can have any type of response type 

including text, number, date, drop-down, radio button or check box. Note that the response 

values for the questions required to produce an accurate and complete HUD Point in Time report 

cannot be revised unless the region does not wish to produce the Point in Time report from the 

regional command center.  

  

2.3  This Agreement includes the option to include a Volunteer Registration Portal. If included, this 

web-based portal will serve as a common landing page for volunteers interested in participating 

in the region’s count. Volunteers will be able to enter key information related to who they are, 

any additional skills they have, provide their contact information and pre-register for an account 

to be used with the Counting Us app. If both this option and the option for Count Team 

Management are selected, the Count Area and Team Managers will be provided with the ability 

to assign registered count volunteers to their teams.  

 

2.4  This Agreement includes the option to include Region and Count Team Management 

functionality within both the Counting Us app and the Point in Time Regional Command Center. 

Count Teams support a sub-region view into the data for local Count Team Administrators by 

showing only the data that has been collected by users that are assigned to their particular 

team(s). Enabling this feature allows Technical Leader(s) to define these sub-regions, designate 

Count Team Leaders, and assign count team volunteers to these sub-regions. Count 

administrators will be able to assign users to a team and filter and review surveys collected by 

any member of their team. If the Client decides to include this optional feature, users will be 

presented with a list of pre-established Count Teams and be asked to choose a team after they 

have registered an account.  

 

2.4A Clients who opt for the Region and Count Team Management feature also have the option to 

include the creation of High-Resolution, Print-Friendly Map Files to be printed by the Client and 

to be provided to volunteers as an additional guide for identifying their designated count 

coverage area(s). The creation of these map files will be done upon request by the designated 

Technical Lead by submitting a request through the Virtual Help Desk. Once this request is 

received the support team will commence the one-time creation of the map files for the various 

Region and Count Team areas that have been defined.  

 

2.5  This Agreement includes the option to modify the observation tally to Count Vehicles and 

Makeshift Shelters that appear to be serving as temporary living situations. Also included within 

this is logic to ask people who are engaged and living in a vehicle or structure what type of 

vehicle or structure they are residing in and how many people are sleeping with them in this 

location. Together, this information can be used to derive estimated counts. The modification 

shall include revised logic within the command center to ignore counts of structures and vehicles 



 

 

  

Professional Services & Tools to Support 

the Annual Point in Time Census 
   

P a g e  | 3 

Simtech Solutions Inc. – Architects and Developers of the Framework to End Homelessness 

 

during the generation of the HUD point-in-time report. All data gathered will be made available 

in the form of a CSV export.  

 

2.6 This Agreement includes the option to include a Separate Count Activity, to be conducted on a 

separate date and time that is within the one-year period of this Agreement. This additional count 

activity prevents the co-mingling of data with the official HUD Point in Time Count data 

collection and can be used for youth-specific homeless counts, a summer point in time count to 

help identify if there are seasonal fluctuations in count figures, or for other community-specific 

reasons. Training for the actual point-in-time count does not require a separate count activity as 

the count can be left in “pre-count” mode until the start of the count. Any custom surveys 

required shall be billed on a time and materials basis as described in Section 4.3.  

 

2.7  This Agreement includes the option to include Geographic Sampling and Enumeration features 

which enable a statistically reliable count to be conducted without requiring the entire region to 

be canvassed. Details on the approach and functionality included are available in a separate 

methodology document that can be provided upon request. 

 

2.8  This Agreement includes the option to include Shelter-Based Surveys to allow for the data 

collection of count figures from shelter providers either not participating in HMIS and/or those 

that are using HMIS but there are data quality concerns that necessitate the usage of another 

means for collecting data required to produce the HUD Point in Time report. 

 

2.9 This Agreement includes the option to include a Family Reunification Service to support the 

potential reunification of people experiencing homelessness with friends or family members. 

This offering is currently supported through a partnership with Miracle Messages, a California 

based 501(c)3 non-profit organization, who have agreed to coordinate volunteer-led efforts to 

locate loved ones, deliver messages, and reunite families. By selecting this option, the provider 

understands that relevant information gathered from people surveyed who agree to participate in 

this initiative will be shared with Miracle Messages, and their volunteers, to support the 

reunification process and that Simtech Solutions Inc. makes no warranties, implied or expressed, 

in regards to these optional reunification services. 

 

2.10 This Agreement includes the option to include a Known Location Survey to enable volunteers and 

outreach staff to identify areas within the community that contain people experiencing 

homelessness. By gathering this information before the night of the count, count administrators 

can use this pre-count data gathering to help inform the placement of count volunteers. 

 

2.11 This Agreement includes the option to include a Disaster Response Survey to be utilized, upon 

the provision of written request by the Client to Simtech Solutions, to assist the region in 

responding to a natural disaster if one were to occur. This survey instrument was developed with 

the assistance of providers in Texas in the wake of Hurricane Harvey.  

 

2.12 This Agreement includes the option to include Spanish Version of Surveys to be utilized for the 

Unsheltered and Sheltered Surveys as well as the Observation Tally. It is to be understood that if 

the Client chooses to include Custom Questions the Spanish translation of these questions will 

need to be provided by the Client.  

 



 

 

  

Professional Services & Tools to Support 

the Annual Point in Time Census 
   

P a g e  | 4 

Simtech Solutions Inc. – Architects and Developers of the Framework to End Homelessness 

 

2.13 This Agreement includes the option to include a Point-In-Time Results Evaluation Dashboard. 

This public-facing dashboard shall utilize historical Point-In-Time and Housing Inventory Chart 

data provided by HUD, as well as the results from this year’s count, to provide an overview of 

the demographic characteristics and trends in the sheltered and unsheltered homeless population 

within the region.  

2.14 This Agreement includes the option to include a Formal Point-In-Time Summary Report. This 

report will leverage the structure found within other similar community reports authored by 

Simtech Solutions Inc. and shall include an Executive Summary with infographics to highlight 

key findings and data points as well as sections for shelter utilization, demographic 

characteristics, annual trends, as well as in-depth analysis for veterans, chronically homeless, and 

youth. Details of the count methodology shall also be included.  

 

3.0 AGREEMENT TERM 

3.1    The rights and obligations of both parties pursuant to the within Agreement shall commence as 

of the date of this Agreement and shall continue for a period of one (1) year. 

  

4.0 RATES, PAYMENT OF SERVICES 

4.1 Simtech Solutions Inc. will perform data management and hosting services as outlined in Section 

1.1, and provide professional services as outlined in Section 2.1, in exchange for the following 

pricing: 

 

 Base Features and Pricing      Price 

Mobile App and Support (see sections 1.1 and 2.1)   $ 4897 

 

The Client has the option to include additional functionality and services within this Agreement, 

as described in Sections 2.2 through 2.14 in exchange for the pricing specified below. Please 

initial next to the feature(s), if any, that are to be included.  
 

Optional Features and Services       Price   Initials 

Custom Questions (see section 2.2)      $ 1500    

Volunteer Registration Portal (see section 2.3)     $ 1500       

Count Area and Team Management (see section 2.4)   $ 1500    

High Resolution, Print-Friendly Map Files (see section 2.4A)  $ 1500    

Count Vehicles and Makeshift Shelters (see section 2.5)    $ 1500       

Separate Count Activity (see section 2.6)     $ 2500    

Geographic Sampling and Enumeration (see section 2.7)   $ 3500    

Shelter-Based Surveys (see section 2.8)      $ 0    

Family Reunification Service (see section 2.9)       $ 0    

Known Location Survey (see section 2.10)     $ 0    

Disaster Response Survey (see section 2.11)    $ 0    

Additional Training Sessions (Two sessions)     $ 350    

Spanish Version of Surveys (see section 2.12)    $ 0    

Point-In-Time Results Evaluation Dashboard (see section 2.13)  $ 4500   _ 

Formal Point-In-Time Summary Report (see section 2.14   $ 8500  _______ 

Total Price (base price plus cost for any additional features)  $ ______ 

 

125047
Highlight

125047
Highlight

125047
Highlight

125047
Highlight



 

 

  

Professional Services & Tools to Support 

the Annual Point in Time Census 
   

P a g e  | 5 

Simtech Solutions Inc. – Architects and Developers of the Framework to End Homelessness 

 

4.2 Fifty (50) percent shall be due within thirty (30) days of signing this Agreement as a deposit and 

the remaining fifty (50) percent shall be due within thirty (30) days of the date the Point in Time 

count is conducted. 

 

4.3 All work that is beyond the scope of this Agreement, as defined in Section 2.0, shall be billed at 

a rate of $175/hour plus any related travel costs (if needed). This includes any onsite support if that 

is desired. No additional time shall be billed to the Client without prior consent. 

 

4.4 Any travel expenses incurred to provide onsite consulting services requested by the Client shall 

be reimbursed by the Client. Travel time shall be billed at one-half of the hourly rate. 

 

5.0 CONFIDENTIAL NATURE AND LIMITATION OF USE OF INFORMATION 

5.1  Should Client disclose to Simtech Solutions Inc. or a Consultant of Simtech Solutions Inc., or 

should Simtech Solutions Inc. or such Consultant learn of Confidential Information, Simtech 

Solutions Inc. agrees that neither Simtech Solutions Inc. nor its Consultant shall, at any time, 

during or after the period of this Agreement, disclose such information to any company, 

individual, or other agency or entity, nor use such confidential information for his or her own 

advantage other than in the performance of this or any subsequent similar Agreement with 

Client. The client agrees to allow Simtech Solutions and its designee to use unidentified data for 

research purposes and to help improve our collective understanding of homelessness 

characteristics and trends. 

 

5.2 Should Simtech Solutions Inc. disclose to Client or a Consultant of Client, or should Client or 

such Consultant learn of Confidential Information, Client agrees that neither Client nor its 

Consultant shall, at any time, during or after the period of this Agreement, disclose such 

information to any company, individual, or other agency or entity, nor use such confidential 

information for his or her own advantage other than in the performance of this or any subsequent 

similar Agreement with Simtech Solutions Inc.  

 

6.0 CLIENT REPRESENTATIVE 

6.1       (herein “Designated PIT Count Lead”) shall represent the Client during 

the performance of this Agreement and will be the primary point for ensuring the proper setup 

and implementation of the technology. The Designated PIT Count Lead will also serve as the 

point person to triage any support requests.  

 

6.2       (herein “Authorized Signatory”) has the authority, with respect to 

Agreements and Agreements that relate to functions and operations within the Client’s 

organization and has the ability to (a) approve and execute such Agreements and Agreements, 

and (b) to delegate approval and/or signatory authority to a subordinate officer or manager, with 

any appropriate dollar-value, timeframe, Agreement-specific, or other limitations he or she 

deems appropriate.  

 

7.0 PROVISIONS TO MAINTAIN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

7.1  Any services rendered hereunder by Simtech Solutions Inc. are to be in a capacity as an 

independent contractor only and no employment relationship of any kind is intended or to be 

implied either in fact or at law. 

 



 

 

  

Professional Services & Tools to Support 

the Annual Point in Time Census 
   

P a g e  | 6 

Simtech Solutions Inc. – Architects and Developers of the Framework to End Homelessness 

 

8.0 USE OF WORK PRODUCT 

8.1  Except as specifically set forth in writing and signed by both Client and Consultant, Consultant 

shall have all copyright and patent rights with respect to all code developed in accordance with 

this Agreement and Client is hereby granted a non-exclusive license to use and employ the work 

product described in Section 1.0 for the duration of the Agreement term.  

 

9.0 LIMITED LIABILITY 

9.1 Simtech Solutions Inc. warrants to the Client that the material, analysis, data, programs and 

services to be delivered hereunder will be of good quality and performed by qualified personnel. 

Simtech Solutions Inc. makes no other warranties, express or implied including without 

limitation warranty of fitness for a particular purpose or merchantability. In no event shall 

Simtech Solutions Inc. be liable for special or consequential damages, either in Agreement or 

tort, whether or not the possibility of such damages has been disclosed to Simtech Solutions Inc. 

in advance or could have been reasonably foreseen by Simtech Solutions Inc. Deliverables are to 

be made in good faith to be developed according to the documentation provided for each. In the 

event the limitation of liability is held unenforceable for any reason, then the parties agree that 

by reason of the difficulty of foreseeing and computing potential damages that the Client shall 

receive from Simtech Solutions Inc. liquidated damages in the sum of One Hundred and 00/100 

($100.00) Dollars.  

 

10.0 NON-SOLICITATION 

10.1 For a period of one (1) year after the termination of this Agreement by either party for any 

reason, Client shall not recruit or solicit, offer employment to, or employ any person who was an 

employee or independent contractor of Simtech Solutions on or within six (6) months before the 

termination of the Agreement. Client agrees to pay Simtech Solutions Inc. liquidated damages in 

the amount of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) for any such breach.  

 

11.0 ASSIGNMENT 

11.1 Either party may assign this Agreement to any affiliate or any purchaser or transferee of all or 

substantially all of the Company’s business upon mutual Agreement and with at least thirty (30) 

days’ notice. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties.  

 

12.0 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

12.1 All data required to facilitate this work will be provided by the Client and Client will obtain all 

permissions necessary to share this data with Simtech Solutions Inc.  

 

13.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

13.1 Both parties agree to send written notice in the event that any disputes arising in connection with 

this Agreement cannot be resolved within a reasonable time following good faith attempts by the 

parties. In the event that such failure is not corrected within 10 days from the date of receipt of the 

written notice from Client the dispute shall be finally settled in accordance with the Commercial 

Industry Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Any controversy or claim arising out of 

or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by final and binding 

arbitration pursuant to the procedures, and in such location, as the parties may agree within fifteen 

(15) days following a request by either party for arbitration. In the event the parties are unable to 



 

 

  

Professional Services & Tools to Support 

the Annual Point in Time Census 
   

P a g e  | 7 

Simtech Solutions Inc. – Architects and Developers of the Framework to End Homelessness 

 

agree upon the procedure and location within the above time period, the claim shall be submitted 

to final and binding arbitration in San Diego, California. 

 

 

 

 

 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. IN WITNESS HEREOF, 

the parties have signed the within Agreement as of the date first above written. 

 

Seller: Simtech Solutions Inc.  Client: ______________________________ 

Federal Tax ID # 04-350-6208 

 

By: ________________________ By:  ______________________________

        Authorized Signatory 

Name:  Matthew D. Simmonds  Name: ______________________________

  

Title: President    Title: ______________________________ 

 

Date: ________________________ Date: ______________________________ 



 

 

 

September 11, 2024 

CoC Governance Board 

SUBJECT: Review and approve 2024 Ventura County Continuum of Care Written 

Standards for CoC, ESG and HHAP funded programs.  

 

BACKGROUND: The Continuum of Care Interim Rule provides rules and regulations for 

the Continuum of Care program authorized by the Homeless Emergency Assistance and 

Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 (HEARTH Act). In section 578.7, “Responsibilities 

of the Continuum of Care”, the Continuum of Care must: “In consultation with recipients 

of Emergency Solutions Grants program funds within the geographic area, establish and 

consistently follow written standards for providing Continuum of Care assistance”. At a 

minimum, these written standards must include: 

1. Policies and procedures for evaluating individuals’ and families’ 

eligibility for assistance; 

2. Policies and procedures for determining and prioritizing which eligible 

individuals and families will receive transitional housing assistance; 

3. Policies and procedures for determining and prioritizing which eligible 

individuals and families will receive rapid rehousing assistance; 

4. Standards for determining what percentage or amount of rent each 

program participant must pay while receiving rapid rehousing 

assistance; and 

5. Policies and procedures for determining and prioritizing which eligible 

individuals and families will receive permanent supportive housing 

assistance. 

6. Policies and procedures must include an emergency transfer priority as 

required in 578.99(j)(8). 

 

The Ventura County CoC Written Standards include local guidelines that meet HUD and 

State regulatory requirements for coordinated entry, fair housing and equal 

opportunity, policies and procedures for each program type, documentation standards, 

program eligibility, confidentiality, recordkeeping, reporting, HMIS and performance 

standards.  

 



Summary of Changes: To ensure compliance with updated federal and state 

regulations, we have made several key policy changes. These include: 

➢ Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) Protections: Emergency Transfer Plan 

Policy Update and Lease Addendum 

➢ Inclusion of State Housing and Community Development (HCD), Homeless 

Housing Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) policies, eligible activities and 

outcome goals 

➢ Housing Stability Plan 

➢ Expansion of the Housing First definition 

➢ Mitigation Plans for individuals or families at risk of returning to homelessness 

when placed in Permanent Supportive Housing or Permanent Housing 

(PSH/PH) through the Coordinated Entry System (CES) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the updated Ventura County Continuum of Care 2024 Written 

Standards for HUD CoC, ESG and HHAP funded programs. 



 

 

 

VENTURA COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE 

WRITTEN STANDARDS FOR THE HUD COC, ESG, AND STATE HHAP 

Update – July 3,2024 

 
  



 

 
 

Table of Contents 

 
I. Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................... 3 
II. Program Overviews ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

a. Emergency Solutions Grants Program ............................................................................................ 5 
b. Continuum of Care Program ............................................................................................................... 6 
c. Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention Program ........................................................ 6 

III. Coordination Among Providers ................................................................................................................... 7 
a. Coordinated Entry and Assessment System.................................................................................. 7 
b. Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity .............................................................................................. 9 

IV. Policies & Procedures ................................................................................................................................... 12 
a. Emergency Shelter / Safe Haven .................................................................................................... 12 
b. Transitional Housing ......................................................................................................................... 14 
c. Homelessness Prevention (ESG/HHAP Only) ............................................................................ 15 
d. Rapid Rehousing ................................................................................................................................. 18 
e. Permanent Supportive Housing (CoC/HHAP only) ................................................................. 19 
f. Street Outreach .................................................................................................................................... 21 
g. All Project Types ................................................................................................................................. 23 

V. Components and Eligible Activities ........................................................................................................... 27 
a. Emergency Solutions Grant ............................................................................................................. 27 
b. Continuum of Care .............................................................................................................................. 30 
c. Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention ....................................................................... 36 

VI. Participant Eligibility .................................................................................................................................... 38 
a. Eligibility by Component .................................................................................................................. 38 
b. Income 24 CFR § 576.103 ................................................................................................................. 40 
c. Disability ................................................................................................................................................ 40 
d. Chronic Homelessness ...................................................................................................................... 40 
e. Special Considerations for Serving a Person Who May be Undocumented .................... 42 
f. Special   Considerations   for   Households   if   Individual   Members   are   Residing   in 

Different Places.................................................................................................................................... 42 
VII. Documentation Standards for Eligibility for Assistance ................................................................. 43 

a. Eligibility Overview ............................................................................................................................ 43 
b. Homeless Verification ....................................................................................................................... 43 
c. Disability Verification ....................................................................................................................... 45 
d. Special Considerations for Documenting Chronic Homelessness ...................................... 45 

VIII. Changes in Household Composition ..................................................................................................... 47 
a. Documenting Homelessness ........................................................................................................... 47 
b. Household Composition Considerations .................................................................................... 48 
c. Transfers to Suitable Units .............................................................................................................. 48 

IX. Shared Housing ............................................................................................................................................... 49 
X. Determining Income and Calculating Participant Rent ...................................................................... 49 

a. Income Definition ............................................................................................................................... 49 
b. Income Inclusions Examples ........................................................................................................... 50 
c. Income Exclusions .............................................................................................................................. 50 
d. Income Review Requirements ....................................................................................................... 51 
e. Annualizing Wages and Periodic Payments............................................................................... 52 
f. Calculating Rent (or Occupancy Charge) .................................................................................... 52 
g. Utility Allowances ............................................................................................................................... 53 
h. Program Income .................................................................................................................................. 53 
i. Program Interest (HHAP only) ....................................................................................................... 54 



 

 
 

XII. Confidentiality of Participant Records .................................................................................................. 55 
XIII. Housing Requirements .............................................................................................................................. 55 

a. Inspection Requirements ................................................................................................................. 55 
b. Suitable Dwelling Size ....................................................................................................................... 57 
c. Lead-Based Paint Requirements ................................................................................................... 57 
d. Rent Reasonableness and Fair Market Rent .............................................................................. 58 
e. Housing Agreements .......................................................................................................................... 60 

XIV. Recordkeeping Requirements ................................................................................................................ 61 
a. Initial Consultation & Eligibility Determination ...................................................................... 61 
b. Income and Participant Rent .......................................................................................................... 61 
c. Housing Stability Plan ....................................................................................................................... 61 
d. Individual Support Plan .................................................................................................................... 61 
e. Assistance in obtaining mainstream and other resources ................................................... 62 
f. Proof of Complete Inspection ......................................................................................................... 62 
g. Proof of Complete Lead Based Paint Visual Assessment ....................................................... 62 
h. Rent Reasonableness and Fair Market Rent .............................................................................. 62 
i. Housing Agreements .......................................................................................................................... 62 
j. Case Notes and record of services received ............................................................................... 63 
k. Staff Training and Training Records ............................................................................................ 63 

XV. Reporting Requirements ............................................................................................................................ 63 
XVI. Homeless Management Information Systems Participation ........................................................ 64 
XVII. Performance Standards ........................................................................................................................... 64 

Attachment A – Income Eligibility Documentation Standards .................................................. 66 
Attachment B – Rent Reasonableness Policies and Procedures ............................................... 70 
Attachment C – Step by Step Compliance with Lead Based Paint Inspection  ...................... 73 
Attachment D – Comparison of RRH under ESG, CoC, and HHAP .............................................. 75 
Attachment E – HHAP Outcome Goals ................................................................................................ 76 
Attachment F – Rent Reasonableness Certification  ...................................................................... 78 
Attachment G – Lease Addendum ........................................................................................................ 79 
Attachment H – Rental Assistance Agreement ................................................................................ 80 
Attachment I – Housing Stability Plan ................................................................................................ 81 
Attachment J – VAWA Protections ....................................................................................................... 82 
Attachment K – Part 578 Continuum of Care Program ................................................................ 86 
Attachment L – Emergency Transfer Plan ......................................................................................... 91 

 
 
 

 
The County of Ventura is the Collaborative Applicant (CA) for the Ventura County Continuum of Care. 
Staff support is provided to the Ventura County Continuum of Care Alliance and Board by the County of 
Ventura County Executive Office. The standards contained within this document shall be applied to all 
projects funded within the Ventura County Continuum of Care. Standards that apply only to 
subrecipients of Ventura County will be differentiated by the term “Subrecipient”; all other standards 
will refer to “recipient.” 

 
 



 

Page | 3   

 
 

Purpose for Standards 
The purpose of the Standards is to: 

✓ Provide detail on participant eligibility; 
✓ Outline the allowable activities; and 
✓ Provide standards for documenting eligibility. 

 

For Subrecipients of Ventura County, this document is incorporated into the Specific Terms and 
Conditions (Exhibit A) of the signed agreement (hereinafter Contract) between the County and its 
Subrecipient.  Local policies and procedures are subject to change at any time. 

 

Overview of the HEARTH Act 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Homeless Emergency Assistance and 
Rapid Transition to Housing Act of 2009 (HEARTH Act) was signed into law on May 20, 2009. The 
HEARTH Act reauthorizes the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act of 1987, but with some 
important changes, including: 

 

The consolidation of HUD’s competitive grant programs, the Supportive Housing Program 
(SHP), Shelter Plus Care Program (SPC) and the Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Program; 

➢ The  revision of  the  Emergency  Shelter  Grants  Program  and  renaming  it  as  the  
Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program; 

➢ The creation of a Rural Housing Stability Assistance Program; 
➢ A change in HUD's definition of homelessness and chronic homelessness; 
➢ A simplified match requirement; 
➢ An increase in prevention resources; and, 
➢ An increased emphasis on performance. 

 

The HEARTH Act implementation is occurring in stages, including the publication of the following 
regulations: 

 

❖ Definition of Homeless (Final Rule) Docket No. FR–5333–F–02 
This final rule was published on December 5, 2011 and provided the definition of “homeless”, 
“disability”, and “developmental disability”. Additionally, the rule established clear 
recordkeeping requirements for verifying eligibility to receive assistance. 
 

❖ Defining “Chronically Homeless” (Final Rule) Docket No. FR–5809–F–01 
This final rule was effective on January 4, 2016, and HUD expected compliance with this 
definition for all new admissions as of January 16, 2016. The final rule changed the definition 
that was in effect in the CoC Program interim rule: key changes included requiring an individual 
or head of household to have been living in a place not meant for human habitation, in an 
emergency shelter, or in a safe haven for the last 12 months continuously or on at least four 
occasions in the last three years where those occasions cumulatively total at least 12 months; 
replacing the term “disabling condition” with “homeless individual with a disability”; and 
defining an occasion by a break of at least seven nights not residing in an emergency shelter, 
safe haven, or a place not meant for human habitation. The final rule also established 
recordkeeping requirements for documenting chronic homelessness. 
 
 

I. Introduction 



 

Page | 4   

❖ Emergency Solutions Grant (Interim Rule) 24 CFR § 576 
The interim rule revises the Emergency Shelter Grants Program and renames it the Emergency 
Solutions Grants Program to broaden existing emergency shelter and homelessness prevention 
activities and to add short- and medium-term rental assistance and support services to rapidly 
rehouse homeless people. There is now a greater emphasis on helping people quickly regain 
stability in permanent housing after experiencing a housing crisis and/or homelessness. The key 
changes that reflect this new emphasis are the expansion of the homeless prevention 
component and the addition of the rapid rehousing assistance component. 

 
❖ Conforming Amendments to the Consolidated Plan (Interim Rule) 24 CFR § 91 

This interim rule updated the annual action plan requirements, revising the homeless needs 
narrative to describe the local one-year goals and specific action steps for reducing and ending 
homelessness. In addition, the ESG narrative section was revised to include new requirements 
such as written standards for the provision of ESG assistance, performance standards for 
evaluating ESG activities, and a homeless outreach and consultation strategy. 

 

The annual report requirements were updated to include an evaluation of the jurisdiction’s 
progress in meeting its specific objectives in reducing and ending homelessness. The ESG 
narrative section was also revised to include additional reporting information on ESG, including 
the evaluation of the outcomes for ESG activities measured under the new performance 
standards developed. 

 

❖ Homeless Management Information System  
The HEARTH Act requires that C o C ,  a n d  ESG funded projects participate in the Homeless 
Management Information System (HMIS). The HMIS component varies between the CoCand 

ESG Program regulations. County policy is to share HMIS funds with Subrecipients. Assembly 
Bill 977 (AB 977), the State of California requires grantees of state funded homelessness 
programs to enter specific data elements related to individuals and families into their 
local Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). The data made available by these 
reporting standards will create a more accurate account of the individuals and families served 
by the homelessness response system. This data will result in a more comprehensive 
understanding of the effects of state funded homelessness programs and allow for better 
informed policy decisions and will allow Cal ICH and administering agencies and departments to 
track AB 977 compliance and develop reports from California’s Homeless Data Integration 
System (HDIS), a state data warehouse that integrates data from local HMIS systems. 

 

❖ Continuum of Care (Interim Rule) 24 CFR § 578 

The Continuum of Care (CoC) Interim Rule was published on July 31, 2012 and took effect on 
August 30, 2012. The purpose of the regulation is to: 

 
✓ Codify the CoC Planning Process; 
✓ Return individuals and families who experience homelessness to permanent housing in less 

than 30 days; 
✓ Consolidate the Supportive Housing Program (SHP), Shelter Plus Care Program (SPC) and the 

Section 8 Moderate Rehabilitation Program; 
✓ Promote a community wide commitment to the goal of ending homelessness; 
✓ Provide  funding  to  quickly  rehouse  homeless  individuals  and  families  while  minimizing 

trauma and dislocation; 
✓ Promote access to mainstream benefits; 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB977
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB977
https://www.hudexchange.info/programs/hmis/
https://bcsh.ca.gov/calich/hdis.html
https://bcsh.ca.gov/calich/hdis.html


 

Page | 5   

✓ Optimize self-sufficiency; 
✓ Provide funding to support the CoC structure & process; and 
✓ Codify the CoC structure & process. 

 

❖ Rural Housing Stability Assistance Program (Proposed Rule) 
The overall goal of the HEARTH Act is to reduce and ultimately end homelessness by reducing 
the duration of time people spend homeless and reducing recidivism back into 
homelessness. Currently, Ventura County has funding through the Emergency Solutions Grants 
Program and the Continuum of Care Program to undertake projects that work toward this goal. 

 

 
 

a. Emergency Solutions Grants Program 
The Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program is designed to respond to crisis and provide 
emergency assistance to prevent homelessness and enable homeless households to move 
toward independent living. ESG funds are authorized under the McKinney-Vento Homeless 
Assistance Act and are intended to help improve the quality of existing emergency shelters for 
the homeless, make additional shelters available, meet the costs of operating these facilities, 
rapidly rehouse homeless individuals and families, provide essential services to them, and to 
prevent homelessness. ESG projects will be required to assist people in moving to permanent 
housing and reduce the time spent in shelters and on the streets. 

 
Recent changes to ESG funding have further defined the purpose and expanded the breadth of 
activities and going forward, the funds will be used for a variety of assistance, including: 
S t r e e t  O u t r e a c h ,  Emergency Shelter, short- or medium-term Rental Assistance, 
Housing Search and Placement, and Housing Stability Case Management. The Street Outreach 
component provides immediate relief such as meals, clothing, medicines or transportation to 
medical appointments for vulnerable individuals and families living in the streets. The 
Homelessness Prevention component includes various housing relocation and stabilization 
services and short- and medium-term rental assistance. The Rapid Rehousing component 
includes similar services and assistance to help people who are homeless move quickly into 
permanent housing and achieve stability in that housing. The funds under this program are 
intended to target households who would be unsheltered but for this assistance. The County of 
Ventura and the City of Oxnard are recipients of HUD ESG Program funds and will administer 
this award for eligible agencies referred to as Subrecipients. The County of Ventura acts as the 
administrative entity for State of California ESG funds. All funded agencies are required to follow 
federal guidelines in the implementation of ESG funding. 
 
Policy on Project Selection 
The County will notify community members and key stakeholders that ESG funding is available 
and will publish applications on the Ventura County CoC (www.venturacoc.org) website with 
a deadline for project applications to be submitted to the County. The CoC Data Performance 
& Evaluation Committee scores projects locally and recommends projects for funding. The CoC 
Data recommendations are taken to the CoC Board for final recommendations and approved 
by the local entity administering this funding (County Board of Supervisors or City of Oxnard). 

 
 

 

II. Program Overviews 

http://www.venturacoc.org/


 

Page | 6   

b. Continuum of Care Program 
The Continuum of Care (CoC) Program consists of projects that provide housing and supportive 
services to formerly homeless individuals and families. The goal of projects funded under the 
CoC Program is to assist households with attaining and sustaining permanent housing as quickly 
as possible. In Ventura County, CoC Program funds are currently used to support various 
projects, including Permanent Supportive Housing and Rapid Rehousing. In addition to these 
allowable project components, the interim rule also allows funding to be used to provide, to 
a limited degree, Prevention. 

 
Ventura County is the Collaborative Applicant for the VCCoC. The County, along with non-profit 
entities, are directly awarded projects under the CoC Program. The County also passes funds 
on to subrecipients to carry out activities under the CoC Program. 

 
Policy on Project Selection 
Annually, HUD publishes a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the CoC Program 
competition. The County will notify community members and key stakeholders that the 
application is available and will publish all parts of the CoC Consolidated Application on the 
Ventura County CoC (www.venturacoc.org) website with a deadline for project applications 
to be submitted to the County. During this competitive process, the CoC develops objective 
scoring criteria based on the criteria from the NOFA and local priorities that are consistent 
with the Federal Strategic Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness. The CoC Data Performance 
& Evaluation Committee scores projects locally and recommends projects for inclusion in the 
application submitted to HUD. The CoC Board receives committee recommendations and makes 
final approval. The County shall notify project applicants in a timely manner, per the NOFA 
guidelines, whether the project application(s) will be included in the CoC Consolidated 
Application submission.  If a project is not recommended for funding, the County will notify the 
project applicant, in writing, of this decision. 
 

c. Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention Program  
The Homeless Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP) Program provides flexible funding to 
expand, develop, and continue efforts to end and prevent homelessness. HHAP funds will be used 
for a variety of assistance, including: delivery of permanent housing, rental assistance and rapid 
rehousing, incentives to landlords, homeless prevention and shelter diversion, interim sheltering, 
emergency shelters, new navigation centers, street outreach, outreach and coordination, 
operating subsidies, services coordination, and systems support. Eligible Uses may vary by HHAP 
Round, as mandated by the State Housing and Community Development (HCD) Department. 
 
The County of Ventura is the recipient of HHAP funds and will administer this award for eligible 
agencies referred to as Subrecipients. The County of Ventura acts as the administrative entity for 
State of California HHAP funds. All funded agencies are required to follow federal guidelines in the 
implementation of HHAP funding. 

 
Policy on Project Selection 
The County will notify community members and key stakeholders that HHAP funding is 
available v i a  e m a i l  t o  a l l  C o C  A l l i a n c e  m e m b e r s  and will publish applications on 
the Ventura County CoC (www.venturacoc.org) website with a deadline for project 
applications to be submitted to the County. The CoC Data Performance & Evaluation Committee 
scores project proposals locally and recommends projects for funding. The CoC Data 
recommendations are taken to the CoC Board for final review and approval. The County Board 



 

Page | 7   

of Supervisors accepts the HHAP grant and authorizes the County Executive Office to manage 
the HHAP funding as the administrative entity.  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The County and the Continuum of Care have been engaged in planning activities to: 
 
✓ Increase systems coordination among the various housing and service providers; 
✓ Improve access for participants; 
✓ Better target funding; and 
✓ Better address the housing and service needs in our community. 

 

The County, CoC, HHAP and ESG (Sub)/Recipients will coordinate and integrate, to the maximum extent 
practicable, CoC, ESG and HHAP funded activities as well as other homeless programs within the area 
covered by the Ventura County CoC with other mainstream housing, health, social services, 
employment, education, and youth programs, including those identified in 24 CFR § 576.400(b) and (c). 

 

a. Coordinated Entry and Assessment System 
The Continuum of Care’s Coordinated Entry System, Pathways to Home, has been developed in 
accordance with the HUD Continuum of Care Regulations. Participation in this system is 
mandatory for ESG, HHAP and CoC (Sub)/Recipients. See the Ventura County Continuum of Care: 
Coordinated Entry Process and Policies, incorporated herein by reference. 

 
The CoC uses the coordinated entry process to prioritize homeless persons within the CoC’s 
geographic area. Prioritization is based on a specific and definable set of criteria that are 
documented, made publicly available and applied consistently throughout the CoC for all 
populations. The CoC prioritization policies and procedures are consistent with CoC, HHAP and 
ESG written standards under 24 CFR 578(a) (9) and 24 CFR 576.4.  
 
The following criteria establish how homeless individuals/families will be prioritized for shelter 
and housing programs in the CoC. The VAT will be used by the Coordinated Entry Assessment 
Sites to assess individuals experiencing homelessness and guide recommendations for referrals. 
The first three serve as the primary methods of ranking individuals and the remaining two 
prioritizations serve as tie breakers if the first three prioritization methods result in tied rankings: 
 

1. Chronic Homeless Status: This first prioritization criteria focuses on those individuals 
with a disability who have experienced long-term or multiple episodes of homelessness 
and are generally those with the highest need and vulnerability. In addition, this 
population has been identified as being the largest user of homeless system resources. 
This will be determined by the documented length of time of homelessness (episodic or 
continuous) and the reported service needs of individuals including chronic health, 

These guidelines will be updated as necessary throughout the grant period and will continue to expand 
and include a variety of project components. The County reserves the right to revise the guideline as 
deemed necessary and will to the extent practicable or as required by HUD, consult with the Ventura 
County Continuum of Care, ESG subrecipients, CoC and HHAP recipients/subrecipients, homeless or 
formerly homeless or other interested parties. 

III.  Coordination Among Providers 



 

Page | 8   

mental health, substance use or other service needs that impact vulnerability.  Persons 
with the document longest length of time homeless and documented highest service 
needs will receive first priority. 

2. VAT Score: This second prioritization factor targets the most vulnerable clients in the 
homeless system as determined by their total VAT score. VAT score will be utilized in 
making recommendations on the prioritization list in combination with the factors in the 
section above. 

3. Length of Time Homeless: The third prioritization factor is the length of time an 
individual has experienced homelessness, giving priority to the person that has 
experienced homelessness the longest.  

4. Service Level Needs: The fourth prioritization factor targets individuals with medical 
needs who will be prioritized when they have behavioral health conditions or histories 
of substance use which may either mask or exacerbate medical conditions.  

5. Date of VAT Assessment: The final prioritization criteria will be the date of the 
individual’s assessment, giving priority to the earliest date of assessment. 

 
Prioritizing chronically homeless persons in CoC program-funded Permanent Supportive Housing 
beds dedicated or prioritized by persons experiencing chronic homelessness: 

1 (a) First Priority–Homeless Individuals and Families with a Disability experiencing chronic 
homelessness that is based on the length of time in which an individual or family has 
resided in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or an emergency shelter 
and the severity of the individual or families’ service needs. 
(b)If there is not a person that meets specific program eligibility criteria of a target 
population (i.e.: mental illness), the agency would then accept the next prioritized person 
on the list.  This means, if the CoC has served everyone with self-reported target disability 
(i.e. mental illness), the agency may be referred another person that meets the chronic 
homeless status (i.e. with a different disability). 
 

Prioritizing when there are no chronically homeless individuals and families within the VCCoC’s 
geographic area: 

1. First Priority-Homeless Individuals and Families with a Disability with long-term or 

multiple episodes of homelessness (may not meet chronic homelessness definition) and 

Severe Service Needs.  

2. Second Priority–Homeless Individuals and Families with a Disability with Severe 

Service Needs.  

3. Third Priority—Homeless Individuals and Families with a Disability Coming from 

Places Not Meant for Human Habitation, Safe Haven, or Emergency Shelter Without Severe 

Service Needs 

4. Fourth Priority–Homeless Individuals and Families with a Disability Coming from 

Transitional Housing 

Unsheltered persons receive first priority for emergency shelter and rapid re-housing. In order 
to expedite referrals in placing individuals with emergent needs, a direct referral for Transitional 
Housing can occur if there are three or more vacancies, with a case update at the next case 
conference meeting. 
 

 
 



 

Page | 9   

b. Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity 
 

i. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing 
Recipients shall market housing and supportive services to eligible persons regardless of 
race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, familial status, or handicap; and, shall provide 
program applicants and participants with information, in writing, on their rights and 
remedies under applicable federal, state, and local fair housing and civil rights laws. 24 CFR 
§ 578.93(c). Subrecipients shall submit these written materials to the County as an 
attachment to the Subrecipient’s Management Plan, as required by the Statement of Work 
(Exhibit B) of the Contract, effective FY2013. The County shall review these documents for 
potential violations of fair housing laws and shall assist Subrecipients in coming into 
compliance with this requirement. If the County encounters a condition or action that 
impedes fair housing choice, the County shall work with the applicable jurisdiction(s) that 
provided the Certification of Consistency with the Consolidated Plan to address and remedy 
the violation(s). 24 CFR § 578.93(c)(2). 

 

ii. Integration and Accessibility 
Housing and supportive services must be offered in an integrated manner, such that persons 
with disabilities may enjoy a meaningful life within the community. See Olmstead v. L.C. 
(527 U.S. 581 (1999) 138 F.3d 893). Recipients shall offer housing and supportive services to 
enable individuals with disabilities to interact with nondisabled persons to the fullest extent 
possible. 24 CFR § 578.93(d). Reasonable accommodations and modifications must be 
offered when appropriate. See Reasonable Accommodations and Modifications below. 

 

iii. Reasonable Accommodations and Modifications for Persons with Disabilities 
Providers are required to provide reasonable accommodations and modifications for 
persons with disabilities. Reasonable accommodation is defined as changing the rules, 
policies, or services so that a person with a disability has equal opportunity to fully use and 
enjoy a dwelling unit or common space. Allowing a person with a disability to have a 
service animal is an example of a reasonable accommodation. A reasonable modification 
is defined as modifying a structure so that a person with a disability has the full 
enjoyment and use of the housing and related facilities. Installing a grab bar in the 
bathroom for a person with a disability is an example of a reasonable modification. 
For federally funded housing, the p r o v i d e r  bears the burden of paying for the 
modification(s). Providers  must inform applicants during the intake process of their 
right to request a reasonable accommodation or modification. 

 

iv. Discrimination Based on Household Composition 

A recipient receiving funds under the ESG or CoC Programs cannot discriminate against a 
group of persons presenting as a family based on the composition of the family, the age of 
any members of the family, the disability status of any members of the family, marital 
status, actual or perceived sexual orientation, or gender identity. However, housing may be 
limited to families with children who are under the age of 18. 
 
Refer to the Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs Regardless of Sexual Orientation or 
Gender Identity Final Rule, “Equal Access Rule,” (77 FR 5662) and HUD’s Frequently Asked 
Question regarding the definition of “family,” 
https://www.hudexchange.info/faqs/1529/how-is-the-definition-of-family-that-was- 
included. 

http://www.hudexchange.info/faqs/1529/how-is-the-definition-of-family-that-was-


 

Page | 10   

v. Preventing Involuntary Family Separation 
In an effort to maintain family unity, for housing serving families with children, the age and 
gender of a child under age 18 shall not be used as a basis for denying any family’s 
admission. 24 CFR § 578.93(e). Additionally, recipients may not deny admission to any 
member of the family (e.g., 15-year old son).  If a family is involuntarily separated for any 
reason, a report must be sent to the Ventura County Continuum of Care staff.  Please 
contact Jennifer Harkey at 805-658-4342 or Jennifer.harkey@ventura.org  

 

vi. Anti-Discrimination Policy 
CoC, HHAP and ESG funded providers shall not discriminate on the basis of any protected 
characteristic, including race, ethnicity, color, immigration status, national origin, language, 
justice system involvement, ancestry, religion, sex, familial status, age, gender identity, 
LGBTIQA+ (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, intersex, queer/questioning +) status, 
veteran status, marital status, domestic or sexual violence victim status, or sensory, mental, 
or physical disability. Ventura County CoC will ensure staff and contracted service providers 
are trained on Anti-Discrimination policies and procedures.  

 

vii. Guidance for Placement for Transgender Persons in Single-Sex Emergency 
Shelters and Other Facilities 
Recipients operating ESG-single-sex emergency shelters (or other ESG,HHAP andCoC ) must 
follow HUD’s guidance regarding placement for transgender persons, HUD Notice CPD- 15-
02, and the Equal Access Rule. 
 
A recipient that makes decisions about eligibility for or placement into single-sex 
emergency shelters (or other facilities) must place an applicant or participant in a shelter 
(or facility) that corresponds to the gender with which the person identifies, taking health 
and safety concerns into consideration. This placement should not be based on complaints 
of another person when the sole stated basis of the complaint is an applicant’s or 
participant’s non- conformance with gender stereotypes. A recipient must not ask an 
applicant or participant to provide anatomical information or documentation, physical or 
medical evidence of the person’s gender identity. The recipient must take reasonable steps 
to address safety and privacy concerns; the recipient should provide for privacy in 
bathrooms and dressing areas. For instance, recipients may install privacy curtains or 
partitions. 

 

viii. Prioritized Subpopulations and Fair Housing Implications 
Recipients shall comply with applicable civil rights laws, including the Fair Housing Act. 
Within this framework, these standards establish subpopulations to be prioritized for 
housing and services that align with the identified needs of the local community and the 
goals of the Federal Strategic Plan to End Homelessness. Subpopulations may be prioritized 
as long as doing so does not discriminate against any protected class under federal 
nondiscrimination laws in 24 CFR § 5.105; subpopulations may also be prioritized according 
to who needs the specialized supportive services that are offered by the project. 24 CFR § 
578.93(b)(2) and (7). 

 
1. Dedicated versus Prioritized 

Projects and/or beds that are dedicated to serving a specific subpopulation must 
continue serving only this subpopulation. (For instance, a Permanent Supportive 



 

Page | 11   

Housing project that is dedicated to serving chronically homeless individuals must 
continue serving only chronically homeless individuals). Projects and/or beds that are 
not currently dedicated to serving a specific subpopulation must give the designated 
subpopulations priority for admission, in the order established by these standards, when 
a bed becomes available through turnover. This means that if two otherwise eligible 
individuals are seeking admission into the program, one who falls within the designated 
prioritized subpopulation and one who does not, the individual who is in the designated 
prioritized subpopulation must be given priority for admission. For both dedicated and 
prioritized beds, if there are no persons on a waiting list or applying for entrance to 
the program who fall within the dedicated or first priority subpopulation, recipients 
should not hold the unit vacant, but instead should serve the next prioritized 
subpopulation who may benefit from the services being provided. 

 

2. Fair Housing Implications 
The Local Standards establish priority subpopulations by project type (i.e. Permanent 
Supportive Housing); recipients may not set more restrictive priorities unless a federal 
statute or executive order specifically authorizes this limitation, or  unless expressly 
authorized by 24 CFR § 578.93(b)(1) to (7). For instance, while a Permanent Supportive 
Housing project may prioritize chronically homeless persons with a qualifying disability 
per the Local Standards, beds may not be reserved to persons with a specific disability 
(i.e. physical disability). If an individual who is otherwise qualified but who does not 
have a physical disability seeks admission and would benefit from the services offered, 
this person may not be excluded from the project. Alternatively, for example, recipients 
may reserve beds for persons with HIV/AIDS if the housing also receives funding from 
the Housing Opportunities for People with AIDS program (HOPWA). 
 

3. Anti-Discrimination Policy 
Ventura County CoC partner agencies shall make housing available to all otherwise eligible 
individuals regardless of actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, or marital 
status. Agencies will ensure equal access to programs for all individuals and their families; 
provide housing, services, and/or accommodations in accordance with a clients’ gender 
identity; and determine eligibility without regard to actual or perceived sexual orientation, 
gender identity, or marital status. 

 

ix. Domestic Violence Victims & Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) 
An Emergency Transfer Plan (ETP), which is the written policy defining the process of 
allowing victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking to 
request and receive a transfer from their current, unsafe unit new, safe unit, will be made 
available upon request by Victim Service Providers (see Attachment J). 
 
The leases, subleases, or occupancy agreements of applicants and tenants assisted under 
the CoC or ESG Programs must include information and addendums describing pertinent 
and relevant VAWA protections. These addendums may (but are not required to) be 
written to expire if/when the participant is no longer receiving assistance (CoC and ESG). 
 
If an applicant or participant otherwise qualifies for assistance from any other CoC- or ESG 
funded project, including but not limited to CoC-funded safe havens and ESG-funded 
emergency shelters, they cannot be denied admission to, denied assistance under, 
terminated from participation in, or evicted from the project on the basis or as a direct 



 

Page | 12   

result of the fact that they are or have been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking. 

 

x. Marketing and Outreach 
The Continuum of Care has developed marketing strategies for the purpose of fair and 
equal access to services. Outreach includes information flyers available at services sites and 
public locations, direct outreach to people on the street, announcements at public 
meetings, quarterly educational training to service providers, updated CoC website with 
resource materials, and a contract with 2-1-1 to assist with the coordinated entry process 
and refer people to the appropriate services. The coordinated entry process is linked to 
street outreach efforts to prioritize people in the same manner as any other person seeking 
services through other means. 

 

 
 

In order to best meet the needs of the community and in accordance with 24 CFR § 576 and 24 CFR 
§ 578, the following policies and procedures have been established to ensure consistent practices 
in regard to admission, service requirements, duration of assistance, and exiting for all homeless 
housing projects within the Ventura County Continuum of Care. All projects must incorporate the 
Coordinated Entry prioritization standards for the project type. Refer to the Coordinated Entry 
Assessment Policies and Procedures, which are incorporated by reference. 

 

a. Emergency Shelter / Safe Haven 
The overarching goal of shelter projects is to reduce the time spent homeless.  Emergency 
Shelter funds are intended to respond to crises and provide short-term emergency assistance 
to enable homeless households to move toward independent living by obtaining permanent 
housing as quickly as possible. Safe Havens serve a hard-to-reach homeless population with 
severe mental illness with the goal of permanent housing placement. 

 

i. Admission 
To the extent practicable, recipients will prioritize individuals and families who are currently 
living in Ventura County who have an identified prior residence as living in places not 
designed for, or not ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation including a car, 
a park, an abandoned building, a bus or train station, an airport, or a campground. 
Recipients that are defined as Victim Service Providers will exclusively serve individuals 
and families who are fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence. See Section IV, 
Victim Service Providers, and Table 6.2, Category 4, for additional details. In accordance 
with VAWA, no individual or family may be denied admission to or removed from the ES on 
the bases or as a direct result of the fact that the individual or family is or has been a victim 
of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, if the individual or family 
otherwise qualifies for admission or occupancy.  If an unaccompanied minor youth enters an 
emergency shelter, the shelter provider must notify Children & Family Services within 24 
hours and follow the Ventura County Youth Emergency Shelter guidelines. All participants 
served in Emergency Shelter must meet the appropriate eligibility requirements as 
described in Section VI, Participant Eligibility. Safe Haven projects serve literally homeless 
persons with severe and persistent mental illness, as defined by the CoC Program interim rule.  

 

 
 

IV.  Policies & Procedures 



 

Page | 13   

 
ii. Service Requirement 

Each participant will be assessed to identify needs and barriers to obtain housing and 
increase self-sufficiency. An initial evaluation and assessment must be completed in HMIS 
at program entry, including verifying and documenting eligibility. If a participant’s stay 
in Emergency Shelter is longer than 30 days, then the recipient must reassess and 
document the need for continued services every 30 days while the participant continues 
in shelter. The reassessment must show that the participant needs additional time in 
shelter to obtain other housing, and would be unsheltered without ESG assistance. Safe 
Haven projects must provide 24-hour residence for eligible persons for an unspecified period, 
have an overnight capacity limited to 25 or fewer persons, and provide low-demand services 
and referrals for the residents. 

 
Obtaining appropriate housing, particularly permanent housing, and addressing the most 
immediate and manageable barriers is the priority for emergency shelters and safe havens. 
Given the expected short-period of assistance in emergency shelters, the focus is on those 
barriers that can be addressed during the timeframe of assistance. Each participant in 
both emergency shelters and safe haven projects will have a housing stability/service plan 
that may include longer-term solutions to other barriers or risk-factors that might 
destabilize a household after assistance has ended. See Section XIV, Recordkeeping 
Requirements. This plan is to be completed at program entry and updated at least every 30 
days for Emergency Shelter. The plan will be derived from the assessment and include at 
a minimum, housing stability goals and other goals as appropriate to the essential 
services identified in the Subrecipient’s Application and Statement of Work (Exhibit B) of 
the Contract. Each participant will participate in developing her/his own individualized 
housing stability/service plan to obtain housing and maintain housing stability after 
funded assistance ends. 

 
Recipients may use their current evaluation and assessment form, reassessment form, 
tracking method, and housing stability/service plan, or develop new forms or other tracking 
methods. The evaluation, assessment, reassessment, housing stability/service plan, and 
goals must be documented according to the recipient’s protocols for documentation, and at 
a minimum must be in a format that is readily available for monitoring. Essential services 
must be tied directly to the needs and barriers identified in the assessment and recipients 
are encouraged to build on the participants’ strengths to attain housing stability and 
increase self-sufficiency. 

 

iii. Lease Requirement 
Participants must not be required to sign a lease or occupancy agreement. For additional 
information, refer to Section XIII, Housing Requirements. 

 

iv. Duration of Assistance 
Emergency Shelters must operate a maximum 90-day project model. To the extent 
practicable, participants will be assisted in obtaining housing within 30 days of entry into the 
emergency shelter. All shelters will strive to reduce the average length of stay. However, 
participants may stay longer in order to prevent them from becoming homeless, on the 
streets, or other places not meant for human habitation. Safe Haven projects must provide 
24-hour residence for eligible persons for an unspecified period and strive for permanent 
housing placement. 



 

Page | 14   

The County works with the Continuum of Care community stakeholders to develop policies 
for the maximum allowable length of stay in emergency shelters as well as to identify 
benchmarks to enhance efficient utilization of the homeless services system. These policies 
and benchmarks will be updated during the applicable funding rounds. Updates will be 
communicated through revisions to these Local Standards and in Subrecipient contracts. 

 

v. Exiting 
To the degree practicable, participants exiting emergency shelter a n d  s a f e  h a v e n s  will 
be assisted in accessing housing that best fits their needs, with a preference for assisting 
participants to access permanent housing. Exits may also include participants entering 
treatment facilities to address mental health, substance abuse, or medical needs; recipients 
will coordinate with the treatment provider to support a successful transition.  
When possible, housing options or other resources should be provided at exit, so that 
participants have knowledge of where to go when treatment is completed. 

 

vi. Performance Measures 
Emergency Shelter and Safe Haven programs will be evaluated on HUD’s System 
Performance Measures and reported on a quarterly basis to ensure they are operating 
efficiently. The CoC staff will lead the evaluation efforts, with guidance from the CoC Data 
Committee.  

 
System Performance Measure 1: Length of Time Persons Remain Homeless 
System performance measure one evaluates length of time homeless, measuring the 
average and median length of time people spend in homeless situations (including 
Emergency Shelters / Safe Havens). This measure focuses on whether that time period is 
getting shorter, staying the same, or getting longer.  

 
System Performance Measure 7: Successful Placement in Permanent Housing 
System performance measure seven focuses on how successful emergency shelter projects 
are at helping people move off the “street” and towards permanent housing. This is 
important because people living on the street and in places not meant for human habitation 
are at an increased risk of death. This measure calculates the percent of Emergency Shelter 
and Safe Haven clients who have exited to a permanent housing destination as recorded in 
HMIS during the report period. The measure is looking for an increase in the percentage of 
people who exit to permanent housing destinations from an emergency shelter or safe 
haven project during the reporting period. 

 

b. Transitional Housing 
The policies and procedures in this Section b apply only to Transitional Housing that is filled 
through Pathways to Home. 
 

i. Admission  
To the extent practicable, recipients will prioritize individuals and families who are 
currently living in Ventura County; cannot be more appropriately served by another 
program or system of care; have an identified prior residence as living in places not 
designed for, or not ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation including a car, a 
park, an abandoned building, a bus or train station, an airport, or a campground; lack a 
support network and have no other options or resources for housing. Transitional Housing 



 

Page | 15   

is reserved for persons with high barriers who require longer-term interventions. All 
participants served in Transitional Housing must meet the appropriate eligibility 
requirements as described in Section VI, Participant Eligibility. 

 

ii. Service Requirement 
For Transitional Housing projects, supportive services must be made available to participants 
throughout the duration of their residence in the project. Services must be necessary to 
assist participants to obtain and maintain permanent housing. Each participant must have 
an individual support plan in place, derived from recipients’ ongoing, at least annual, 
assessment of participant needs and services must be adjusted accordingly. See Section 
XIV, Recordkeeping Requirements. 

 
 

iii. Lease Requirement 
Participants must sign a lease or occupancy agreement that is for a term of at least one (1) 
month but no more than twenty-four (24) months and cannot be extended. For additional 
information, refer to Section XIII, Housing Requirements. 

 

iv. Duration of Assistance 
Transitional Housing facilitates the movement of homeless households to permanent 
housing within 24 months of entry. Efforts should be made to move persons to permanent 
housing within 6 months of entering transitional housing. Services may also be provided to 
former residents of Transitional Housing for no more than 6 months after leaving 
Transitional Housing to assist their adjustment to independent living. 

 

v. Exiting 
The sole purpose of Transitional Housing is to assist participants to obtain permanent 
housing. Except in extenuating circumstances, participants will exit transitional housing to 
permanent housing within 24 months. 

 

c. Homelessness Prevention (ESG/HHAP Only) 
Homelessness Prevention  is  intended  to  prevent  households  from  moving  into  emergency 
shelter or other homeless situations. HHAP Rounds 1-4 are intended to support households at 
imminent risk of homelessness, as defined in Section 578.3 of Title 24 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations however, HHAP Round 5 may also serve households at risk and requires 
prioritization of households with incomes at or below 30 percent of the area median income, 
who pay more than 50 percent of their income in housing costs, and who meet criteria for being 
at highest risk of homelessness and those at imminent risk of homelessness. 

 

i. Admission 
Prevention assistance will be prioritized for individuals and families who are currently living 
in Ventura County, cannot be more appropriately served by another program or system of 
care, lack  a  support  network  and  have  no  other  options  or  resources  for  housing. 
Prevention projects must collect documentation that participants would become homeless 
for this assistance. All participants served under Prevention must meet the appropriate 
eligibility requirements as described in Section VI, Participant Eligibility. 

 
 

 
 



 

Page | 16   

ii. Service Requirement 
Prevention projects must require the participant to develop a plan on how they will retain 
permanent housing after assistance ends and to meet with a case manager not less than once 
per month* to assist the participant in maintaining long-term housing stability as set forth 
in 24 CFR § 576.401 (e)(1)(i). See Section XIV, Recordkeeping Requirements. 
*Exception: Recipients that also receive funding under the Violence Against Women Act of 
1994 (VAWA) or the Family Violence Prevention and Services Act (FVSP) are exempt from 
the requirement to meet with participants monthly because these programs prohibit 
making housing conditional on the participant’s acceptance of services. See § 576.401(e)(2). 
See also Victim Service Providers. 

 

Re-evaluation of eligibility is required for Prevention; re-evaluation must occur at least every 
three (3) months. Re-evaluations must be documented in each participant’s file and 
demonstrate that the participant lacks sufficient resources and support networks necessary to 
retain housing without assistance. Re-evaluations must also demonstrate that the household’s 
annual income is less than or equal to 30% of the Area Median Income (AMI). HHAP Rounds 1-
4 do not have income requirements, however, HHAP Round 5 must also demonstrate that the 
household’s annual income is less than or equal to 30% of the Area Median Income (AMI) who 
pay more than 50 percent of their income in housing costs, and who meet criteria for being at 
highest risk of homelessness and those at imminent risk of homelessness. 
 

Projects must follow evaluation and participant eligibility rules and regulations as set forth 
in 24 CFR § 576.401(a) through (e). 

 
All supportive services will be provided as necessary to help participants maintain 
permanent housing, or move as quickly as possible into permanent housing and achieve 
stability in that housing. Supportive services are limited with ESG funds and may be used 
only to provide housing relocation and stabilization services. Prevention assistance must be 
provided in accordance with the housing relocation and stabilization services requirements 
in 24 CFR § 576.104 and 576.105, the short- and medium-term rental assistance 
requirements in 24 CFR § 576.106, and the written standards and procedures established 
under 24 CFR § 576.400. 

 
Rent Subsidy Models 
Prevention funds are used to assist participants to remain in permanent housing and regain 
stability. Or, where the current housing does not meet the participant’s needs, the 
participant may move to more suitable housing. Funds may be used to provide short-term 
(up to 3 months) or medium-term (4 to 24 months) rental assistance over a 3-year period. 
Funding requirements may be further limited or defined by the Ventura County Continuum 
of  Care  in  NOFA’s  or  RFP’s  but  at  a  minimum,  all  participants  served in Prevention 
projects must have an identified rent subsidy model prior to receiving assistance or moving 
into a unit and this must be consistent throughout their term of service. The steps must be 
known (and documented) in advance and act as deadlines for increasing income. Whether 
the rent subsidy is based on participants’ income or a fixed rate, the subsidy declines in 
“steps” until the participants assume full responsibility for monthly housing costs either by: 
- Using a fixed timeline; or 
- When the participant has reached specific goals 

 



 

Page | 17   

Rent assistance will be graduated, so the participants’ share of rent will increase until they 
pay full rent. Should participants experience a situation that prevents them from achieving 
the graduated subsidy goal, then the subsidy may be extended or adjusted with a revised 
graduated subsidy established. Participants must be in compliance with the program and 
working on their housing stability plan to be considered for an extension or revised 
graduated subsidy plan. 

 
Participants may receive up to two subsequent financial assistance payments after their 
graduated subsidy has ended if they were compliant with their housing stability plan and 
they experienced a hardship that prevented them from making their payment. Hardships 
may include a job loss or reduction in pay/hours, medical expenses, or other similar 
situations. The participant must not have exited the program to receive assistance. However, 
at no time may the rental assistance exceed 24 months in any three (3) year period. 

 

iii. Lease Requirement 
For ESG/HHAP-Homelessness Prevention, participants must sign a legally binding, written 
lease agreement; however, there are no requirements regarding a minimum term or other 
standards. For additional information, refer to Section XIII, Housing Requirements. 

 
iv. Duration of Assistance 

For participants seeking permanent housing, housing stability case management may not 
exceed 30 days. Once permanent housing is obtained, rental assistance may not exceed 24 
months during any three (3) year period, although the assistance may be further limited or 
defined by the Ventura County Continuum of Care. A graduated subsidy model must be 
identified and applied to all participants as outlined above in Section c.ii, Service 
Requirement. 

 

v. Exiting 
Prior to the assistance ending, a plan must be in place that identifies how the participant will 
maintain stability in permanent housing. If the participant is not yet able to retain 
permanent housing, they will be re-assessed. Participants may receive additional assistance 
to prevent them from becoming homeless, on the streets, or other places not meant for 
human habitation. However, participants may not receive more than 24 months of rental 
assistance in any three (3) year period. 

 

vi. Performance Measures 

Homeless Prevention programs will be evaluated on HUD’s System Performance Measures 
and reported on a quarterly basis to ensure they are operating efficiently. The CoC staff will 
lead the evaluation efforts, with guidance from the CoC Data Committee.  

 
System Performance Measure 5: Number of Persons who Become Homeless for the First 
Time 
 
System performance measure five evaluates the number of persons who become homeless 
for the first time during the reporting period. This measure focuses on whether that number 
is getting larger, staying the same, or getting smaller. The goal of this measure is to reduce 
every year the number of people who become homeless for the first time. 

 
 



 

Page | 18   

 

d. Rapid Rehousing 
Rapid Rehousing is a type of permanent housing that offers supportive services, as needed, 
and/or short-term (up to three (3) months) or medium-term (three (3) to 24 months) rental 
assistance in order to help homeless individuals or families move as quickly as possible into 
permanent housing and achieve stability. 24 CFR § 578.37(a)(1)(ii). Participants may locate 
housing of their choice in the private rental market within Ventura County. 

 

Rapid Rehousing projects must comply with the Office of Community and Homeless Services 
(OCHS) Rapid Rehousing Guide, which is incorporated herein by reference. 
 

i. Admission 
Rapid Rehousing assistance will be prioritized for individuals and families who are currently 
living in Ventura County, cannot be more appropriately served by another program  or 
system of care, lack a support network and have no other options or resources for housing. 
Persons who have been homeless previously, have received Prevention assistance in the 
past, or have a history of chronic homelessness will be prioritized. Rapid Rehousing projects 
must collect documentation that participants would become homeless but for this 
assistance. In addition to the general priority established above, Rapid Rehousing assistance 
will be prioritized for individuals and families with the highest vulnerability score based on a 
Coordinated Entry Prioritization Assessment. Homeless veteran households will be further 
prioritized. All participants served under Rapid Rehousing must meet the appropriate 
eligibility requirements as described in Section VI, Participant Eligibility, and as further 
described in the Rapid Rehousing Guide. 

 

ii. Service Requirement 
Refer to the Rapid Rehousing Guide. 

 

iii. Lease Requirement 
Refer to the Rapid Rehousing Guide. For CoC-Rapid Rehousing, participants must sign a lease 
that is for an initial term of one (1) year, that is terminable only for cause, and that 
automatically renews upon expiration (goes month-to-month). For ESG-Rapid Rehousing, 
participants must sign a legally binding, written lease agreement; however, there are no 
requirements regarding a minimum term or other standards. For additional information, 
refer to Section XIII Housing Requirements. 

 

iv. Duration of Assistance 
Refer to the Rapid Rehousing Guide. 

 

v. Exiting 
Refer to the Rapid Rehousing Guide. 

 
vi. Performance Measures 

Rapid Rehousing programs will be evaluated on HUD’s System Performance Measures and 
reported on a quarterly basis to ensure they are operating efficiently. The CoC staff will lead 
the evaluation efforts, with guidance from the CoC Data Committee.  

 
 



 

Page | 19   

 
System Performance Measure 7: Successful placements to permanent housing 
destinations. 

 
System performance measure seven focuses on how successful Rapid Rehousing projects are 
at helping people exit to permanent housing. This measure is looking for an increase in the 
percentage of people who exit to positive destinations from a Rapid Rehousing project 
during the reporting period. 

 

e. Permanent Supportive Housing (CoC/HHAP only) 
Permanent Supportive Housing provides assistance to individuals with disabilities and families in 
which one adult or child has a disability. The policies and procedures in this Section e apply to all 
Permanent Supportive Housing within the Ventura County Continuum of Care. 

 

i. Admission 
Permanent Supportive Housing will be prioritized for families and individuals currently 
residing in Ventura County; who are and have been living in places not designed for, or not 
ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation including a car, a park, an abandoned 
building, a bus or train station, an airport, or a campground; who cannot be more 
appropriately served by another program or system of care and have no other options or 
resources for housing; and,  who  meet the criteria of  chronic homelessness. Permanent 
Supportive Housing projects will also be prioritized for individuals and families with the 
highest vulnerability based on the Coordinated Entry System (CES) Prioritization Policy. All 
participants served in Permanent Supportive Housing must meet the appropriate eligibility 
requirements as described in Section VI, Participant Eligibility. 

 

In addition to the general priority established above, Permanent Supportive 
Housing projects will utilize the following order of priority based on HUD Notice: 
https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/notice-cpd-16-11-prioritizing-
persons-experiencing-chronic-homelessness-and-other-vulnerable-homeless-persons-in-
psh.pdf  

 

Severe Service Needs 
The most severe service needs, which should be identified and verified through data-
driven methods, means that at least one (1) of the following is true: 

- History of  high  utilization  of  crisis  services,  which  include  but  are  not  limited  
to, emergency rooms, jails, and psychiatric facilities; or 

- Significant  health  or  behavioral  health  challenges  or  functional  impairments  
which require a significant level of support in order to maintain permanent housing. 

 
The determination must not be based on a specific diagnosis or disability type, but only 
on the severity of needs of the individual. Refer to the nondiscrimination and equal 
opportunity requirements in 24 CFR 5.105 (a). 
 
If no chronically homeless individuals or families are on the waiting list or applying 
for entrance to the program, Permanent Supportive Housing projects will prioritize 
homeless persons with disabilities who have been residing on the streets or in 
emergency shelter on less than four (4) separate occasions in the last three (3) years, 
but where the cumulative total length of the occasions equals at least 12 months. If no 

https://www.venturacoc.org/pathways-to-home-documents/
https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/notice-cpd-16-11-prioritizing-persons-experiencing-chronic-homelessness-and-other-vulnerable-homeless-persons-in-psh.pdf
https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/notice-cpd-16-11-prioritizing-persons-experiencing-chronic-homelessness-and-other-vulnerable-homeless-persons-in-psh.pdf
https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/notice-cpd-16-11-prioritizing-persons-experiencing-chronic-homelessness-and-other-vulnerable-homeless-persons-in-psh.pdf


 

Page | 20   

such individuals or families are on the waiting list or applying for entrance to the 
program, Permanent Supportive Housing projects will then utilize the following order of 
priority: 
1. Homeless persons with a disability and the most severe service needs. 

Persons in a place not meant for human habitation, safe haven, or emergency 
shelter, with the most severe service needs as defined in the paragraph above. 

 
2. Homeless persons with a  disability  with  a  long  period  of  continuous  or  

episodic homelessness. 
Persons in a place not meant for human habitation, safe haven, or emergency 
shelter continuously for at least six (6) months or on at least three (3) separate 
occasions in the last three (3) years where the cumulative total is at least six (6) 
months. 

 
3. Homeless persons with a disability coming from places not meant for human 

habitation, safe havens, or emergency shelters. 
 

4. Homeless persons with a disability coming from transitional housing. 
Persons that entered transitional housing directly from a place not meant for 
human habitation, safe haven, or emergency shelter. 

 

ii. Service Requirement 
Permanent Supportive Housing projects must offer voluntary supportive services for 
the participants that enable them to live as independently as is practicable throughout 
the duration of their residence in the project. Each participant must have an 
individual support plan in place, derived from recipients’ ongoing, at least annual, 
assessment of participants’ needs and services must be adjusted accordingly. See 
Section XIV, Recordkeeping Requirements. Services must be necessary to assist 
participants obtain and maintain housing. 

 

iii. Lease Requirement 
Participants must sign a lease that is for an initial term of one (1) year, that is terminable 
only for cause, and that automatically renews upon expiration (goes month-to-month). For 
additional information, refer to Section XIII Housing Requirements. 

 

iv. Duration of Assistance 
There is no designated length of stay for participants of this type of housing. 

 
Participants receiving rental assistance are permitted to be out of their unit for the purpose 
of brief institutional stays (jail, hospital, treatment) for a period not to exceed 90 days per 
occurrence. 

 

v. Exiting 
Permanent Supportive Housing is intended to be available to participants for as long as it 
provides housing assistance that meets their needs. Successful exits from Permanent 
Supportive Housing include: 

 
- Owned by client, no ongoing housing subsidy 
- Owned by client, with ongoing housing subsidy 



 

Page | 21   

- Exiting to another permanent supportive housing program 
- Rental by client, no ongoing housing subsidy 
- Rental by client, other (non-VASH) ongoing housing subsidy 
- Staying or living with family or friends, for a permanent tenure 
- Exiting with a VASH subsidy 

 

vi. Performance Measures 
Permanent Supportive Housing programs will be evaluated on HUD’s System Performance 
Measures and reported on a quarterly basis to ensure they are operating efficiently. The CoC 
staff will lead the evaluation efforts, with guidance from the CoC Data Committee.  

 
System Performance Measure 2: The extent to which persons who exit homelessness from 
permanent housing destination return to homelessness 

 
System performance measure two evaluates recidivism, measuring the percent of returns to 
homelessness in people who exited to permanent housing. Specifically, this measure looks at 
returns over three time periods as well as the overall number of returns over two years:  

• Number returning to homelessness in less than 6 months 

• Number returning to homelessness from 6 to 12 months 

• Number returning to homelessness from 13 to 24 months 

• Total number of returns to homelessness over 2 years 
 

System Performance Measure 4: Employment and income growth for homeless persons 
 

System performance measure four focuses on the increase in the percent of adults who 
gain or increase employment or non-employment cash income over time. 

 
System Performance Measure 7: Successful placement in or retention of permanent 
housing 

 
System performance measure seven focuses on how successful Permanent Supportive 
Housing projects are at helping people exit to or remain in permanent housing. This 
measure is looking for an increase in the percentage of people who remain in a Permanent 
Supportive Housing project during the reporting period. 

 

f. Street Outreach 
Street Outreach is intended to serve unsheltered homeless individuals and families with a focus 
on achieving placement into permanent housing. The policies and procedures in this Section f 
apply to all Street Outreach within the Ventura County Continuum of Care. 
 

i. Admission 
Street outreach will be for families and individuals currently residing in Ventura County; who 
are and have been living in places not designed for, or not ordinarily used as, a regular 
sleeping accommodation including a car, a park, an abandoned building, a bus or train 
station, an airport, or a campground. All participants served in Street Outreach must meet 
the appropriate eligibility requirements as described in Section VI, Participant Eligibility. 

 
 

 



 

Page | 22   

ii. Service Requirement 
Street Outreach program staff engage unsheltered homeless individuals and families for the 
purpose of providing immediate support, intervention, and connections with homeless 
assistance programs, mainstream social services and housing programs. The staff will utilize 
the Vulnerability Assessment Tool (VAT) to determine the level of need and assist with 
referrals to services.  

 
Essential services must be tied directly to the needs and barriers identified in the VAT 
assessment by addressing urgent physical needs. Case management includes assessing 
housing and service needs, arranging, coordinating and monitoring the delivery of 
individualized services to meet the needs of the program participant. 
Services for special populations include services for homeless youth, victim services, services 
for people living with HIV/AIDS, LGBTQIA+ populations, persons with mental illness, and 
disabled persons, so long as the costs of providing these services are one of the eligible Street 
Outreach activities. The term victim services mean services that assist program participants 
who are victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including 
services offered by rape crisis centers and domestic violence shelters. 

 

iii. Duration of Assistance 
Street Outreach must be provided to homeless individuals and families for at least the period 
during which grant funds are provided. Each subrecipient has been given a project goal to 
serve a certain number of beneficiaries within the contract year.  

 

iv. Exiting 
To the degree practicable, participants exiting Street Outreach will be assisted in accessing 
housing that best fits their needs, with a preference for assisting participants to access 
permanent housing. Exits may also include participants entering treatment facilities to 
address mental health, substance abuse, or medical needs; recipients will coordinate with the 
treatment provider to support a successful transition. When possible, housing options or 
other resources should be provided at exit, so that participants have knowledge of where to 
go when treatment is completed. 

 

v. Performance Measures 
Street Outreach programs will be evaluated on HUD’s System Performance Measures and 
reported on a quarterly basis to ensure they are operating efficiently. The CoC staff will lead 
the evaluation efforts, with guidance from the CoC Data Committee.  

 
System Performance Measure 2: The extent to which persons who exit homelessness from 
street outreach to permanent housing destination return to homelessness. 

 
System performance measure two evaluates recidivism, measuring the percent of returns to 
homelessness in people who exited from street outreach to permanent housing. Specifically, 
this measure looks at returns over three time periods as well as the overall number of 
returns over two years:  

• Number returning to homelessness in less than 6 months 

• Number returning to homelessness from 6 to 12 months 

• Number returning to homelessness from 13 to 24 months 

• Total number of returns to homelessness over 2 years 



 

Page | 23   

System Performance Measure 7: Successful placements from street outreach to acceptable 
destinations. 

 
System performance measure seven focuses on how successful street outreach projects are 
at helping people move off the “street” and towards permanent housing, recognizing this 
process may be direct or may involve other temporary situations along the way. This is 
important because people living on the street and in places not meant for human habitation 
are at an increased risk of death. This measure calculates the percent of street outreach 
clients who had a positive exit as recorded in HMIS during the report period. Most 
destinations that move a client off the street are considered positive exits, with some minor 
exceptions, like jail or prison, and other places not meant for human habitation. The 
measure is looking for an increase in the percentage of people who exit to positive 
destinations from a street outreach project during the reporting period. 

 
Positive Exits Include: 

• Emergency shelter, including hotel or motel paid for with emergency shelter voucher 

• Foster care home or foster care group home 

• Hotel or motel paid for without emergency shelter voucher  

• Moved from one HOPWA funded project to HOPWA TH 

• Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility 

• Safe haven 

• Staying or living with family, temporary tenure (e.g. room, apartment or house) 

• Staying or living with friends, temporary tenure (e.g. room, apartment or house)  

• Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center 

• Transitional housing for homeless persons (including homeless youth)  

• All permanent housing destinations  
 

Negative Exits Include: 

• Jail, prison or juvenile detention facility 

• Place not meant for human habitation 

• Client doesn’t know, client refused, data not collected, no exit interview completed, 
or other 

 
Exits that should be removed from the Denominator Include: 

• Hospital or other residential non-psychiatric medical facility 

• Residential project or halfway house with no homeless criteria 
 

g. All Project Types 
Safeguards, Safety and Needs of Special Populations 

 

i. Victim Service Providers 
The term `victim service provider' means a private nonprofit organization whose primary 
mission is to provide services to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
or stalking. Such organizations include rape crisis centers, battered women's shelters, 
domestic violence transitional housing programs, and other programs (Section 401(32) 
McKinney-Vento Act). 

 



 

Page | 24   

The Violence Against Women Act Reauthorization Act of 2022 (VAWA 2022) both renewed 
and expanded VAWA’s protections for people fleeing domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, and stalking. VAWA 2022 also amended the McKinney-Vento Homeless 
Assistance Act to add a new eligible CoC Program activity related to facilitating emergency 
transfer requests and monitoring compliance with VAWA confidentiality provisions. VAWA 
2022 added to, and did not replace, the existing VAWA housing protections for survivors. 
Housing providers must continue to provide VAWA protections as provided by law.  

 

ii. Emergency Transfer Plan  
Projects serving individuals or families qualified under Category 4 of the Defining 
“Homeless” Rule (persons fleeing or attempting to flee violent situations) must follow all 
related federal and state laws, follow confidentiality policies, and have written policies and 
procedures regarding the provision of specific services to meet the safety and special needs 
of this population. Projects providing shelter and housing must comply with the Ventura County 
Continuum of Care Emergency Transfer Plan (see attachment L) for Victims of Domestic 
Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking to ensure tenants with a safety concern 
the ability to request an emergency transfer from the tenant’s current unit to another unit. The 
ability to request a transfer is available regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation. 
Per the requirements of an emergency transfer plan, projects must provide tenants with a 
Notice of Occupancy Rights under the VAWA along with an optional Certification of Domestic 
Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking, and Alternative Documentation. 
 
Every person who applies for or receives assistance must be informed of their full rights under 
VAWA to ensure they have the knowledge required to exercise them. 
 
Any information exchanged between Victim Service and Housing Providers in response to a 
VAWA requirement or provision, including the fact that an individual is a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, is confidential. This information must be 
always maintained in strict confidence. 

 

iii. Veterans 
Projects serving homeless veterans must prioritize those veterans who are ineligible for 
Veterans Affairs (VA) services, and work closely with the local Department of Veterans 
Affairs and coordinate resources with VA-funded housing and services (e.g.  HUD-VASH, 
Supportive Services for Veteran Families (SSVF)) through the Veteran One Team Case 
Conferencing. Veterans must be screened for eligibility for VA-funded housing and/or 
services. 

 
Veterans who choose to enter transitional housing must be placed as a short-term option 
while working on a permanent housing solution. A monthly review of their individualized 
service and housing plan must be completed by the provider. 

 

iv. Youth 
HUD’s definition of youth includes unaccompanied children under age 18 or youth between 
the ages of 18 and 24. Projects serving youth must prioritize youth based upon vulnerability 
to victimization, length of time homeless, unsheltered homeless, lack of access to family and 
community support networks, and current or past sexual exploitation. 

 



 

Page | 25   

It is important to note that youth are not responsible for obtaining their own eligibility 
documentation; instead, intake workers are responsible for documenting the youth’s 
eligibility (including homelessness status). Further, intake workers must consider the youth’s 
safety concerns before contacting third parties: intake workers must not contact anyone 
that the youth does not want contacted because of fears for his/her safety. 

 
HUD’s homeless assistance programs may provide emergency shelter or street outreach to 
unaccompanied youth who can self-certify their homelessness. CoC funded projects must be 
HUD approved to serve youth under Homeless Status Category 3; however, ESG funded 
projects do not require HUD approval for this category.  

 

v. High Needs 
Projects serving individuals and families with very high needs must provide shelter and 
services that meet the special needs for these populations. 

 

vi. Imminent Threat of Harm 
Participants who are receiving Tenant-Based Rental Assistance and have complied with all 
program requirements during their residence and who have been a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and who reasonably believe they are 
imminently threatened by harm from further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking (which would include threats from a third party, such as a friend or family 
member of the perpetrator of the violence), if they remain in the assisted unit, and are able 
to document the violence and basis for their belief, may retain the rental assistance and 
move to a different Continuum of Care geographic area if they move out of the assisted unit 
to protect their health and safety. Recipients must retain a record of the Imminent Threat 
of Harm for both participants who enter and exit under provisions as described at 24 CFR § 
578.51(c)(3). If providing housing or shelter, recipient also must comply with the Ventura 
County Continuum of Care Emergency Transfer Plan (see attachment L) which includes 
provision of a Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence Against Women Act to 
participants and an optional Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual 
Assault, or Stalking, and Alternative Documentation. 

 

vii. Education Services 
The educational needs of children and youth must be accounted for, to the maximum extent 
practicable, and families with children and unaccompanied youth must be placed as close as 
possible to the school of origin so as not to disrupt the children’s education. Projects that 
serve homeless families with children and/or unaccompanied youth must have policies and 
practices in place that are consistent with the laws related to providing education services 
to children and youth. These recipients must have a designated staff person to ensure that 
children and youth are enrolled in school and receive education services, as appropriate. 42 
U.S.C. 11432 et. seq. Homeless families with children and unaccompanied youth must be 
informed of their eligibility for McKinney-Vento education services as well as other State 
and local education services. Recipients shall maintain documentation in the participant’s 
case file to demonstrate that these requirements have been met and that applicants and 
participants understand their rights. 

 
Collaboration with McKinney-Vento Local Education Liaisons 
Recipients must document whether school-aged children are eligible for McKinney-Vento 
services and whether the child is connected with a local education liaison. If the child is not 



 

Page | 26   

already engaged, recipients must refer the family directly to the liaison at their school of 
choice. All applicants/participants with school-aged children must be provided with 
documentation that explains their rights under the McKinney-Vento Act and that provides 
contact information for the liaison at every school district within Ventura County. 

 

viii. Low-Barrier and Housing First 
Recipients that indicated in the applicable CoC, ESG/HHAP Project Application that the 
project would follow a Low-Barrier and Housing First approach must operate the project 
accordingly. All other projects are strongly recommended to use a Low-Barrier and 
Housing First approach to facilitate homeless individuals’ and families’ rapid return to 
housing. 

 
A Housing First approach allows eligible individuals and families experiencing homelessness 
to connect quickly and successfully to permanent housing without preconditions and 
barriers to entry, such as sobriety, treatment, or service participation requirements. 
Projects using a housing first approach offer supportive services; however, participation in 
these services is based on the needs and desires of the program participant. Supportive 
services are offered to maximize housing stability and prevent returns to homelessness as 
opposed to addressing predetermined treatment goals prior to permanent housing entry. 
Supportive services are offered to maximize housing stability and prevent returns to 
homelessness as opposed to addressing predetermined treatment goals prior to 
permanent housing entry. Application and admission policies should be as streamlined 
and short as possible to move eligible individuals and families into permanent housing 
as quickly as possible.  Additionally, techniques such as mitigation plans with use of harm 
reduction and motivational interviewing may be useful to support these principles. Harm 
reduction techniques can confront and mitigate the harms of drug and alcohol use through 
non-judgmental communication while motivational interviewing may be useful in helping 
households acquire and utilize new skills and information. To be  considered  Housing  
First,  the  project  must  follow  a  Low-Barrier  approach  (as described below) and must 
not terminate participants from the program for the following reasons: 

- Failure to participate in supportive services 
- Failure to make progress on a service plan 
- Loss of income or failure to improve income 
- Being a victim of domestic violence 
- Any other activity not covered in a lease agreement typically found in the project’s 

geographic area 
 

To be considered Low-Barrier, participants must  not  be  screened  out  based  on  the 
following: 
- Having too little or no income 
- Active or history of substance abuse 
- Having a criminal record with exceptions for state-mandated restrictions 
- History of domestic violence (e.g., lack of a protective order, period of separation form 

abuser, or law enforcement involvement) 
 
Mitigation Plans and case conferencing are steps to help support Permanent Housing 
providers discuss behaviors and/or challenges individuals and households have been 
experiencing and further develop mitigation strategies by seeking consultation and support 
from CES providers. Mitigation plans and case conferencing are intended to address ongoing 



 

Page | 27   

challenges with those at high risk of retuning to homelessness. Bringing forth cases to CES 
case conferencing is intended to receive feedback from the diverse CES network of 
providers, connect other potential resources for support and provide recommendations for 
a possible higher level of care such as board and care, enhanced care management (ECM), 
treatment, etc. Case conferencing may address CoC PSH transfer requests. CoC PSH 
transfers are for those at risk of returning to homelessness due to unsuitable housing which 
includes household composition changes (no longer meeting occupancy requirements due 
to change in household size), higher level of care needs (scattered site model transfer to 
onsite case management model for additional support) and/or emergency transfer plan for 
those fleeing DV/ stalking; a CoC PSH transfer may be requested through CES by submitting 
a case conference form. 
Persons may be terminated from the program only when violations of the lease are serious, 
and only in the most severe cases. Use of alcohol or drugs in of itself (without other lease 
violations) is not a reason for program termination. It is important to note that a participant 
may be evicted from the housing unit, but this does not mean that the recipient must 
terminate the participant from the program; the recipient may continue serving the 
participant in another housing unit. In cases where a participant has unpaid back owed rent, a 
referral to a homeless prevention program for rental assistance should be made whenever 
possible to prevent an eviction. 
 
 

 
 

This section will help to determine and define the allowable activities within a project as defined by the 
project component under both ESG and CoC. Components define a type of project (e.g., Transitional 
Housing) and have a set of allowable activities (e.g., Supportive Services). Activities are a set of allowable 
costs. For example, a phone line for a case manager might be considered a Supportive Services 
activity under the Transitional Housing component for the CoC Program. 

 

ESG and CoC Programs each have five (5) eligible components that are detailed in Table 5.1 (ESG) and 
Table 5.7 (CoC). Rapid Rehousing, Homeless Prevention and HMIS are allowable components of both 
funding sources; however, the activities that are allowable vary by Program. Street Outreach and 
Emergency Shelter are eligible under ESG only. Permanent Supportive Housing and Supportive 
Services Only are unique to the CoC Program. It is important to become familiar with the allowable 
activities under the funded component. The areas in grey are currently not being funded. 

 
The funded components of a project are described in the contract with HUD for direct recipients or 
with Ventura County for Subrecipients. 

 

a. Emergency Solutions Grant 
 

i. Eligible ESG Components 

 
Table 5.1 ESG Eligible Components 

 

Street Outreach Emergency Shelter 
Homelessness 

Prevention 
Rapid Rehousing HMIS 

 

 

V. Components and Eligible Activities 



 

Page | 28   

ii. Eligible ESG Activities 
1. Street Outreach 24 CFR § 576.101 (ESG Only) 

ESG funds may be used for costs of providing essential services necessary to reach out 
to unsheltered homeless people, referred to as Street Outreach. Eligible activities include 
engagement, case management, and transportation. Street outreach includes services 
that are unable to be provided to individuals or families due to their unwillingness to 
come to a shelter. Emergency health and mental health services may be eligible if these 
services are inaccessible or unavailable within the area. 

 
Table 5.2 ESG Street Outreach - Eligible Activities 

Essential Services 

 

Engagement 
Case 

Management 
Emergency 

Health Services 

 

Transportation 
Emergency 

Mental Health 
Services 

Services for 
Special 

Populations 
 

2. Emergency Shelter 24 CFR §  576.102 (ESG Only)  

Emergency Shelter is defined as any facility, where the primary purpose is to provide “a 
temporary shelter for the homeless in general, or for specific populations of the 
homeless people and which does not require occupants to sign leases or occupancy 
agreements. Any project that was funded under a Fiscal Year 2010 Emergency Solutions 
Grant may continue to be funded under ESG (24 CFR § 576.2).” However, because of 
the limited number of funding sources for which emergency shelter costs are eligible, 
Emergency Shelter will be prioritized for funding under ESG. Eligible activities include 
essential services, shelter maintenance, renovation and relocation assistance (576.408). 

 

Table 5.3 ESG Emergency Shelter – Eligible Activities 
Essential Services 

Case Management Child Care Education Services 
Employment 

Assistance 
& Job Search 

Outpatient Health 
Services 

Legal Services Life Skills Training 

Mental Health Services 
Substance Abuse 

Treatment Services 
Transportation 

Services for Special 
Populations 

Renovation 

Shelter Operations 
Assistance Required Under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 

Policies Act of 1970 
 

3. Homelessness Prevention 24 CFR § 576.103 (ESG Only)  
Homelessness Prevention provides housing relocation, stabilization services and short- 
and medium-term rental assistance necessary to prevent an individual or family from 
moving into an emergency shelter or another place described  in Category 1 of the 
Defining “Homeless” Rule, see Table 6.2.  The cost of homelessness prevention are only 
eligible to help the participant regain stability in the program participant’s current 
permanent housing or move into other permanent housing and achieve stability in the 
housing. ESG financial assistance cannot be provided to a program participant receiving 
the same type of assistance for the same period of time from another public program. 

 



 

Page | 29   

Table 5.4 ESG Homelessness Prevention  – Eligible Activities 
Housing Relocation & Stabilization Services 

Short- and/or Medium-Term Rental Assistance 

 

4. Rapid Rehousing 24 CFR § 576.104 (ESG) 
Rapid Rehousing provides housing relocation, stabilization services and short- and 
medium-term rental assistance to help homeless individuals or families move as quickly 
as possible into permanent housing and achieve stability in that housing. Please note: 
Rapid Rehousing varies between ESG and CoC Program Regulations. For a comparison 
of costs and activities between ESG and CoC Rapid Rehousing, see Attachment D. 

 

Table 5.5 ESG Rapid Re-Housing – Eligible Activities 
Housing Relocation & Stabilization Services 

Short- and/or Medium-Term Rental Assistance 

5. HMIS Component 24 CFR § 576.107 (ESG) 
Section 416(f) of the McKinney-Vento Act requires for the first time that ESG-funded 
projects participate in the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). The ESG 
interim rule makes certain costs eligible to the extent necessary to enable this 
participation. HUD published a proposed rule on HMIS, 24 CFR part 580, that will govern 
HMIS when it is published as final. 

 
Please note: the HMIS Component varies between the ESG and CoC Program 
Regulations. See Section V.b for CoC information on the HMIS component and HMIS 
eligible activities. 

 

County policy is to share HMIS funds with Subrecipients. The amount available will be 
determined at the time of award and through the contracting process and shall be 
based upon funding available. If a Subrecipient receives funding allocated for HMIS 
costs, they must track the time spent entering HMIS data separately on a timesheet and 
provide back-up documentation when requested. A different line item will be provided 
on Subrecipient Invoices with the expectation of the HMIS time being reported 
separately. 

 

6. Administrative Costs (ESG) 

Eligible activities include accounting for the use of grant funds, preparing reports for 
submission to HUD, obtaining program audits, staff salaries associated with eligible 
administrative costs and ESG training for program administrator and case managers. 

 

Table 5.6 ESG Administrative Costs 
Ventura County CoC retains all administrative funds to manage contracts, complete 

monitoring and cost reimbursement activities. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 30   

b. Continuum of Care 
 

i. Eligible CoC Components 

 
Table 5.7 CoC Eligible Components 
Permanent 

Housing (PH) 
 
Transitional 
Housing (TH) 

Supportive 
Services Only 

(SSO) 

 

HMIS 

 
Prevention 
(HPC* Only) Including: 

PSH** RRH*** 
*High Performing Community (as designated by HUD) 
**Permanent Supportive Housing 
***Rapid Rehousing 

 

1. Permanent Housing 24 CFR § 
578.37(a)(1)(CoC) Definition 
Permanent Housing is community-based housing, the purpose of which is to provide 
housing without a designated length of stay. Under the CoC Program, Permanent 
Housing includes both Permanent Supportive Housing and Rapid Rehousing. 

 

a.  Permanent Supportive Housing 24 CFR § 578.37(a)(1)(i)(CoC) 
Definition 
Permanent Supportive Housing provides assistance to individuals with disabilities 
and families in which one adult or child has a disability. Supportive Services designed 
to meet the needs of the participant must be made available to the participant. 

b. Rapid Rehousing 24 CFR § 578.37(a)(1)(ii)(CoC) 
Definition 
CoC funds under Rapid Rehousing may be used to provide supportive  services and/or 
short-term (up to 3 months), and/or medium-term (3 to 24 months) tenant- based 
rental assistance. 

 
Please note: Rapid Rehousing varies between ESG and CoC Program Regulations. For 
a comparison of costs and activities between ESG and CoC Rapid Rehousing, see  
Attachment D. 

 

2. Transitional Housing 24 CFR § 578.37(a)(2)(CoC) 
Definition 
Transitional Housing is housing that facilitates the movement of homeless individuals 
and families to permanent housing within 24 months. 

 
3. Supportive Services Only 24 CFR § 578.37(a)(3) (CoC) 

Definition 
Projects that contain a Supportive Services Only (SSO) component provide supportive 
services to unsheltered and sheltered homeless persons for whom the recipient is not 
providing housing or housing assistance. The lack of housing or housing assistance 
provision is the defining difference between a project that is considered to be an SSO 
project, versus a project that is considered to be a housing project even if the only 
activities funded under the CoC are services. The County is not currently funding projects 
for which this definition would apply. 



 

Page | 31   

4.   HMIS 24 CFR § 578.37(a)(4)(CoC) 
Under the CoC Program, only the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 
Lead, in this case Ventura County, may apply for a project with an HMIS component; 
however, HMIS may be an eligible cost for a recipient if permitted by the contract. 

 
Please   note:   the   HMIS  Component   varies   between   the   ESG   and   CoC   Program 
Regulations.  See Section V.a for ESG information on HMIS eligible activities and Section 
V.b for CoC information on HMIS eligible activities. 

 

5.   Prevention 24 CFR § 578.37(a)(5)(CoC) 
Homelessness Prevention is an eligible component under the CoC Program only for 
Continuums of Care that are designated as a High Performing Community  (HPC) as 
defined by Subpart E of 24 CFR § 578. Ventura County is not currently designated as an 
HPC. 

 

ii. Eligible CoC Activities 
 
The CoC Program allows for a number of different eligible activities. Each project’s ability to 
expend funds for the costs listed below is limited by the project’s component, project 
application, Subrecipient Contract with the County and the NOFA. 

 
Please note that the following is a list of all eligible activities under the CoC Interim Rule. 
Costs such as CoC Planning Activities and UFA Costs are eligible only if the County is funded 
for such activities, and then only the County, as the Collaborative Applicant, can bill to them. 
Acquisition, Rehabilitation, New Construction and Relocation are onetime costs and the 
County is not currently pursuing such activities due to limited funding. In the table below, 
activities have been shaded in grey to indicate that they are not billable. 

 
 

Table 5.8 CoC Eligible Activities 
 

CoC Planning Activities UFA* Costs Acquisition 

Rehabilitation New Construction Leasing 

Rental Assistance Supportive Services Operating Costs 

HMIS Project Administration Relocation Costs Indirect Costs 

*Unified Funding Agency 

 

As mentioned above, the CoC Program authorizes a variety of eligible activities; however, 
projects may charge costs to the grant only that are agreed upon in the contract between 
the Subrecipient and Ventura County or between the direct recipient and HUD. Therefore, 
activities that are not being utilized locally have not been included below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page | 32   

Table 5.9 CoC Eligible Activities* by Component 
 PH: PSH PH: RRH TH 

 
Housing Costs** 

Leasing X  X 

Rental Assistance X X X 

Operating X  X 

Supportive Services X X X 

HMIS X X X 

Administration X X X 

Indirect Costs X X X 
* Refer to Eligible CoC Activities below. 
**The following Housing Costs may not be combined in the same project: 
- Rental Assistance and Leasing 
- Rental Assistance and Operating 

 

4. Leasing 24 CFR § 578.49 (CoC) 
Leasing funds under the CoC Program may be used to lease a structure or individual 
units to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons. Funds cannot be 
used to lease units or structures owned by the recipient, Subrecipient, their parent 
organization(s), or other organizations more fully described in 24 CFR § 578.49(a) unless  

5. Rental Assistance 24 CFR § 578.51 (CoC) 
Rental assistance funds may be used to provide homeless individuals or families with 
short-, medium- or long-term rental assistance as outlined below. Rental assistance 
cannot be provided to participants who are already receiving rental assistance, or living 
in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through other 
federal, State, or local sources. 

 

Administering Rental Assistance 
Contracting for and making rental assistance payments to landlords, as well as 
conducting Housing Quality Standards (HQS) Inspections are considered to be a service 
delivery cost of rental assistance and is therefore an eligible cost under this section. 
Other eligible costs of administering rental assistance include: examining participant 
income and family composition; providing housing information and assistance; and 
receiving new participants into the program. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 33   

Table 5.12 CoC Rental Assistance – Eligible Costs 
Length of Housing Assistance 

Short-Term 
Up to 3 months 

Medium-Term 
From 3 to 24 months 

Long-Term 
>24 months 

Model of Assistance 
Tenant Based 

Participants choose unit 
Sponsor Based 

Participants reside in housing 
owned or leased by Sponsor 

Project Based 
Units are provided through a 

contract with the owner 

Other Eligible Costs 
Vacancy Payment – up to 30 

days following end of the month 
when unit vacated 

Property Damage – may not 
exceed one month’s rent; one- 
time cost per participant at the 

time participant exits unit 

Security Deposits – 
not to exceed 2 months of rent 

Administering Rental Assistance – Eligible Costs 
Processing rental payments to 

landlords 
Examining participant income 

and family composition 
Providing housing information 

and assistance 

Inspecting units for compliance with Housing 
Quality Standards (HQS) 

Receiving new participants into the program 

  

 
 

Table 5.13 CoC Rental Assistance – Key Requirements 
Unit Rent Standard The unit rent must be reasonable in comparison to similar units and cannot 

exceed comparable, unassisted units. See Section XIII.d, Rent Reasonableness 
and Fair Market Rent. 

Unit Lease – Lease 
and Rental Assistance 
Agreement 

Participants must have a lease agreement with the landlord/owner of housing. 
In addition, recipients may make rental assistance payments only to 
landlords/owners with whom the recipient has a rental assistance agreement. 
The rental assistance agreement must include the terms under which rental 
assistance will be provided, the term of the agreement, that the landlord/owner 
will provide the recipient with a copy of all written notices to the participant 
(including notices to vacate, notices of noncompliance, etc.). See Section XIII.e, 
Housing Agreements. 

Participant Rent Except in Rapid Rehousing projects, participants must contribute toward their 
rent in accordance with 3(a)(1) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (42 USC 
1437a(a)(1)). Changes to rental payment amounts must be made as changes in 
income are identified (no less than annually). For further guidance on 
calculating rent, refer to Section X.g, Calculating Rent (or Occupancy Charge). 

6. Supportive Services 24 CFR § 578.53 (CoC) 
Supportive Services funds may be used to provide supportive services that address the 
special needs of participants. Services must be limited to those which assist participants 
in obtaining and maintaining housing. Ongoing, at least annual, assessments of service 
needs are required and services should be adjusted accordingly. Where supportive 
services are provided within a facility not contained in a housing structure, the costs of 
operation of the facility are eligible, including maintenance, repair, building security, 
utilities and equipment. 

 
 
 



 

Page | 34   

The following table is a complete list of eligible costs under this component. See 24 CFR 
§ 578.53(e) for additional details about what these costs include. 

 

Table 5.14 CoC Supportive Services – Eligible Costs 
 

Annual Assessment of 
Service Needs 

Assistance with Moving Costs Case Management 

Food Housing Search & 
Counseling Services Employment Assistance & 

Job Training 
Outpatient Services 

Education Services Outreach Services 

Mental Health Services Substance Abuse 
Treatment Services 

Legal Services 

Child Care Transportation 

Life Skills Training Utility Deposits Direct Provision of Services 

 

7. Operating Costs 24 CFR § 578.55 (CoC) 
Operating funds may be used to pay the day-to-day costs of operation of transitional 
and permanent housing in a single structure or individual units. Operating costs for 
supportive service facilities are considered supportive services; see Section V.b,  
Supportive Services. 

 

Table 5.15 CoC Operating – Eligible Costs 
Model of Assistance 

Structure Individual Units 

Eligible Costs 
Repair & Maintenance Property Tax & Insurance Scheduled payments to 

reserve 
Security* 

Electricity, Gas & Water Furniture Equipment 
*Where >50% of the units are paid for with grant funds 

 

Table 5.16 CoC Operating – Key Requirements 
Unit Rent Standard Not applicable. 

Unit Lease Participants must have a lease or occupancy agreement with the recipient. See 
Section XIII.e, Housing Agreements. 

Participant Rent Agencies are not required to have participants pay rent, but if they choose to 
charge participants rent, the rent must be calculated in accordance with 24 CFR 
§ 578.77, and cannot exceed the highest of 30% of the participant’s adjusted 
monthly income, 10% of the participant’s monthly income, or the welfare rent. 
For further guidance on calculating rent, refer to Section X.g, Calculating Rent 
(or Occupancy Charge). Any participant rent that is collected is considered 
Program Income and must be used for eligible costs in accordance with 24 CFR § 
578.97. 

8. HMIS 24 CFR § 578.57 (CoC) 
HMIS funds may be used to pay the costs of contributing data to the Ventura County 
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). 

 
Please   note:   the   HMIS  Component   varies   between   the   ESG   and   CoC   
Program Regulations.  See Section V.a for ESG information on HMIS eligible activities 
and Section 
V.b for CoC information on the HMIS component. 



 

Page | 35   

Table 5.17 CoC HMIS – Eligible Costs 
 

Purchasing/Leasing 
Computer Hardware 

Purchasing Software or 
Software Licenses 

Purchasing/Leasing 
Equipment (telephones, 
fax machines, furniture) 

Obtaining Technical 
Support 

Leasing Office Space 
Electricity, Gas, Water, 

Phone Service, High 
Speed Data 

Transmission 

Salaries for Operating 
HMIS 

Costs of Staff to Travel 
and Attend HUD 

Sponsored/ Approved 
Training on HMIS 

Staff travel Costs to 
Conduct Intake 

Participation Fees 
Charged by the Lead 

 

9. Project Administration 24 CFR § 578.59 (CoC) 
CoC-funded projects may apply to use up to 10% of their project funds to pay for 
administrative costs. The NOFA may further limit project requests for administrative 
costs. For instance, during the FY2013 NOFA, local projects were limited to requesting 
no more than 7% in order to receive maximum points in this section of the application. 

 

For projects through Ventura County, administrative funds are split between the County 
(50%) and the Subrecipient (50%) for all projects unless determined otherwise by the 
County and Subrecipient. 

 
Staff and overhead costs directly related to carrying out eligible costs are considered 
eligible under those activities and are not considered project administration. 

 

Table 5.18 CoC Administrative Costs 
General Management & Oversight 

Preparing Budgets & Schedules Assure Compliance 
Development of Agreements to 

Carry Out Program Activities 

Monitoring for Progress & 
Compliance 

Preparing HUD Reports Coordinating Resolution of Findings 

Evaluating Results & Objectives 
Managing/Supervising Staff Who Engage in 

General Management & Oversight 

Training on CoC Requirements Environmental Reviews 
 

10. Indirect Costs 24 CFR §578.63 
Indirect costs are eligible under the CoC Program and must be in accordance with 
OMB Uniform Guidance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

Page | 36   

c. Homeless Housing, Assistance, and Prevention  
 

i.  Eligible HHAP Components 
 

Table 
5.19 

              HHAP Eligible Components  
 

Perman
ent 

Housing 

Rapid  
Rehousi

ng 

Homeless 
Preventio

n and 
Diversion 

Interim 
Shelter 

Street 
Outrea

ch 

Systems 
Support 

HMIS 
Administr

ation 

Administr
ative Costs 

 
1. Permanent Housing under the HHAP program can include rapid re-housing, host homes, 

supportive housing, and other innovative housing solutions including hotel and motel 
conversions.  
 

2. Rapid Rehousing projects under HHAP are encouraged to include the following core 
components: housing identification, rent and move in assistance, and intensive case 
management and services. Eligible RRH activities include but are not limited to: rental 
and utility arrears payments, rental application fees, moving costs, security deposits, 
rental subsidies, housing search assistance, and housing stabilization case management 
services.  

 
3. Homeless Prevention and Diversion programs are designed to prevent homelessness 

amongst people who are at imminent risk of homelessness by helping them quickly 
regain stability in their current housing or in other permanent housing. Eligible activities 
for prevention and diversion programs include but are not limited to: short or medium 
term rental assistance, payment of rental arrears and security deposits, utility payments, 
moving costs, housing search assistance, housing stabilization case management, credit 
repair, and legal services 

 
4. Interim Shelter under HHAP can include improvements to emergency shelter, navigation 

centers, and interim housing. Possible improvements to shelter could include expanding 
services and/or operational hours, eliminating rules or expectations that could be 
perceived to be unreasonable or punitive, accommodating families, creating safe 
arrangements for pets in the shelter, providing safe storage for possessions, and 
increasing case management and housing navigation services. Both essential services and 
operations for temporary shelter are eligible uses of HHAP funds. Eligible activies include 
but are not limited to: increased case management services, increasing the number of 
available shelter beds, adding or increasing employment assistance, and insurance, 
furnishings, utilities and rent for the facility.  

 
5. Street Outreach programs engage and provide services to people living in places not 

meant for human habitation, including cars, parks, abandoned buildings, bus or train 
stations, encampments, or campgrounds. Street Outreach programs should connect 
participants with emergency shelter, housing, and/or other critical services. Eligible uses 
for street outreach may include access to job programs to assist vulnerable populations 
in accessing permanent housing and to promote housing stability in supportive housing.  

 
 



 

Page | 37   

6. Systems Support under HHAP can include costs that support homelessness services 
system infrastructure, regional coordination, and/or improves accessibility and outcomes 
generally. Eligible uses may include: incorporating regional data into housing needs, 
assessments or developing a regional needs assessment, pooling resources to support 
regional housing initiatives, regional planning and application process, and funding HMIS. 

 
7. HMIS Administrative Costs: Eligible Uses may be categorized here when the eligible 

applicant elects to allocate (up to) 1% of the HHAP-5 allocation to cover expenses 
associated with the administration of HMIS. This funding is intended to support the 
functioning, maintenance, and operation of the local HMIS. Examples include system 
licenses, training, system operating costs, and costs associated with carrying out related 
activities. 

 
8. Administrative Costs: No more than 7 percent of an applicant’s Round 3 program 

allocation may be expended on administrative costs incurred by the city, county, or 
continuum of care to administer its program allocation. “Administrative costs” do not 
include staff or other costs directly related to implementing activities funded by the 
program allocation. 
 
Health and Safety code section 50220.7(b)(3) mandates that all applicants agree to 
participate in the statewide Homeless Data Integration System (HDIS), when it becomes 
available, and to enter individuals served by this funding into the local Homeless 
Management Information System (HMIS). Eligible HHAP recipients may use up to 5 
percent of their program allocation on a strategic homelessness plan, as defined in 
section 578.7(c) of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR); and/or for 
infrastructure development to support coordinated entry systems and Homeless 
Management Information Systems (HMIS). A program recipient shall use at least 10 
percent of the funds allocated under this section for services for homeless youth 
populations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page | 38   

 
 

Eligibility for assistance under CoC and ESG Programs is determined by HUD Regulations 24 CFR § 578, 
and 24 CFR § 576 respectively. Eligibility is further defined by project component. The table below 
provides an overview of eligibility by component and funding type. Eligibility may be further restricted 
by the contract. 

 

a. Eligibility by Component 
 

Table 6.1 Eligibility By Component 
 
Component 

 
Funding 

Homeless Status 
Category* 

Income** 
 

Disability 
Chronic 

Homeless 
(CH) 1 2 4 30% 

Shelter ESG/HHAP X X X N/A   
Prevention ESG  X X X    

HHAP 1-4  X X N/A   
  X X X   

RRH ESG / CoC X   Required at 
Revaluation Only 

  

HHAP X   Required at 
Revaluation Only 

  

Transitional CoC/ HHAP X X X N/A   
Outreach and 
Coordination 

HHAP X   N/A   

PSH CoC/ HHAP X   N/A X Prioritized 

PSH – CH Dedicated CoC/ HHAP X***   N/A X X 

X = Required 
N/A = Not Applicable 
*Homeless Status Categories are established by the Defining “Homeless” Rule; see Table 5.2 for corresponding 
categories 
**Participant’s annual income may not exceed the specified % of median family income for the area (AMI), as 
determined by HUD 
***Permanent Supportive Housing that is dedicated to chronically homeless households must serve only persons 
who qualify as chronically homeless who are coming from a place not meant for human habitation, safe haven, or 
emergency shelter. While persons in transitional housing are considered to be Category 1 homeless, they do not 
qualify as chronically homeless. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VI.  Participant Eligibility 



 

Page | 39   

Homeless Eligibility Criteria 

 
In order to receive assistance, persons must meet the HUD definition of homeless as detailed 
below in Table 6.2 for the duration of their participation in ESG projects, and at entry for CoC 
projects. 

 

Table 6.2 Homeless Eligibility Criteria 
Cat. Description Component Criteria 

 
 
 
 

1 

  
L

it
e

ra
ll

y
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 

 

Emergency Shelter 
 

Transition
al Housing 

 

Rapid Rehousing 
 

Permanent 
Supportive 
Housing 
 
Street Outreach 

A household is literally homeless if they lack fixed, regular & 
adequate nighttime residence, meaning: 

• Sleeping in a place not designed for, or not ordinarily used as, a 
regular sleeping accommodation, including a car, a park, an 
abandoned building, a bus or train station, an airport, or a 
campground. 

• Living in a shelter designated to provide temporary living 
arrangements, including congregate shelters, transitional 
housing, hotels/motels paid for by charitable organizations, or 
federal/state/local government programs. 

• Exiting an institution such as a jail or hospital where they 
resided for 90 days or less AND was residing in an emergency 
shelter or place not meant for human habitation immediately 
before entering the institution. 

 

 
2 

 

Im
m

in
e

n
t 

R
is

k
 

o
f 

H
o

m
e

le
ss

n
e

ss
 

Emergency Shelter 
 

Transition
al Housing 

 

Prevention 

A household that will imminently lose their primary nighttime 
residence provided that: 

• The residence will be lost within 14 days of the application for 
assistance 

• No subsequent residence has been identified; AND 

• The individual or family lacks the resources or support 
networks needed to obtain other permanent housing 

 

 
3 

 

U
n

ac
co

m
p

an
ie

d
 Y

o
u

th
  (

H
H

A
P

 O
N

LY
) 

Emergency 

Shelter 

Transitional 

Housing 

Rapid 

Rehousing 

Prevention 

 

 
Unaccompanied youth under age 25 or families with children and 
youth who: 

• Are defined as homeless under section 387 of the Runaway 
and Homeless Youth Act; 

• Have not had lease, ownership interest, or occupancy 
agreement at any time within 60 days of application; 

• Have moved two or more times within 60 days of application; 
AND 

Can be expected to continue in such status for an extended period 
of time because of chronic disabilities; chronic physical health or 
mental health conditions; substance addiction; histories of 
domestic violence or childhood abuse; child or youth with a 
disability; or two or more barriers to employment. 

 

 

4 

F
le

e
in

g
 o

r 
A

tt
e

m
p

ti
n

g
 

to
 F

le
e

 
D

o
m

e
st

ic
 

V
io

le
n

ce
 

Emergency Shelter 
Transition
al Housing 
Rapid 
ReHousing 
Prevention 

Households fleeing or attempting to flee domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, stalking or other dangerous or life 
threatening conditions related to violence, who: 

• Have no identified subsequent residence; AND 

• Lack the resources and support networks needed to obtain 
other permanent housing. 

 



 

Page | 40   

b. Income 24 CFR § 576.103 
Income limits are based on Area Median Income (AMI) and are updated at least annually 
by HUD.  Projects that have an income eligibility requirement must ensure they are using the 
most current information available.  Current income limits can be found at 
http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html 

 

c. Disability 
In order to qualify for Permanent Supportive Housing, the homeless household must have an 
adult or child member with a disability that meets the definition below (Docket No. FR–5333–F– 
02). 

 

Table 6.3 Disability 
Physical, Mental or Emotional Impairment 

A person shall be considered to have a disability if he or she has a disability that: 

(i) is expected to be long-continuing or of indefinite duration; 

(ii) Substantially impedes the individual’s ability to live independently; 

(iii) Could be improved by the provision of more suitable housing conditions; and 
(iv) Is a physical, mental, or emotional impairment, including impairment caused by alcohol or 

drug abuse, posttraumatic stress disorder, or brain injury. 

Developmental Disability 
A person will also be considered to have a disability if he or she has a developmental disability, as 
defined in section 102 of the Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000 (42 
U.S.C. 15002) 

HIV/AIDS 

A person will also be considered to have a disability if he or she has acquired immunodeficiency 
syndrome (AIDS) or any conditions arising from the etiologic agent for acquired immunodeficiency 
syndrome, including infection with the human immunodeficiency virus (HIV). 

Other Considerations 
Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this definition, the term person with disabilities includes, 
except in the case of the Single Room Occupancy (SRO) component, two or more persons with 
disabilities living together, one or more such persons living with another person who is determined to 
be important to their care or well-being, and the surviving member or members of any household 
described in the first sentence of this definition who were living, in a unit assisted under this part, with 
the deceased member of the household at the time of his or her death. (In any event, with respect to 
the surviving member or members of a household, the right to rental assistance under this part will 
terminate at the end of the grant period under which the deceased member was a participant.) 

 

d. Chronic Homelessness 
Some projects under the CoC Program are specifically dedicated to or prioritized for persons 
with a disability who have had several episodes of homelessness or an extended duration of 
homeless, which is referred to as Chronic Homelessness. The 2010 Federal Strategic Plan to 
Prevent and End Homelessness prioritized ending chronic homelessness by 2015; in February 
2015, this goal was revised to 2017. The local 2010 Point in Time Count demonstrated that 234 
individuals were experiencing chronic homelessness at the time of the count; in 2012 the 
number had dropped to 163. 
 
 
 

http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/il.html


 

Page | 41   

i. Definition of Chronic Homelessness 24 CFR § 578.3 
A homeless individual with a disability who lives in a place not meant for human habitation, 
a safe haven, or in an emergency shelter and who has been homeless and living or residing 
in  a  place  not  meant  for human  habitation,  a  safe  haven, or  in  an  emergency  shelter 
continuously for at least twelve (12) months or on at least four (4) separate occasions in the 
last three (3) years, as long as the combined occasions equal at least twelve (12) months and 
each break in homelessness separating the occasions included at least seven (7) consecutive 
nights of not living in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or in an 
emergency shelter. 

 
A person who meets the chronic homeless definition as described above, but who has been 
residing in an institutional care facility, including a jail, substance abuse or mental health 
treatment facility, hospital, or other similar facility, for fewer than 90 days, and who was 
on the streets or in emergency shelter immediately before entering the institution, also 
qualifies as chronically homeless. Chronically homeless persons also includes a family with 
an adult head of household (or if there is no adult in the family, a minor head of 
household) who meets all the criteria of chronic homelessness, including a family whose 
composition has fluctuated while the head of household has been homeless. 
 

Table 6.4 Duration of Homelessness 
Duration Definition 

Continuous, for at least twelve (12) months 
On the streets or in emergency shelter continuously, without a break, for at least twelve (12) months 

Continuous A stay on the streets or in emergency shelter without a break. 

 

 
Break 

At least seven (7) or more consecutive nights not residing on the streets or in emergency shelter. 
 

Stays in institutional care facilities for fewer than 90 days do not constitute a break in 
homelessness, but rather such stays are included in the 12-month total, as long as the individual 
was living or residing in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or an emergency 
shelter immediately before entering the institutional care facility. 

 
Twelve (12) 
Continuous 

Months 

Twelve (12) consecutive calendar months. 
 

NOTE: If the person has a documented encounter with a homeless service provider on a single 
day within a given month, this is sufficient to consider the person homeless for the entire 
calendar month, unless there is evidence of a break in homelessness. This applies ONLY if the 
encounter is documented by third-party documentation – a self-declaration is insufficient. 

At least four (4) separate occasions in the last three (3) years where the combined occasions 
equal at least twelve (12) months 

On the streets or emergency shelter on four (4) separate, distinct, and sustained occasions in the last three (3) 
years, as long as the combined occasions equal at least twelve (12) months and each break in homelessness 

separating the occasions included at least seven (7) consecutive nights of not living in a place not meant for human 
habitation, a safe haven, or in an emergency shelter 

 
Occasion 

Separate 
and Distinct 

Stay on the streets or in emergency shelter is interrupted by a Break (period of 
seven (7) or more consecutive nights residing in a place other than on the 
streets or in emergency shelter). 

Sustained Stay on the streets or in emergency shelter is more at least one (1) night. 

Three (3) 
years 

Thirty-six (36) consecutive calendar months 

Twelve (12) 
Total Months 

Four (4) separate occasions on the streets or emergency shelter that equal a cumulative total of 
twelve (12) months, meaning twelve (12) calendar months. 



 

Page | 42   

ii. Chronically Homeless Veterans 
The Department of Veteran’s Affairs (VA) conducts an initial verification of status and 
subsequently provides services to qualified veterans through a single episode of care. This 
VA “episode of care” may consist of services provided by different VA providers and/or 
different VA programs. Veterans who have been identified as chronically homeless through 
the VA’s initial intake maintain this status throughout his/her episode of VA care. Therefore, 
projects that are dedicated to or prioritized for chronically homeless persons may serve a 
person documented as chronically homeless by the VA, no matter the services received 
during his/her episode of VA care (i.e., a project may serve a person identified as chronically 
homeless by the VA, even if (s)he was in VA-transitional housing). 

 

iii. Chronic Homelessness and Rapid Rehousing 
Persons identified as chronically homeless prior to enrolling in a rapid rehousing project 
maintain their status as chronically homeless while they receive rapid rehousing assistance. 
However, chronic homelessness must be documented (as described in Section VII, 
Documentation Standards) prior to entering the rapid rehousing program. Therefore, 
projects that are dedicated to or prioritized for chronically homeless persons may serve a 
person who is receiving rapid rehousing assistance as long as his/her chronic homeless 
status was documented prior to entering the rapid rehousing project. 

 

e. Special Considerations for Serving a Person Who May be Undocumented 
Eligibility for the receipt of public benefits is restricted by The Personal Responsibility and Work 
Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 which provides that people who are undocumented are 
not to receive public benefits. The Act further specifies how to inquire into a person’s status. 
However, programs that are necessary for the protection of life or safety, which provide short- 
term shelter or housing assistance, non-cash services at the community level, which is not 
means-tested are exempt. 

 
This exemption does not apply to permanent housing programs however. HUD clarifies this 
matter through the SHP Desk Guide as such, “[…] nonprofit organizations are not required to, 
but may, verify an applicant’s citizenship or immigration status before providing assistance. If a 
nonprofit elects to verify citizenship or immigration status, they must follow the procedures 
required by the Act and should consult with their legal counsel on how to comply.” 

 

f. Special   Considerations   for   Households   if   Individual   Members   are   Residing   
in Different Places 
Persons presenting together as a household may be served together, regardless of marital 
status, actual or perceived sexual orientation, or gender identity. Refer also to Section III.b.iv, 
Discrimination Based on Household Composition. 

 

The implications of this are that household members may be residing in different places at 
entry. In order to determine the household’s eligibility for assistance, the recipient must 
determine eligibility based on the status of: 

 
1. The adult head of household; or 
2. The minor head of household when no adult is present. 

 

If there is more than one (1) adult in the household, the household may choose which adult is 
considered to be the head of household for the purposes of determining eligibility. 



 

Page | 43   

 

Please note that the person, whose eligibility qualifies the entire household, must meet all of 
the applicable eligibility requirements for the project. 

 
Refer also to HUD’s Frequently Asked Question, 
https://www.hudexchange.info/faqs/2318/how-should-recipients-determine-a-familys- 
eligibility-for-assistance/. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

a. Eligibility Overview 
Participants must be deemed eligible as described in Section VI, Participant Eligibility. The 
tables below describe the required documentation for each funding source and project 
component and details the type of documentation required to meet federal requirements 
and local standards. Required documentation must be clearly noted and documented in the 
participant’s case file. The County has developed standard forms that may be used by 
recipients to document eligibility; these forms are located on the County’s Continuum of Care 
Program website.  

 

b. Homeless Verification 
Intake staff are required to document homelessness for all persons seeking assistance. 
Determination and documentation of eligibility must be based on homeless status at intake; 
intake is the time the individual or family enters the project and begins receiving assistance 
under the grant program. 

 
Unless otherwise noted, the general order of priority for obtaining evidence is third-party 
documentation first, intake worker observations second, and certification by the person 
seeking assistance third. However, for homeless assistance projects that provide emergency 
assistance, such as emergency shelter and street outreach, a lack of third-party 
documentation must not prevent an individual or family from being immediately admitted.  
Emergency shelter and street outreach providers will clearly document homeless status 
through intake worker written observation in HMIS (under “Current Living Field”) to include 
notes describing the observed condition(s) where the participant resides, program name, 
provider position and observation date.. Where printed copies of participant eligibility are 
required, forms must be legibly completed, signed and dated by all parties involved. 

 

VII. Documentation Standards for Eligibility for Assistance 

http://www.hudexchange.info/faqs/2318/how-should-recipients-determine-a-familys-


 

Page | 44   

 

 
 
 

 
2 

 

Im
m

in
e

n
t 

R
is

k
 o

f 
H

o
m

e
le

ss
n

e
ss

 

Emergency Shelter 

Prevention 

Transitional Housing 

1. Court order resulting from an eviction action notifying the 
household they must leave; OR 

 

2. For household leaving hotel/motel that they were paying for, 
evidence that they lack the financial resources to stay; OR 

 
3. Documented and verified oral statement; AND 

 

a. Certification that no subsequent residence is identified; 
AND 

b. Self-declaration* or other written documentation that 
the individual lacks the financial resources and support 
necessary to obtain permanent housing. 

 
 
 
 
 

4 

 

F
le

e
in

g
/A

tt
e

m
p

ti
n

g
 t

o
 F

le
e

 D
o

m
e

st
ic

 
V

io
le

n
ce

 

Emergency Shelter 

Prevention 

Transitional Housing 

For victim service providers: 
 

Self-declaration/oral statement by the household seeking 
assistance which states: they are fleeing, they have no 
subsequent residence, and they lack resources. The statement 
must be certified by intake worker. 

 
For non-victim service providers: 

 

1. Self-declaration/oral statement by household seeking 
assistance which states: they are fleeing, they have no 
subsequent residence, and they lack resources. 

 

2. If the household is not jeopardized, the oral statement that 
the household is fleeing must be verified by intake worker or by 
written referral by an organization from which assistance was 
sought for domestic violence. 

*Self-Declarations must generally be accompanied by intake worker documentation of due diligence to obtain 
third-party verification. 

 

Table 7.1 Homeless Verification - Documentation 
Cat. Description Component Documentation 

 

 

 

 
1 

  
L

it
e

ra
ll

y
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 

Emergency Shelter 
 

Rapid 
Rehousing 

 
Transitional Housing 

 
Permanent Supportive 
Housing 
 
Street Outreach 

1. Legible, properly documented and signed written 
observation by outreach worker of the conditions where the 
individual or family is living; OR 

 
2. Written referral by another housing or service provider; OR 

 
3. Certification by the household seeking assistance/self- 
declaration*. 

 
4. When needed, supplemental documentation 
clarifying or confirming eligibility may be added to the 
participant’s file. 

 
4. For households exiting an institution – one of the above AND 
discharge paperwork or written/oral referral, OR written record 
of intake worker’s due diligence to obtain evidence AND self- 
declaration* by individual that they exited institution. 

 



 

Page | 45   

 
 

c. Disability Verification 
 

Table 7.2 Disability Verification 
 

1. Written verification of the disability from a professional licensed* by the state to diagnose and treat 
the disability and his or her certification that the disability is expected to be long-continuing or of 
indefinite duration and substantially impedes the individual’s ability to live independently; OR 

2. Written verification from the Social Security Administration; OR 

3. The receipt of a disability check; OR 
4. Intake staff-recorded observation of a disability that, no later than 45 days of the application for 
assistance, is confirmed and accompanied by evidence (as outlined in this table number 1, 2, 3 or 5)**; 
OR 

5. Other documentation approve by HUD. 

*An exception to the licensing requirement is made only for persons certified as a Chemical Dependency 

Professional (CDP), as defined in Chapter 18.205 RCW; this exception does not extend to a certified Chemical 
Dependency Professional – Trainee (CDP-T). 

**Recipients are discouraged from admitting participants into their project without confirmation of a qualifying 

disability and documented evidence of that disability. Recipients that choose to admit participants under 
Category 4 of the table above, do so at their own risk. If confirmation of disability and evidence are not attained 
within 45 days, the recipient will not be reimbursed for costs incurred for that participant. 

 

d. Special Considerations for Documenting Chronic Homelessness 
For each person applying to the project, written documentation must be provided by an 
appropriate third party that verifies the person’s status as chronically homeless. Letters may be 
written and signed by either homeless shelter providers, homeless outreach workers or other 
homeless service providers. An HMIS printout that demonstrates that the individual or family 
meets the criteria for chronic homelessness may be substituted for a letter. Letters and HMIS 
printouts must: 
 

✓ Be on letterhead stationery with the name, address and phone number of the agency; 
✓ Contain the full name of the participant; 
✓ Contain dates verifying the timeframe of homelessness including both a start date 

and completion date; and 
✓ Be signed by a staff member whose title appears on the letter. 

 
 

 

Due Diligence 
Written documentation of due diligence must describe efforts to obtain third-party documentation (e.g. 
phone logs, email correspondence, copies of certified letters), and must be signed and dated by intake 
staff as true and complete. 

 

Due diligence is not defined by HUD; locally, it is interpreted to mean making reasonable attempts to 
obtain third-party documentation. Intake workers must document these reasonable attempts, the 
outcome of the effort, and obstacles encountered. “Reasonable attempts” means that the  intake worker, 
with the assistance of the applicant, creates a comprehensive list of third parties who may have 
knowledge of the applicant’s homelessness, and that more than one (1) attempt was made to contact 
each identified third-party. 



 

Page | 46   

If all other efforts to obtain third-party documentation have been exhausted and unsuccessful, 
a participant self-declaration may be used in the absence of any other documentation. 
However, this should be a rare exception to the composition of most homelessness records 
for participants; recipients must document their attempts to obtain documentation in order 
to demonstrate due diligence and must document the severity of the situation in which the 
individual has been living. Self-declarations should be used only in the rarest and most extreme 
cases (e.g. where the individual has been in a place not meant for human habitation in 
a secluded area without any contact with anyone for that period). For at least 75 percent of 
the chronically homeless households assisted by a recipient in a project during an operating 
year, no more than three (3) months of living on the streets or emergency shelter may be 
documented by self-declaration. 

 
Recipients should expect that chronic homeless documentation for the majority of participants 
will be pieced together from several sources. 
 

i. Documenting Duration of Homelessness 
To properly document the length of time homeless, documentation must include the 
start and end date of each occasion of homelessness. 

 

Table 7.3 Documenting Duration of Homelessness 
Definition Documentation 

Continuous, for at least twelve 
(12) months: On the streets or 

emergency shelter continuously, 
without a break, for at least twelve 
(12) months. 

At least nine (9) of the 12 months must be documented through third-party 
documentation. 

 
Breaks in homelessness may be documented through self-certifications. 

 

NOTE: third-party documentation of a single encounter with a homeless 
service provider on a single day within one (1) month is sufficient to consider 
an individual as homeless and living or residing in a place not meant for 
human habitation, a safe haven, or an emergency shelter for the entire 
calendar month (e.g., a documented encounter on May 5, 2015, counts for 
May 1 to May 31, 2015). 

At least four (4) separate 
occasions in the last three (3) 
years: On the streets or emergency 

shelter on four (4) separate, 
distinct, and sustained occasions in 
the last three (3) years. 

 

ii. Documenting Disability 
Refer to Disability Verification, Table 7.2 above. 

 

iii. Documenting Severity of Service Needs for Prioritization 
Chronically homeless individuals or families with the most severe service needs must 
be prioritized for permanent supportive housing projects. Severe service needs must be 
identified and verified through data-driven methods such as an administrative data match 
or through the use of a standardized assessment tool that can identify the severity of needs, 
such as the Investing in Futures Housing Assessment. This determination must be based 
on the severity of the needs of the individual, not on a specific diagnosis or disability type. 

 
Further information regarding  documenting  Chronic  Homelessness  can  be  found  in  
HUD’s Notice  on  Prioritizing  Persons  Experiencing  Chronic  Homelessness  and  Other  
Vulnerable Homeless  Persons  in  Permanent  Supportive  Housing  and  Recordkeeping  
Requirements  for Documenting Chronic Homeless Status, located at:   
http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/documents/huddoc?id=14-12cpdn.pdf 

http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/documents/huddoc?id=14-12cpdn.pdf


 

Page | 47   

Refer also to HUD’s Defining Chronic Homelessness Final Rule, located 
at:  https://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Defining-Chronically-Homeless-
Final- Rule.pdf 
 

 

 
 

Projects are frequently targeted to serving specific homeless populations and/or subpopulation(s) per 
the project application, contract, and/or applicable regulations. For instance, one project may be 
targeted to serve homeless individuals while another may be targeted to serve homeless families with 
children. Please note than in targeting services to a specific population, recipients must comply with all 
applicable fair housing and civil rights laws. Occasionally, a household that is enrolled in the project 
subsequently desires to change their household composition (e.g., add or remove a household 
member). Recipients must follow these policies and procedures in approving or disapproving requests to 
change household composition. 

 
For the purposes of these Local Standards, the following definitions apply. 

 

Table 8.1 Applicable Definitions 
Definition Description 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Family 

Family includes, but is not limited to, regardless of marital status, actual or perceived 
sexual orientation, or gender identity, any group of persons presenting for assistance 
together with or without children and irrespective of age, relationship, or whether or not 
a member of the household has a disability. A child who is temporarily away from the 
home because of placement in foster care is considered a member of the family. Refer 
also to Section III.b.iv, Discrimination Based on Household Composition. 

 
Projects serving families may be targeted to serve households with children, households 
without children, or households with only children; however, projects may not 
discriminate against homeless households with children. 

A household with children 
is composed of at least 
one adult and one child 
(minor under the age of 
18). 

A household without 
children is composed of 
multiple adults, but no 
children under the age of 
18. 

A household with only 
children is composed of 
multiple persons, all of 
whom are under age 18. 

 
 
 

Individual 

An individual is a single person, who may be an elderly person, displaced person, 
disabled person, near-elderly person, or any other single person. 

 
Projects serving individuals may be targeted to serve households without children or 
households with only children; however, projects may not discriminate against homeless 
households with children. 

A household without children is 
composed of a single adult only. 

A household with only children is 
composed of a single person under age 18. 

 

a. Documenting Homelessness 
At project entry, intake staff must obtain documentation of homelessness (or chronic 
homelessness) for the head of household (or other household member, as applicable) in order 
to establish eligibility. After enrollment, new household members may be permitted to join the 

VIII. Changes in Household Composition 

http://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Defining-Chronically-Homeless-Final-
http://www.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Defining-Chronically-Homeless-Final-


 

Page | 48   

household. However, minimum considerations should be taken into account. Refer to Section 
VIII.b, Household Composition Considerations. 

If the original household seeks to add member(s) to the household, intake staff should, to the 
extent possible, obtain documentation of homelessness (or chronic homelessness) for any new 
members of the household. This is particularly important in the event of a household break-up 
subsequent to enrollment: the project is permitted to continue serving (albeit separately) those 
household members that continue to need the housing/services offered and whose eligibility 
was documented at entry. 

 

b. Household Composition Considerations 
Changes in household composition raise several issues that must be considered prior to 
permitting the change. Refer to the Table below for examples of minimum considerations. 

 

Table 8.2 Minimum Considerations 
Consideration Description 

Fair Housing 
Projects must follow fair housing laws and requirements. Refer to Section III.b., 
Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity. 

 
Eligibility 

The new family member(s) need not meet the eligibility requirements of the project, 
unless expressly required by the application, contract, or regulation, as long as 
the head of household’s eligibility was documented at entry. Refer to Section 
VI, Participant Eligibility. 

Terms of 
Occupancy 

The terms of occupancy (i.e., lease agreement) must not prohibit a change in 
household composition. Refer to Section XIII.e, Housing Agreements. 

Housing 
Requirements 

The unit must meet all applicable housing requirements, such as suitable dwelling 
size. Refer to Section XIII, Housing Requirements. 

Rent or 
Occupancy 

Charges 

The income of all household members must be considered where participants pay 
rent or an occupancy charge. Refer to Section X., Determining Income and 
Calculating Participant Rent. 

 

c. Transfers to Suitable Units 
If a change in household composition causes the unit to be unsuitable (i.e., of unsuitable 
dwelling size, etc.), transfers to a suitable unit may be made within the same project. If the 
recipient cannot accommodate the household within the same project, the recipient must 
contact Ventura County for further guidance. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page | 49   

 

 
 

Projects may serve separate families in a shared housing situation; this is a situation where a family 
chooses to live in a unit with another family, both of whom do not wish to be considered together as 
one (1) family. This type of shared housing situation may be particularly appealing for participants of 
rapid rehousing projects, where the goal is for participants to maintain housing without an ongoing 
subsidy. 

 
For shared housing situations, the following requirements must be followed. 

 

Table 9.1 Shared Housing Requirements 
Requirement Description 

 
Choice 

The decision to live in shared housing must be the families’ choice. The separate 
families must also determine that they do not wish to be considered together as 
one (1) family. 

 

 

 
Eligibility 

For all project types, with the exception of rapid rehousing, each family must be 
eligible for the project (except for reasonable accommodations). 

 
For rapid rehousing projects, only the assisted family must be eligible. In a rapid 
rehousing project where an eligible family shares a housing unit with an ineligible 
family, assistance may not be provided on behalf of an ineligible family. Refer to 
Section VI, Participant Eligibility. 

Housing 
Requirements 

The unit must meet all applicable housing requirements, such as suitable dwelling 
size. Refer to Section XIII. 

Unit Rent 
The cost and size of the unit must be reasonable and appropriate. Refer to Section 
XIII.d., Rent Reasonableness and Fair Market Rent. 

Rent or 
Occupancy 

Charges and Rent 
Subsidies 

Where participants pay rent (or an occupancy charge) or receive a rent subsidy, 
each family’s rent/rent subsidy will be calculated separately. The income of all 
family members must be considered where participants pay rent or an occupancy 
charge. Refer to Section X., Determining Income and Calculating Participant Rent. 

 

 

 

 
 

a. Income Definition 
Income must be calculated in accordance with 24 CFR § 5.609, and deductions must be made in 
accordance with 24 CFR § 5.611(a). Income is money that is paid to, or on behalf of, the head of 
household or spouse (even if temporarily absent) or to any other household member, and are 
anticipated to be received from a source outside the family during the 12-month period 
following admission or annual reexamination effective date; and which are not specifically 
excluded in 24 CFR § 5.609(c) Annual income also means amounts derived (during the 12-month 
period) from assets to which any member of the family has access. 

 
Documents and information collected to verify income should be recent. Documentation dated 
within 30 days is acceptable. However, for public assistance benefits, (e.g., SSI, food stamps), 
a benefits statement received any time within the twelve months prior to the time of 
application and reflecting current benefits received by a household is allowed. A copy of a 
recent bank statement indicating direct deposit is also acceptable. 

IX.  Shared Housing 

X. Determining Income and Calculating Participant Rent 



 

Page | 50   

 

b. Income Inclusions Examples 
 

Table 10.1 Income Inclusions Examples 
Not an exhaustive list; refer to 24 CFR § 5.609(b) 

(1) The full amount, before any payroll deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, fees, tips 
and bonuses, and other compensation for personal services; 

(2) The full amount of periodic payments received from social security, annuities, insurance policies, retirement 
funds, pensions, disability or death benefits and other similar types of periodic receipts, including lump   
sum payment for delayed start of a periodic payment; 

(3) Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment and disability compensation, worker's compensation 
and severance pay; 

(4) Welfare assistance. Welfare or other payments to families or individuals, based on need, that are made 
under program funded, separately or jointly, by Federal, State or local governments (e.g., Social Security 
Income (SSI) and general assistance available through state welfare programs); 

(5) Periodic and determinable allowances, such as alimony and child support payments, and regular 
contributions or gifts received from persons not residing in the dwelling; 

(6) Net income from the operation of a business or profession; 

(7) Interest, dividends, and other net income of any kind from real and personal property; 

(8) All regular pay, special pay and allowances of a member of the Armed Forces, except special hostile fire pay. 

 
 

c. Income Exclusions 
 

Table 10.2 Income Exclusions 
Not an exhaustive list; refer to 24 CFR § 5.609(c) 

(1) Income from employment of children (including foster children) under the age of 18 years; 

(2) Payments received for the care of foster children or foster adults (usually persons with disabilities, 
unrelated to the tenant family, who are unable to live alone); 

(3) Lump-sum additions to family assets, such as inheritances, insurance payments (including payments under 
health and accident insurance and worker's compensation), capital gains and settlement for personal or 
property losses (except as provided in paragraph (b)(5) of this section); 

(4) Amounts received by the family that are specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the cost of medical 
expenses for any family member; 

(5) Income of a live-in aide, as defined in 24 CFR § 5.403; 

(6) Subject to paragraph (b)(9) of this section, the full amount of student financial assistance paid directly to 
the student or to the educational institution; 

(7) The special pay to a family member serving in the Armed Forces who is exposed to hostile fire; 

(8) Amounts received under training programs funded by HUD; 

Amounts received by a person with a disability that are disregarded for a limited time for purposes of 
Supplemental Security Income eligibility and benefits because they are set aside for use under a Plan to 
Attain Self-Sufficiency (PASS); 

Amounts received by a participant in other publicly assisted programs which are specifically for or in 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred (special equipment, clothing, transportation, child care, 
etc.) and which are made solely to allow participation in a specific program; 

Amounts received under a resident service stipend. A resident service stipend is a modest amount (not to 
exceed $200 per month) received by a resident for performing a service for the PHA or owner, on a part- 
time basis, that enhances the quality of life in the development. Such services may include, but are not 
limited to, fire patrol, hall monitoring, lawn maintenance, resident initiatives coordination, and serving as a 
member of the PHA's governing board. No resident may receive more than one such stipend during the 
same period of time; 



 

Page | 51   

Incremental earnings and benefits resulting to any family member from participation in qualifying State or 
local employment training programs (including training programs not affiliated with a local government) and 
training of a family member as resident management staff. Amounts excluded by this provision must be 
received under employment training programs with clearly defined goals and objectives, and are excluded 
only for the period during which the family member participates in the employment training program; 

(9) Temporary, nonrecurring or sporadic income (including gifts); 

(10) Reparation payments paid by a foreign government pursuant to claims filed under the laws of that 
government by persons who were persecuted during the Nazi era; 

(11) Earnings in excess of $480 for each full-time student 18 years old or older (excluding the head of household 
and spouse); 

(12) Adoption assistance payments in excess of $480 per adopted child; 

(13) Deferred periodic amounts from supplemental security income and social security benefits that are received 
in a lump sum amount or in prospective monthly amounts. 

(14) Amounts received by the family in the form of refunds or rebates under State or local law for property taxes 
paid on the dwelling unit; 

(15) Amounts paid by a State agency to a family with a member who has a developmental disability and is living 
at home to offset the cost of services and equipment needed to keep the developmentally disabled family 
member at home; or 

(16) Amounts specifically excluded by any other Federal statute from consideration as income for purposes of 
determining eligibility or benefits under a category of assistance programs that includes assistance under 
any program to which the exclusions set forth in 24 CFR § 5.609(c) apply. 

Table 10.3 Mandatory Deductions 
Refer to 24 CFR § 5.611(a) 

(1) $480 for each dependent; 

(2) $400 for any elderly family or disabled family; 

(3) The sum of the following, to the extent the sum exceeds three percent of annual income: 

(a) Unreimbursed medical expenses of any elderly family or disabled family; and 

(b) Unreimbursed reasonable attendant care and auxiliary apparatus expenses for each member of the 
family who is a person with disabilities, to the extent necessary to enable any member of the family 
(including the member who is a person with disabilities) to be employed. This deduction may not 
exceed the earned income received by family members who are 18 years of age or older and who are 
able to work because of such attendant care or auxiliary apparatus; and 

(4) Any reasonable child care expenses necessary to enable a member of the family to be employed or to 
further his or her education. 

 

d. Income Review Requirements 
Refer to Section X.g., Calculating Rent, for further detail. For projects providing rental assistance, 
participants must agree to supply the information or documentation necessary to verify the 
participant’s income. Participants must also provide the recipient with information at any time 
regarding changes in income or other circumstances that may result in changes to a participant’s 
contribution toward rent. Refer to 24 CFR § 578.77(c)(3). 

 

Table 10.4 Income Review Requirements 
Funding Activity Frequency 

ESG/ 
HHAP 

Rental Assistance Initially, annually and as changes in income are identified 

CoC 
Leasing Initially, annually and per tenant request for change in household 

composition or decrease in income Operating 

Rental Assistance Initially, annually and as changes in income are identified 
 
 



 

Page | 52   

e. Annualizing Wages and Periodic Payments 
When calculating income based on hourly, weekly, or monthly payment information, add the 
gross amount earned in each payment period that is documented and divide by the number of 
payment periods. This provides an average wage per payment period. Depending on pay periods 
used by the employer or the schedule of periodic payments, the following calculations convert 
the average wage into annual income: 

 
✓ Hourly Wage multiplied by Hours Worked per Week multiplied by 52 weeks 
✓ Weekly Wage multiplied by 52 weeks 
✓ Bi-Weekly (every other week) Wage multiplied by 26 bi-weekly periods 
✓ Semi-Monthly Wage (twice a month) multiplied by 24 semi-monthly periods 
✓ Monthly Wage multiplied by 12 months 

 
Standards and procedures for documenting Income are further detailed in Attachment A. 
 

f. Calculating Rent (or Occupancy Charge) 
Guidelines for charging participants rent (or an occupancy charge) are dependent on the funding 
source, component, and activity type. While participants must be charged rent in some 
circumstances (i.e., CoC-permanent supportive housing providing rental assistance), participants 
may be changed rent in other circumstances (i.e., CoC-leased permanent supportive housing); 
however, under no circumstances may participants be charged a “program fee.” A program fee 
includes any fee assessed by the recipient other than rent (or an occupancy charge); examples 
include: fees for laundry or cleaning services, child care, transportation, or case management. 

 

Table 10.5 Rent (or Occupancy Charge) Calculations 

Funding Component Activity 
Required to 

Charge Rent? 
Calculation 

 
 

ESG/H
HAP 

Rapid 
Rehousing 

Rental 
Assistance 

Yes 
According to Rapid Rehousing Guide. 

 
Prevention 

 

Rental 
Assistance 

 
Yes 

Prevention projects must use a Graduated Subsidy 
Model. Policies will be developed at the time that 
the Ventura County Continuum of Care chooses to 
fund projects under this component. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Rapid 
Rehousing 

Rental 
Assistance 

Yes According to Rapid Rehousing Guide. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Leasing 

 

 
No, but may 

May not exceed the highest of (rent may not be 
rounded up): 

 
1) 30 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted 
income; 
2) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or 
3) If the family is receiving payments for welfare 
assistance from a public agency and a part of such 
payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s 
actual housing costs, is specifically designated by 
such agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the 
portion of such payments which is so designated. 

 
 

Operating 

 
 

No, but may 



 

Page | 53   

CoC Transitional 
Housing 
 

or 
 

Permanent 
Supportive 
Housing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rental 

Assistance 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Yes 

Rent must be calculated in accordance with section 
3(a)(1) of the U.S. Housing Act of 1937 (42 USC 
1437a(a)(1)): 

 

A family shall pay as rent the highest of the following 
amounts, rounded to the nearest dollar: 

 
A) 30 percent of the family’s monthly adjusted 
income; 
B) 10 percent of the family’s monthly income; or 
C) If the family is receiving payments for welfare 
assistance from a public agency and a part of such 
payments, adjusted in accordance with the family’s 
actual housing costs, is specifically designated by 
such agency to meet the family’s housing costs, the 
portion of such payments which is so designated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HHAP 
 
 
 

 

Rapid 
Rehousing 

Rental 
Assistance 

Yes According to Rapid Rehousing Guide. 

 
Prevention 

 

Rental 
Assistance 

 
 

 
Yes 

Prevention projects must use a Graduated 
Subsidy Model. Round 1-4 does not have 
an income requirement. Round 5 must 
demonstrate that  

• the household’s annual income is less than 
or equal to 30% of the Area Median 
Income (AMI).  

• Funding may include rental assistance, 
rental arrears (up to 2 months)   

 

g. Utility Allowances 
In calculating participant rent, a utility allowance must be applied where the cost of utilities 
(excluding telephone) are not included in the rent. The public housing authority establishes the 
utility allowance schedule annually for Ventura County.  Apply the utility allowance for the 
appropriate unit size. Refer to Section XIII.b., Suitable Dwelling Size. 

 

This requirement is not applicable for ESG-Rapid Rehousing. 
 

h. Program Income 
Program income is considered to be any rent (or occupancy charges) and any other income that 
is received by the recipient directly generated by a grant-supported activity. Program income 
must be retained by the recipient, committed to the project, and used to cover any eligible costs 
(not limited to the costs identified in the project budget). For ESG-projects, program income 
may be used to meet the match requirement. By contrast, for CoC-projects, program income 
generally may not be used to meet the match requirement; however, for FY2015 and FY2016 
CoC Program awards, HUD has permitted program income to be used as match: costs paid for by 



 

Page | 54   

program income can be considered match for grants awarded in the FY2015 and FY2016 CoC 
Program Competition only, so long as the funds are expended on eligible CoC Program costs that 
supplement the recipient’s project. 

 

i. Program Interest (HHAP only) 
All proceeds from interest-bearing accounts established by the CoC for the deposit of HHAP funds, 
along with any interest-bearing accounts opened by subrecipients to the CoC for the deposit of 
HHAP funds, must be used for HHAP eligible activities and reported on as required by California 
Interagency Council on Homelessness.  
 

 

 
 

Recipients must have written termination, denial, and grievance policies and/or procedures. The policies 
and/or procedures should be readily available to applicants and participants of assistance. With the 
exception of high volume shelters where it is acceptable to have policies posted in a public place, 
applicants and participants must receive written information about program policies. It is important to 
effectively communicate these policies and/or procedures to ensure that they are fully understood. 

 
✓ Denial and Grievance 

Causes of denial of assistance include, but are not limited to, the person’s ineligibility or failure 
to provide verifiable evidence of eligibility, etc. Established procedures should describe: 

 

- Circumstances in which persons may not qualify or would be denied; 
- Notification of denial; and 
- A person’s right to review a recipient’s decision. 

 

✓ Termination of Participation and Grievance 
Involuntary termination from any project funded under the HEARTH Act places the participant at 
great risk because (s)he will likely exit to a place that is less safe than the project in which (s)he 
is currently participating. Termination is the last option.  Recipients are encouraged to limit 
rules of participation to only that which constitutes immediate danger. For example, in a 
communal living project, it would not be appropriate to terminate a participant’s housing 
because (s)he did not complete her/his chores. Recipients are encouraged to find other 
strategies to increase participants’ contributions to their community by encouraging 
engagement rather than threatening loss of housing. 

 
That being said, there may be instances where termination cannot be avoided. The written 
grievance procedure must include: 

 
- Written notice to the  participant  containing  a  clear  statement  of  the  reason(s)  for 

termination; 
- A review of the decision, in which the participant is given the opportunity to present written 

or oral objections before a person other than the person (or a subordinate of that person) 
who made or approved the termination decision. This may include the participant’s right to 
question or confront staff involved; and 

- Prompt written notice of the final decision. 
 
 

XI.  Termination of Participation, Denial and Grievance Procedures 



 

Page | 55   

For projects where participants are required to request a review of the termination decision, 
participants must be given an adequate amount of time to submit their request. The review 
must be held at a mutually agreeable time. 
 

 

 
 

Recipients must have policies and/or procedures to ensure that participant records, including electronic 
records, are maintained in a confidential manner as per RCW 43.185C.030, 24 CFR § 578.103(b), and 24 
CFR § 576.500(x), and keep records or files pertaining to participants under lock and key with designated 
personnel only granted access to those documents. All records that contain protected identifying 
information (e.g. Name, Social Security Number, Date of Birth, etc.) of persons applying for and/or 
receiving housing and/or services must be kept secure and confidential. 

 
The procedures must also ensure that the address or location of any family violence project will not be 
made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the operation of the 
project; and that the address or location of any housing of a participant will not be made public, except 
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient and consistent with State and local laws 
regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 

 

 
 

a. Inspection Requirements 
All housing assisted with ESG, HHAP and CoC  Program  funds  must  meet  the  minimum  
housing standards; housing standards vary by Program and component type. 

 

i. Emergency Shelter/Interim Shelter (ESG/HHAP) 
Projects that receive ESG funds for shelter operations must comply with minimum safety, 
sanitation and privacy standards as outlined in 24 CFR § 576.403. Inspections to ensure 
compliance must be done before assistance is provided and at least annually. 

 

ii. Rapid Rehousing (ESG/HHAP) 
Projects providing ESG and HHAP-Rapid Rehousing assistance are required to perform 
Habitability Standards inspections and maintain documentation of these inspections as 
defined in 24 CFR § 576.403(c). These inspections must be done before assistance is 
provided and at least annually. Recipients of ESG and HHAP-Rapid Rehousing may adopt 
more stringent requirements that exceed or add to the requirements in 24 CFR § 
576.403(c). HUD Housing Quality Standards (HQS) inspection procedures are not 
considered sufficient because HQS is less stringent in the areas of fire safety and interior 
air quality. However, the HQS form may be amended to include the more stringent safety 
and interior air quality requirements. A record of the inspections must be kept for each 
assisted unit and must be readily available. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

XII. Confidentiality of Participant Records 

XIII. Housing Requirements 



 

Page | 56   

iii. Transitional Housing, Permanent Supportive Housing, Rapid Rehousing (CoC and 
HHAP) 
All CoC-housing, including transitional housing, permanent supportive housing, and rapid 
rehousing must meet applicable housing quality standards (HQS) under 24 CFR § 578.75(b). 
HQS requirements are contained within 24 CFR § 982.401, which state the performance and 
acceptability criteria for the key aspects of housing quality listed in Table 11.1. 

 

 

Table 13.1 Housing Quality Standards – Key Aspects 
 

Sanitary facilities Food preparation and refuse disposal 

Space and security Thermal environment 

Illumination and electricity Structure and materials 

Interior air quality Water supply 

Access Site and neighborhood 

Sanitary condition Smoke detectors 
 

Physical inspections of units to ensure compliance with HQS must be completed prior to the 
issuance of assistance. Additionally, recipients must inspect all units at least annually (at 
least every twelve (12) months) to ensure ongoing compliance with HQS. Deficiencies must 
be remedied within thirty (30) days of inspection, with the exception of emergency failures, 
which must be corrected within twenty-four (24) hours, see below. Payment may not be 
issued beyond the annual recertification date for units that do not meet HQS. 

 

For housing leased with CoC Program funds, or for which rental assistance payments are 
made with CoC funds, recipients must comply with applicable conflict of interest 
requirements and shall not conduct HQS inspections of property that the recipient or a 

related entity owns. See 24 CFR § 578.95(c). 
 

Emergency Fails 
The following deficiencies constitute an emergency fail and repairs  must occur  and  be 
verified within twenty-four (24) hours (rather than the standard thirty (30) days) of 
inspection (24 CFR 982.401(a)). 

 
- Lack of security for the unit 
- Waterlogged ceiling in imminent danger of falling 
- Major plumbing leaks or flooding 
- Natural gas leaks or fumes 
- Electrical problem which could result in shock or fire 
- No heat when outside temperature is below 40°F and the temperature inside the unit is 

below 55°F 
- Utilities not in service 
- No running hot water 
- Broken glass where someone could be injured 
- Obstacle which prevents entrance or exit 
- Lack of functioning toilet 
- Inoperable smoke detector 

 



 

Page | 57   

b. Suitable Dwelling Size 
Recipients must establish guidelines for establishing the appropriate unit size; these guidelines 
must be applied consistently for all participants of like size and household composition. Agency 
standards cannot have a disproportionate impact on specific family composition (i.e.,  non- 
traditional households). 

 
Participants must be placed in units that are of suitable size: the unit must have at least one (1) 
bedroom or living/sleeping room for each two (2) persons. 24 CFR § 578.75(c). Children of 
opposite sex, other than very young children, may not be required to occupy the same bedroom 
or living/sleeping room. 24 CFR § 578.75(c)(1). 

 
Participants should be assisted in choosing a unit with the smallest number of bedrooms needed 
without overcrowding. Except in limited circumstances (i.e., request for reasonable 
accommodation, etc.), participants should not be assisted in units with a greater number of 
bedrooms than is needed. 

 
If household composition changes during the term of assistance, households should be assisted 
in relocating to a more appropriately sized unit and continue to access appropriate services. 24 
CFR § 578.75(c)(1). Refer also to Section VIII.c, Transfers to Suitable Units. 

 

c. Lead-Based Paint Requirements 
Recipients must ensure that all participants who reside in housing that was constructed pre- 
1978 receive the “Protect Your Family” lead-based paint hazard brochure. In addition, owners 
must disclose the presence of lead-based paint and provide participants with any existing 
documentation on known lead-based paint hazards in the unit. Recipients must document that 
participants received this information and maintain this documentation in the participant files. 
Refer also to Attachment C: Step by Step Guide to Compliance with Lead Based Paint Inspection 
Requirements. 

 

i. Visual Assessments 
The lead‐based paint visual assessment requirement exists to protect vulnerable families 
from potential health hazards. To prevent lead poisoning in young children, recipients must 
comply with the Lead‐based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act of 1973 and its applicable 
regulations found at 24 CFR § 35. 

 

The applicable parts of 24 CFR § 35 are as such: 
1. For ESG and HHAP-funded shelters and housing occupied by project participants, 

recipients must comply with subparts A, B, H, J, K, M and R. 
2. For CoC and HHAP-funded housing that receives project-based or sponsor-based rental 

assistance, recipients must comply with subparts A, B, H, and R. 
3. For CoC and HHAP-funded residential property receiving leasing, services or operating 

costs, recipients must comply with subparts A, B, K and R. 
 

A lead‐based paint visual assessment must be completed for all units that meet the three 
following conditions: 
1. The household moving into or remaining in their current unit is being assisted with 

either ESG or HHAP rent/utility assistance, ESG/HHAP arrears assistance, CoC rent 
assistance, or it is a residential property using CoC funds to fund leasing, services or 
operating costs. 



 

Page | 58   

2. The unit was constructed prior to 1978. 
3. A child under the age of six or a pregnant woman is, or will be, living in the unit. 

 

For units and facilities that meet these conditions, recipients must conduct a visual 
assessment at least annually. For rental units, a visual assessment must be conducted prior 
to providing rent assistance and on an annual basis thereafter (as long as assistance is 
provided). The recipient must maintain the record on file with the inspection’s record and 
readily available for review. 

 
Visual assessments must be conducted by a HUD‐Certified Visual Assessor r .   Agency staff 
may complete the Visual Assessment Training at 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead/training/visualassessment/h00101.htm.  The certificate of 
completion must be maintained on record and readily available for review.  For rental units, 
documentation must be  kept  with  the  HQS  or  Habitability  Standards  Worksheet  and 
maintained in the participant file. 

 

ii. Exceptions to the Requirement 
There are certain exceptions to the requirement. Visual assessments are not triggered under 
the following circumstances: 

 
- It is a zero‐bedroom or SRO‐sized unit; 
- X‐ray or laboratory testing of all painted surfaces by certified personnel has been 

conducted in accordance with HUD regulations and the unit is officially certified to not 
contain lead‐based paint; 

- The property has had all lead‐based paint identified and removed in accordance with 
HUD regulations; 

- The unit has already undergone a visual assessment within the past 12 months –obtain 
documentation that a visual assessment has been conducted; or 

- It meets any of the other exemptions described in 24 CFR § 35.115(a). 
 

If any of the conditions outlined above are met, recipients need to document the condition. 
 

d. Rent Reasonableness and Fair Market Rent 
Where applicable, adherence to rent reasonableness and/or Fair Market Rent (FMR) must be 
determined before assistance is provided and no less than annually. ESG/HHAP 5 must meet both 
requirements. 

 
When determining rent reasonableness and Fair Market Rent, recipients must compare the 
unit’s gross rent with the applicable standard. Gross rent includes the entire housing cost: rent 
plus the cost of any utilities that must (according to the lease) be the responsibility of the 
tenant. Utilities include gas, electric, water, sewer, and trash, and exclude telephone, cable, or 
satellite television service, and internet service. 

 

Rent Reasonableness 
All ESG- and CoC-units and structures for which rent is paid must be reasonable in relation to 
rents being charged for comparable unassisted units in the same market; reasonable rents must 
also not exceed rents currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted 
units. 
 

http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead/training/visualassessment/h00101.htm


 

Page | 59   

Fair Market Rent 
Annually (effective October 1), HUD determines Fair Market Rent (FMR) by geographic area; 
FMRs are based on the results of a local rent survey and reflect the gross rent estimates (rent 
plus the cost of all tenant-paid utilities, except telephones, cable or satellite television service, 
and internet service). Ventura County falls within the Ventura County HUD Metro FMR Area. 

 
Fair market rents are published here: http://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html 

 

Table 13.2 Unit Rent Standard By Component 

Activity Funding Requirement 
Frequency 
of Review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Leasing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CoC/HH
AP 

Rent Reasonable 
The unit’s gross rent must be rent reasonable. Units with gross 
rents that exceed rent reasonableness standards may not be 
leased with CoC funds. 

 
Fair Market Rent 
As long as the unit’s gross rent is rent reasonable, the gross rent 
may exceed FMR; however, the amount paid with CoC-leasing 
funds may not exceed the current published FMR. Therefore, if 
the gross rent exceeds FMR, CoC leasing funds may pay for a 
portion of the rent up to the FMR amount and the difference 
must be paid with other, non-CoC funds. 

 
Maximum CoC-Leasing Payment 
The maximum amount of rent that can be paid for with CoC- 
leasing funds is the lower of the rent reasonableness standard 
and FMR. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Initially, 
Annually 

 
 
 
 

 
Rental 

Assistance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CoC 

Rent Reasonable 
The unit’s gross rent must be rent reasonable. Units with gross 
rents that exceed rent reasonableness standards may not be 
assisted with CoC-rental assistance funds. 

 
Fair Market Rent 
As long as the unit’s gross rent is rent reasonable, the gross rent 
and the amount paid with CoC-rental assistance funds may 
exceed FMR. 

 
Maximum CoC-Rental Assistance 
The maximum amount of rental assistance that can be paid for 
with CoC-funds is the rent reasonableness standard. 

 
 
 
 

 
Initially, 
Annually 

 
Rental 

Assistance 

 
 

ESG/   
HHAP 5 

Rent Reasonable 
The unit’s gross rent must be no more than $100 above the 
average gross rent of three (3) comparable units.   Units with 
gross rents that exceed rent reasonableness standards may 
not be assisted with ESG-rental  assistance funds. 

 
Initially, 
Annually 

 

http://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/fmr.html


 

Page | 60   

  Fair Market Rent 
The unit’s gross rent must be equal to or less than the FMR. 
Units with gross rents that exceed FMR may not be assisted with 
ESG-rental assistance funds. 

 
Maximum ESG-Rental Assistance 
The maximum amount of rental assistance that can be paid for 
with ESG-funds is the lower of the rent reasonableness standard 
and FMR. 

 

 

e. Housing Agreements 
Different types of housing agreements are required depending on the component and activity. 

 

i. Lease Agreements 
Participants must have a written lease agreement with the landlord/owner of the housing 
unit (or for CoC-leasing projects, a written sublease with the recipient). For CoC-permanent 
housing, in addition to the minimum requirements listed below, the lease must be for 
a term of at least one (1) year that is renewable (for a minimum term of one (1) month) 
and terminable only for cause. For CoC-transitional housing, in addition to the minimum 
requirements listed below, the lease must be for a term of at least one month that ends in 
24 months and cannot be extended. 

 
At a minimum, written lease agreements must contain: 

- Name of participant 
- Name of landlord/owner 
- Address of dwelling unit 
- Occupancy (who is permitted to live at the dwelling unit) 
- Term of agreement (lease start and end dates) 
- Dwelling unit rent and date due 
- Deposits (if any, and for what/term) 
- Signature of participant/date 
- Signature of landlord/owner/date 

 

All participant lease agreements must contain VAWA protections as listed under 24 CFR Part 5, 
Subpart L. If the VAWA protections are not incorporated in the lease, the subrecipient must 
provide and require a lease amendment including the necessary language. See Attachment G for a 
sample lease addendum.  

 

ii. Master Lease Agreements (CoC and HHAP Leasing) 
Where units or structures are leased with CoC and/or HHAP leasing funds, the recipient 
must have a master lease agreement with the landlord/owner. For CoC and/ or HHAP-
leasing projects, the lease agreement between the recipient and participant is a sublease 
agreement; therefore, the master lease agreement must permit subleases. The master 
lease must be written, legally binding, and must allow the required lease agreement 
provisions (as described above) to be met. 

 

iii. Rental Assistance Agreements (ESG, HHAP and CoC-Rental Assistance) 
Recipients must make rental assistance payments only to landlords/owners with whom 
the recipient has a rental assistance agreement. The rental assistance agreement must 



 

Page | 61   

include the terms under which rental assistance will be provided, the term of the 
agreement, and acknowledgement that the landlord/owner will provide the 
recipient with a copy of all written notices to the participant (including notices to 
vacate, notices of noncompliance, etc.). The rental assistance agreement must include 
VAWA protections in accordance with 24 CFR Part 5, Subpart L.  For a sample rental 
assistance agreement, refer to Attachment H. 

 

 
 

In order to receive assistance, the following information must be documented in the participant file. 
Documentation must be retained for five (5) years after the expenditure of all funds from the grant 
under which the participant was served, unless a greater period of time is specified in the contract. 

 

a. Initial Consultation & Eligibility Determination 
 
The participant must lack sufficient resources and support networks to obtain/retain housing and 
this must be documented in the file. The participant must receive an initial consultation and eligibility 
assessment to determine housing status eligibility (and other eligibility requirements, as applicable) 
and the appropriate type of assistance needed to regain stability in permanent housing. Verification 
of homeless status must be documented in the participant file in accordance with Section VII, 
Documentation Standards for Eligibility for Assistance. To ensure minimum, appropriate documentation 
is gathered for ESG and HHAP program participants, Street Outreach, Emergency Shelter, Homeless 
Prevention and Rapid Rehousing components will require the use of corresponding Client File checklists 
as indicated by HCD. An HMIS (ESG/HHAP) Intake Form and a Release of Information (ROI) are also 
required. Further information and instruction can be found in the ESG Program HMIS Manual. 
 

b. Income and Participant Rent 
Please see Section X, Determining Income and Calculating Participant Rent, for full detail. 
Income documentation and completed calculations of participant rent must be maintained in 
each participant file; forms must be signed and dated by the staff person who completed the 
calculation. 

 

c. Housing Stability Plan 
The Housing Stability Plan (ESG/HHAP-Emergency Shelter/Interim Shelter,  ESG/HHAP-
Prevention,  CoC, HHAP and  ESG-Rapid Rehousing) must include: 
✓ Needs assessment to identify barriers and specific housing and self-sufficiency goals 
✓ Action steps to retain permanent housing after assistance ends 
✓ Households receiving assistance from a victim service provider may be exempted from 

the case management requirement. 
 

d. Individual Support Plan 
The Individual Support Plan (CoC/ HHAP-Transitional Housing and CoC/ HHAP-Permanent 
Supportive Housing) must include: 
✓ Problem Identification 
✓ Goals 
✓ Action Plan 
✓ Outcomes 

 

XIV. Recordkeeping Requirements 



 

Page | 62   

Per 24 CFR § 578.53, projects must complete an assessment of the service needs of 
participants at least annually.  Services must be adjusted accordingly. 
 

e. Assistance in obtaining mainstream and other resources 
Participants must receive appropriate supportive services and referrals essential to achieving 
independent living through other federal, state, local, and private assistance. 

 

f. Proof of Complete Inspection 
Please see Section XIII, Housing Requirements, for full detail. 

✓ Habitability (ESG/HHAP) 
✓ Housing Quality Standards (CoC) 

 

Completed inspection forms must be retained in the file and must contain the date the inspection 
was performed and the signature of the staff person who performed the inspection. 

 

g. Proof of Complete Lead Based Paint Visual Assessment 
See Section XIII, Housing Requirements, for full detail. Completed assessments must be retained 
in the file and must contain the date the inspection was performed and the signature of the staff 
person who performed the inspection. 

 

h. Rent Reasonableness and Fair Market Rent 
See Section XIII, Housing Requirements, for full detail. 

 

Rent Reasonableness 
Documentation of rent reasonableness ensures that rents being paid are reasonable in relation 
to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units in the same market. Please see Attachment 
B for further detail. 

 

Recipients must: 
✓ Use the  Rent  Reasonableness  Certification  Form  (Attachment  F)  to  document  rent 

reasonableness 
✓ Retain a copy of each Ventura County Rent Reasonableness Survey every year, beginning in  

 

✓ Retain documentation of any supplemental documents used to compare rents i.e. copies of 
advertisements for properties for rent, etc. 

 
Fair Market Rent 
Recipients must ensure that client files contain applicable FMR data to document the FMR for 
the participant’s unit size and geographic area. 

 
Recipients must: 
✓ Use the Rent Reasonableness Certification Form (Attachment F) to document FMR 

 

i. Housing Agreements 
See Section XIII, Housing Requirements, for full detail. Fully executed housing agreements must 
be maintained for each unit that is assisted. 

 
 



 

Page | 63   

j. Case Notes and record of services received 
Files must contain case notes that align with either the Housing Stability Plan or the Individual 
Support Plan, be legible, dated and contain a record of the staff member responsible for each 
note. 
 
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) 
Agencies providing CoC, HHAPand ESG assistance must enter client-level data into the HMIS 
system for reporting data to HUD.  A comparable database may be used to collect data for 
domestic violence or victim services. Emergency Shelter, Homelessness Prevention, Rapid Re-
Housing and Street Outreach must be tracked in the HMIS system. Further information is detailed 
in section XVI or in the HMIS Manual. 

 

k. Staff Training and Training Records 
All CoC and partner agency staff will undergo training for any or all (ESG/HHAP) program 
component recordkeeping. This includes maintaining Training Logs current and recording/storing 
acquired, pertinent certifications.  

 
 

 
 

Subrecipients shall follow the reporting requirements as outlined in the contract or MOU. 
 

Recipients shall participate in Ventura County Continuum of Care activities, which includes participation 
in planning activities, and the annual Point-in-Time (PIT) count of the homeless. Recipients will complete 
the Ventura County Annual Homeless Housing Inventory Chart (HIC), which includes data on beds, units, 
HMIS participation, services, and financial data on all projects. 

 
An Annual Performance Report (APR) is currently required for the CoC Program and will be required for 
ESG and HHAP. An ESG CAPER report will be required. With the exception of Victim Service Providers, 
which are required to track required data in a comparable database, the majority of the data required 
for the APR will be generated from the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS). Recipients 
are required to report on financial data and provide narratives regarding their project(s). ESG 
Subrecipients are required to complete and submit a semi-annual budget report. The details of these 
reports will be outlined in future drafts of these guidelines. The most recent APR must be submitted 
to HUD no later than 90 days from the date of the end of the project’s grant term. HHAP recipients are 
required to report on financial data and provide narratives and progress on outcomes regarding their 
projects quarterly. Annual reports on financial data and progress on outcomes are required for HHAP 
recipients to include Annual Performance reporting from grant start date to end of year. 

 
Subrecipients will report Match detail in a format prescribed by the CoC. Matching contributions may be 
obtained from any source, including any Federal source other than the ESG and HHAP program, as well as 
State, local and private sources. Please reference CFR 576.201 for further information on matching 
requirements. 
 
Subrecipients will report Program Income detail on their monthly or quarterly invoice to the County. 

The County reserves the right to request additional information or prescribe or change reporting 
requirements. 

 

 

XV. Reporting Requirements 



 

Page | 64   

 
 

Recipients will participate in the Ventura County Homeless Management Information System (“Ventura 
County HMIS”) which is administered by the County’s Human Services Agency. Ventura County HMIS is 
an electronic database that collects data on homeless persons who receive outreach, homelessness 
prevention and intervention services, emergency shelter, transitional housing, supportive services not 
linked with housing, and permanent supportive housing. 

 
HMIS Participation will include: 

 

• Technical set up; 

• Staff training; 

• Development of and adherence to an HMIS implementation schedule; 

• Adherence to the requirements set forth in the Ventura County HMIS Policy and 
Procedures Manual including: 

o Confidentiality 
o Privacy and Security Protocols 
o Adherence to the Data Quality Plan 

• Adherence to the requirements set forth in the “Agency Partner Agreement” and “User Policy, 
Code of Ethics and Responsibility Statement” executed by the Recipient and the Recipient’s 
staff. 

 

 
 

Ventura County, as the Collaborative Applicant (CA), establishes performance standards for CoC- and 
ESG and HHAP-funded projects in consultation with its Subrecipients. Performance standards are 
established by project type, based upon HUD’s national targets, as well as local targets that account 
for the unique needs of the homeless population and subpopulations within the Ventura County.  
To set these performance targets, the CoC reviews HUD established performance areas, including those 
for High- Performing Communities and those included in the application review criteria in the CoC 
Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), as well as HMIS and performance data for CoC, ESG and 
HHAPfunded projects. See the Ventura County Continuum of Care Performance Standards, 
incorporated herein by reference. 

 
The County will monitor project performance on an ongoing basis through HMIS data as well as annually 
through the Annual Performance Report (APR). In addition: 

 

- Annually, for CoC-funded projects, after HUD has published the Notice of Funding Availability 
(NOFA), the CoC Data, Performance & Evaluation Committee scores projects locally and 
recommends projects for funding. See Section II, Policy on Project Selection. Project data, 
including project performance, is compiled for County and PRC review. 

- Once Subrecipients are selected and projects begin operating, the County utilizes a Program 
Monitoring Tool – Subrecipient Risk Assessment to assess whether Subrecipients qualify as “high 
risk,” which is determined, in part, by a review of project performance. 

 
The County will take the following action against poor performers: 

- Provide technical assistance (TA) 

- Provide a corrective action plan if: 

XVI. Homeless Management Information Systems Participation 

XVII. Performance Standards 

https://s33020.pcdn.co/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/HMIS-Policies-and-Procedures-May-2021.pdf
https://s33020.pcdn.co/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/HMIS-Policies-and-Procedures-May-2021.pdf


 

Page | 65   

o TA is not implemented by the Subrecipient; or 
o The poor performance is of serious concern; or 
o Prior TA was not followed by the Subrecipient. 

- Review all necessary materials and conduct on-site visit(s) as needed 
- Follow contracting procedures for suspension or termination of the Contract if the Subrecipient 

fails to respond and correct the issue(s) 
- Request funds be returned if necessary and appropriate. 



 

 

Attachment A 
 

Income Eligibility Documentation Standards 
 
While Ventura County has established standards for various types of income, the County recognizes that 
in some instances only applicant self-declaration may be possible. This method should be used only as a 
last resort when all other verification methods are not possible or reasonable. When using applicant 
self-declaration, Projects must document why a higher verification standard was not used. Be sure to 
include this in the case file. 
 

Gross  Income  is the amount  of  income  earned  before  any  deductions (such  as  taxes and  health  
insurance premiums) are made. 
 
Current Income is the income that the household is currently receiving. Income recently terminated 
should not be included. 
 

 
Type of Income 

 
Acceptable Types of Documentation 

Wages and Salary Obtain copy of most recent pay stub(s) and include in participant file. 
 

OR Written 3rd Party Verification 

 
Mail, fax or email verification of income request to employer. At a minimum, 
written verification must include: name of employer and participant name, 
pay amount and frequency, average hours worked per week, amount of any 
additional compensation and be signed and dated by employer. Copy kept in 
participant file. 

 

OR Oral 3rd Party Verification 
 

Contact the employer by phone or in person. At a minimum, oral verification 
must include: name of employer and participant name, pay amount and 
frequency, average hours worked per week, amount of any additional 
compensation and be signed and dated by staff who obtained the 
information. Copy kept in participant file. 

 
OR Self Declaration 

 
Obtain signed and dated self-declaration from the participant. At a minimum 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency, and be 
signed. Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts 
to obtain written and oral verification. 

Self-Employment 
and Business 
Income 

Obtain copy of most recent federal and state tax return from the applicant 
and keep copy in participant file. 

 
OR Self Declaration 

 
Obtain signed and dated self-declaration from the participant. At a minimum 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency and be 
signed. Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts 
to obtain written and oral verification. 



 

 

 

 
Interest and 
Dividend Income 

 
Obtain copy of most recent interest or dividend income statement from 
participant and keep copy in participant file. 

 
OR 

 
Obtain copy of most recent federal and state tax return from the applicant 
and keep copy in participant file. 

 
OR Self Declaration 

 
Obtain signed and dated self-declaration from the participant. At a minimum 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency and be 
signed. Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts 
to obtain written and oral verification. 

Pension/Retireme
nt Income 

Obtain copy of most recent payment statement or benefit notice from Social 
Security, pension provider or other source. Copy kept in participant file. 

 

OR Written 3rd Party Verification 
 

Mail, fax or email verification of income request to Social Security, pension 
provider or other source. At a minimum, written verification must include: 
name of income source, income amount and be signed and dated by income 
source representative. Copy kept in participant file. 

 

OR Oral 3rd Party Verification 
 

Contact the source by phone or in person. At a minimum, oral verification must 
include: Name of income source, income amount and be signed and dated by 
income source representative. Copy kept in participant file. 

 
OR Self Declaration 

 
Obtain signed and dated self-declaration from the participant. At a minimum 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency and be 
signed. Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts 
to obtain written and oral verification. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency and be 
signed. Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts 
to obtain written and oral verification. must include source of income, 
income amount and frequency and be signed. Copy kept in participant file. 



 

 

Unemployment 
and Disability 
Income 

Obtain copy of most recent payment statement and or benefit notice. Copy 
kept in participant file. 

 

OR Written 3rd Party Verification 
 

Mail, fax or email verification of income request to unemployment 
administrator, workers compensation administrator of former employer. At 
a minimum, written verification must include: name of income source, 
income amount and be signed and dated by income source representative. 
Copy kept in participant file. 

 

OR Oral 3rd Party Verification 
 

Contact the source by phone or in person. At a minimum, oral verification must 
include: Name of income source, income amount and be signed and dated by 
income source representative. Copy kept in participant file. 
 
OR Self Declaration 

 
Obtain signed and dated self-declaration from the participant. At a minimum 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency and be signed. 
Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts to obtain 
written and oral verification. 

 

TANF/Public Assistance Obtain copy of most recent payment statement and or benefit notice. Copy 
kept in participant file. 

 

OR Written 3rd Party Verification 
 

Mail, fax or email verification of income request to welfare administrator. At a 
minimum, written verification must include: name of income source, income 
amount and be signed and dated by income source representative. Copy kept 
in participant file. 

 

OR Oral 3rd Party Verification 
 

Contact the source by phone or in person. At a minimum, oral verification must 
include: name of income source, income amount and be signed and dated by 
income source representative. Copy kept in participant file. 

 
OR Self Declaration 

 
Obtain signed and dated self-declaration from the participant. At a minimum 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency and be 
signed. Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts 
to obtain written and oral verification. 



 

 

Alimony, Child 
Support, Foster Care 
Payments 

Obtain copy of most recent payment statement, notices or orders. Copy 
kept in participant file. 

 

OR Written 3rd Party Verification 
 

Mail, fax or email verification of income request to child support enforcement 
agency, court liaison or other source. At a minimum, written verification must 
include: name of income source, income amount and be signed and dated by 
income source representative. Copy kept in participant file. 

 

OR Oral 3rd Party Verification 
 

Contact the source by phone or in person. At a minimum, oral verification must 
include: name of income source, income amount and be signed and dated by 
income source representative. Copy kept in participant file. 

 
OR Self Declaration 

 
Obtain signed and dated self-declaration from the participant. At a minimum 
must include source of income, income amount and frequency and be 
signed. Copy kept in participant file. Case manager must document attempts 
to obtain written and oral verification. 

 
 



 

 

Attachment B 
 

Rent Reasonableness Policies and Procedures 
 

(Adapted from HUD’s Homeless Prevention Rapid Re-Housing Grant Guidelines) 
 

Determining and Documenting Rent Reasonableness: Determining and documenting rent reasonableness is 
required under CoC and ESG for leasing and rental assistance projects. Rent reasonableness must be documented 
prior to executing the lease for an assisted unit and at least annually thereafter. Recipients must document the 
assisted unit’s rent reasonableness using the Rent Reasonableness Certification form; this completed form must be 
maintained in each client file to demonstrate that the assisted unit met the rent reasonableness standard. 

 
Below describes the methodology, staffing, data sources, documentation requirements, and special circumstances 
that recipients must use to determine and document rent reasonableness. 

 

Methodology: In order to demonstrate that the assisted unit is rent reasonable, recipients must compare the 
assisted unit’s rent to the rent of at least three (3) comparable unassisted units in the area. Methodologies for 
obtaining comparable rents include: 

 

• Obtaining comparable rents on a unit-by-unit basis from other data sources  

• Obtaining documentation from property owners/managers on current rents charged in comparable 
unassisted units. 

 

Staffing: The responsibility of determining and documenting rent reasonableness should be assigned to program 
staff in the following order of preference: 

 

1. Staff conducting the housing inspection will be responsible for determining and documenting rent 
reasonableness. 

2. The case manager will be responsible for determining and documenting rent reasonableness. 
 

Strategies for Determining Appropriate Comparable Properties: Each and every certification of rent 
reasonableness must consider the following: 

 

• Location: It is important that, not only are the properties close in proximity, but that they have similar 
access to services such as bus lines, grocery stores, etc. and are within the same school boundaries where 
possible. 

• Square Footage (size) 

• Unit Type: Single Family, Duplex, Town House, Low-Rise, High-Rise, Manufactured Home, etc. 

• Quality and Condition of the Unit: Quality of floor coverings, cabinets, appliances, windows and doors as 
well as how well the unit has been maintained may make units more or less desirable and may affect the 
amount of rent the unit commands. 

• Accessibility 

• Amenities/Facilities: 
The following amenities/facilities may have an effect on the amount of rent the unit commands assuming 
that it is in good repair and desirable within the market: 

o Garbage Disposal o Off-Street Parking 
o Dishwasher o Storage Outside of Unit 

 



 

 

o Washer/Dryer in Unit o Laundry Facilities 
o Patio/Balcony/Deck o Club House 
o Fenced Yard o Pool 
o Playground o Fireplace 
o Covered/Garage Parking 

• Age of the Unit and Year of Renovation 

• Utilities 
 

Data Sources: Acceptable data sources used in determining rent reasonableness include the following: 
 

• Newspaper ads (including internet versions of newspaper ads); 

• Classified Ads; 

• Weekly or monthly neighborhood or shopper newspapers that have rental listings; 

• “For Rent” signs in windows or on lawns; 

• Real estate agents; and 

• Property management companies that handle rental property. 

• Rental Listing websites including: 

o www.apartmentguide.com 
o www.apartments.com 
o www.forrentmag.com 
o www.move.com/apartment/main.aspx 

 

Data in Rural Areas: While there may be fewer rental units in rural areas than in urban and suburban areas, it is 
possible to find comparable rents or establish rent payment standards for different unit types located in these 
areas. 

• One source of rental housing data for rural areas may be the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s Rural 
Development Agency. USDA provides direct and guaranteed loans for single and multi-family housing 
development in rural areas as well as for farm laborers. Contact information for Rural Development State 
and Local Offices or USDA Service Centers is available at 
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/recd_map.html. Each Rural Development Office, if it has a Rural Housing 
component, should have information on the types of rental housing available in various communities 
throughout the state, as well as unit sizes and rents. 

• Another potential source of comparable rent data are real estate agents. Local real estate agents are not 
only knowledgeable about real estate prices but often are a source of information on rental housing in the 
area. They may be able to extrapolate rent comparables based on the general cost of housing in the 
area. To find real estate agents active in particular communities, Projects can consult the National 
Association of Realtors on the web at http://www.realtor.org/. For demographic information on the 
housing stock, market trends, etc., projects should access http://www.realtor.org/research. 

 
Strategy for Addressing Special Cases: There may be instances where the above methodology and process is not 
sufficient to establish rent reasonableness for a particular unit. 

 
For example, staff may find in rural areas that there are only one or two comparable units instead of the three (3) 
units specified by the protocol. 

 
Recipients may use alternative methods to determine and document rent reasonableness in the following 
circumstance: 

 

• In rural areas where it may be difficult to find three (3) comparable units. 

• In assessing units with an accessibility feature that the tenant requires due to a disability where it may be 
difficult to find three (3) comparable units. 

 
Documentation Requirements: The following documentation is required to determine rent reasonableness and 
must be kept in the participant file: 

 

http://www.apartmentguide.com/
http://www.apartments.com/
http://www.forrentmag.com/
http://www.move.com/apartment/main.aspx
http://www.rurdev.usda.gov/recd_map.html
http://www.realtor.org/
http://www.realtor.org/research


 

 

• Rent Reasonableness Certification Form 

• Rent Reasonableness – Supplemental and backup documentation (i.e., copies of advertisements of units 
for rent, etc.) used to compare rents. Unit rent must comply with HUD’s standard of rent reasonableness.  

 

 
Special Note Regarding Fair Market Rent: The gross rent (rent + utility allowance) for units receiving rental 
assistance from ESG funds, and leasing funds from the CoC Program cannot exceed the HUD Determined Fair 
Market Rent (FMR). Programs using rental assistance funds from the CoC Program should make efforts to identify 
units that do not exceed FMR, where feasible and where such efforts do not adversely affect the housing process. 
When rental units are available that exceed FMR, programs must document rent reasonableness with the approved 
methodology. Program should keep in mind that while they can use rent reasonableness standards to exceed FMR, 
they must still serve the number of households as detailed in their grant agreement. This guidance is specific to 
programs using rental assistance funds; requirements for projects that use leasing funds are different and addressed 
in Table 13.2 of the CoC Written Standards. 



 

 

Attachment C 
 

Step by Step Guide to Compliance with 
Lead Based Paint Inspection Requirements 

 
Childhood lead poisoning is a major environmental health problem in the United States, especially for low‐income 
families in poor living conditions. If not detected early, children with high levels of lead in their bodies can suffer 
from damage to the brain and nervous system, behavioral and learning problems (such as hyperactivity), slowed 
growth, hearing problems, and headaches. To prevent lead‐poisoning in young children, Lead/Sub Grantees must 
comply with the Lead‐Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act of 1973 and its applicable regulations found at 24 CFR 

§ 35, Parts A, B, M, and R. 

 

 
 

Disclosure requirements are triggered for ALL properties constructed prior to 1978. These requirements require 
that lessors (property owners or managers) provide tenants with: 

• Disclosure form for rental properties disclosing the presence of known and unknown lead‐based paint; 

• A copy of the “Protect Your Family from Lead in the Home” pamphlet. 
 

Both the disclosure form and pamphlet are available at: 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead/enforcement/disclosure.cfm 

 

Sharing this information with your participants (or ensuring they have received it from property ownres/managers) 
is an easy thing to do. This is an important opportunity to educate participants about the potential hazards related 
to lead and their rights as tenants. Informed tenants are more likely to watch for potential problems in their home 
and proactively work with landlords to address any issues. 

 

 
 

Visual assessments are only triggered under certain circumstances: 
 

• The leased property was constructed before 1978; 
AND 

• A child under the age of six (6) will be living in the unit occupied by the household receiving assistance. 

 

 
 

Projects should use formal public records, such as tax assessment records, to establish the age of a unit. These 
records include the year built or age of the property and are available online at: 
h t t p : / / a s s e s s o r . c o u n t y o f v e n t u r a . o r g / r e s e a r c h / p r o p e r t y i n f o . a s p  

 
Remember to print out a copy of the screenshot for the case file. If you have trouble finding this information 
online, contact your local Office of Tax and Revenue for assistance. If not available online, the information is public 
and can be requested from the local authorities. (Note, the taxing authority and the assessment entity may be 
separate governmental entities and office names vary by locality). 

Disclosure Requirements 

Visual Assessment 

Determining the Age of the Unit 

http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead/enforcement/disclosure.cfm
http://assessor.countyofventura.org/research/propertyinfo.asp


 

 

 

 
 

A visual assessment must be conducted prior to providing rent assistance to the unit and on an annual basis 
thereafter (as long as assistance is provided). Visual assessments must be conducted by a HUD‐Certified Visual 
Assessor. It is important to note that a HUD‐Certified Visual Assessor is not equivalent to a Certified Clearance 
Examiner. Anyone may become a HUD‐Certified Visual Assessor by successfully completing a 20‐minute online 
training on HUD’s website at: 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead/training/visualassessment/h00101.html 
The training teaches individuals how to identify deteriorated paint and how deteriorated paint must be treated. 
Projects may choose to have their program staff complete the visual assessments, or they may procure services 
from a contractor. 

 

 
 

If a visual assessment reveals problems with paint surfaces, Project cannot approve the unit for assistance until the 
deteriorating paint has been repaired. At this point, Projects must make a decision: work with the property 
owner/manager to complete needed paint stabilization activities and clearance, work with the household to locate 
a different (lead‐safe) unit, or refer the participant to a different program if assistance cannot be provided. 

 

 
 

To locate a certified lead professional in your area: 
 

• Call your state government (health department, lead poison prevention program, or housing authority). 

• Call the National Lead Information Center at 1‐800‐424‐LEAD (5323). 

• Go  to  the  US  Environmental  Protection  Agency  website  at  http://cfpub.epa.gov/flpp/  and  click  on 
"certified abatement/inspection firms." 

 
Lead professionals, training providers, and HUD‐sponsored Lead Safe Work Practices training listings can be 
accessed at www.leadlisting.org or 1‐888‐LEADLIST. 

 

For more information on the Federal training and certification program for lead professionals, contact the National 
Lead Information Center (NLIC) at http://www.epa.gov/lead/pubs/nlic.html or 1‐800‐424‐LEAD to speak with an 
information specialist. 

 
The Lead Safe Housing Rule as well as a HUD training module to help recipients of funds effectively implement the 
requirements of the Lead Safe Housing Rule in their programs can be accessed at 

http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/affordablehousing/training/web/leadsafe/ 

Conducting a Visual Assessment 

Making Assistance Determinations 

Locating a Certified Lead Professional and Further Training 

http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead/training/visualassessment/h00101.html
http://cfpub.epa.gov/flpp/
http://www.leadlisting.org/
http://www.epa.gov/lead/pubs/nlic.html
http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/affordablehousing/training/web/leadsafe/


 

 

Attachment D 
 

Comparison of Rapid Rehousing Under ESG, CoC and HHAP 
 

 Rapid Rehousing – Eligible 
Costs 

 
 ESG - RRH CoC - RRH HHAP-RRH 

 Rental Assistance • Short-term (up to 3 
months) 

• Medium-term (4 to 24 
months) 

• Rent Arrears (one-
time for up to 6 
months, including 
late fees) 

• Short-term (up to 3 months) 
• Medium-term (4 to 24 

months) 

• Short-term (up to 3 
months) 

• Medium-term (4 to 

24 months) 

Type of  
Rental 

Assistan
ce 

• Tenant based 

• Project based 

• Tenant based only • Tenant based 

• Project based 

Housing 
Relocation and 

Stabilization 
Services 

Financial Costs 
• Rental application Fees 

• Security Deposits (up to 
2 months) 

• Last month’s rent 

• Utility Deposits and 
payments (up to 24 
months, including 6 
months of arrears) 

• Moving costs 

 
Service Costs 

• Housing Search and 

Placement 

• Housing stability case 

management 

• Mediation 

• Legal services 

• Credit repair 

• Budgeting 

• Money Management 

Financial Assistance 
• Security deposits (up to 2 

months) 

• First and last month’s rent 

 
Supportive Services 

• Case management 

• Child Care 
• Education services 

• Employment 
assistance and job 
training 

• Food 

• Housing search and 
counseling services, 
including mediation, 
credit repair, and 
payment of rental 
application fee 

• Legal services 

• Life skills training 

• Mental health services 

• Moving costs 

• Outpatient health services 

• Outreach services 

• Substance abuse treatment 

services 
• Transportation 

• Utility deposits 

Financial Costs 
• Rental application 

Fees 

• Security Deposits (up 
to 2 months) 

• Utility Deposits 
and payments 
(up to 24 
months, including 
6 months of 
arrears) 

• Moving costs 
 
Supportive Services 

• Case management 
Housing Search and 
housing stabilization 
services, including 
mediation, legal 
services, credit repair, 
budgeting 

 
  



 

 

Attachment E 
 

HHAP Outcome Goals 
 
Outcome Goals Per Health and Safety Code Section 50220.7 (b)(3)(C)(ii), must set definitive metrics, based 
on the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development’s system performance measures, 
for achieving the following: 1. Reducing the number of persons experiencing homelessness; 2. Reducing 
the number of persons who become homeless for the first time; Homeless Housing, Assistance and 
Prevention Program – Round 3 – NOFA Page 10 of 23 3. Increasing the number of people exiting 
homelessness into permanent housing; 4. Reducing the length of time persons remain homeless; 5. 
Reducing the number of persons who return to homelessness after exiting homelessness to permanent 
housing; 6. Increasing successful placements from street outreach; and 7. Homeless Management 
Information System trackable data goals related to the outcome goals listed above as they apply to 
underserved populations and populations disproportionately impacted by homelessness. Recipients may 
reference their contract for approved outcomes/goals. 

 
 Rental Assistance Overview 
 ESG – RRH Rental Assistance 

(24 CFR § 576.104) 
CoC – RRH Rental Assistance 

(24 CFR § 578.37(a)(1)(ii)) 

Housing Standards Units must pass HUD Habitability 
Standards 

Units must pass HUD Housing Quality 
Standards (HQS) 

Fair Market Rent 
         (FMR) 

 

Rental unit may cover up to FMR for 
rental unit 

Rent Reasonableness is the rent standard 

 

Rent 
Reasonableness 

Units must comply with HUD’s rent 
reasonableness standards 

Units in a structure must comply with 
HUD’s rent reasonableness standards 

Lease 
Requirements 

• A written lease between the owner 
and the participant is required for 
TBRA and PBRA. 

• For participants living in housing 
with PBRA, the lease must have an 
initial term of one year. There is no 
minimum lease period for TBRA. 

• The only exception to the written 
lease requirement is in the case of 
rental assistance provided solely for 
rental arrears. 

Participants receiving TBRA must sign a 
lease of at least one year that is 
renewable (for a minimum term of one 
month) and terminable only for cause. 



 

 

Written Standards Recipients and Subrecipients must 
implement written policies and 
procedures for: 

• Determining and prioritizing which 
eligible families and individuals will 
receive RRH assistance 

• Determining the amount or 
percentage of rent and utilities 
each participant must pay 

• Determining how long a particular 
participant will be provided with 
rental assistance and whether and 
how the amount of that assistance 
will be adjusted over time 

Recipients and Subrecipients must 
consistently follow policies and 
procedures established for: 

• Determining and prioritizing which 
eligible families and individuals will 
receive RRH assistance 

• Determining the amount or 
percentage of rent each participant 
must pay 

• Determining the maximum amount 
or percentage of rental assistance 
that a participant may receive 

• Determining the maximum number 
of months that a participant may 
receive rental assistance 

• Determining the maximum number 
of times that a participant may 
receive rental assistance 

• Determining the extent to which a 
participant must share the cost of 
rent 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

Attachment F 
 

Rent Reasonableness Certification 
 

 

 

 Proposed Unit Unit #1 Unit #2 Unit #3 

Address     

Number of 

Bedrooms/Bathroo

ms 

    

Type of Unit 

(Low-Rise, Hi-Rise, Single 

Family, Duplex etc.) 

    

Neighborhood     

Housing Condition     

Location/Accessibility     

Amenities (List):     

    

    

    

    

Yr Built/Renovated     

Utilities Not Included 

in Rent (E,W,S,G,T) 

    

Unit Rent $  $    $  $                                

Utility Allowance $  $    $  $  

Gross Rent $  $    $  $  

Handicap Accessible?     

 

 

Based on a comparison with rents for comparable units, I have determined that the proposed rent for the unit   [  ] IS  

reasonable. The proposed unit gross rent is no more than $100 above the gross rent of three comparable units.  

 

 

By signing below, I hereby certify that the above information is correct and accurate to the best of my knowledge; that 

this form is accompanied by backup documentation attesting to the specified information for the participant’s unit, all 

comparable units, and the applicable FMR value; and that based on the above, the participant’s unit meets the applicable 

FMR and RR standards.  

 

 

 

Staff Signature:    Date:   

 



 

 

Attachment G 
 

LEASE ADDENDUM 
VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND JUSTICE DEPARTMENT REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 2005 

TENANT 
 

LANDLORD UNIT NO. & ADDRESS 

 

 

This lease addendum adds the following paragraphs to the Lease between the above 
referenced Tenant and Landlord. 
 

Purpose of the Addendum   
 

The lease for the above referenced unit is being amended to include the provisions of 
the Violence Against Women and Justice Department Reauthorization Act of 2005 
(VAWA).   

 

Conflicts with Other Provisions of the Lease 
  
In case of any conflict between the provisions of this Addendum and other sections of 
the Lease, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail. 

 

Term of the Lease Addendum 
 

The effective date of this Lease Addendum is  ______________.  This Lease Addendum 
shall continue to be in effect until the Lease is terminated. 

 

VAWA Protections 
  
1. The Landlord may not consider incidents of domestic violence, dating violence or 

stalking as serious or repeated violations of the lease or other “good cause” for 
termination of assistance, tenancy or occupancy rights of the victim of abuse.   

2. The Landlord may not consider criminal activity directly relating to abuse, engaged 
in by a member of a tenant’s household or any guest or other person under the 
tenant’s control, cause for termination of assistance, tenancy, or occupancy rights if 
the tenant or an immediate member of the tenant’s family is the victim or 
threatened victim of that abuse. 

3. The Landlord may request in writing that the victim, or a family member on the 
victim’s behalf, certify that the individual is a victim of abuse and that the 
Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence or Stalking, Form HUD-91066, or 
other documentation as noted on the certification form, be completed and 
submitted within 14 business days, or an agreed upon extension date, to receive 
protection under the VAWA.  Failure to provide the certification or other supporting 
documentation within the specified timeframe may result in eviction. 
 

 _________________________________________  __________________ 
 Tenant         Date  
 _________________________________________  __________________
 Landlord        Date  
  



 

 

Attachment H 
 

Rental Assistance Agreement 
This Rental Assistance Agreement is entered into between 

 

      (“Agency”) and  (“Owner”). 
                                                                                            

 

The purpose of this Agreement is to assist the Household identified in Section I below to lease a 

decent, safe, and sanitary dwelling unit from Owner. Agency will make rental assistance payments to 

the Owner on behalf of Household in accordance with this Agreement. 

I. Dwelling Unit and Household 
This Agreement applies only to the Household and Dwelling Unit designated below. Owner has leased 

the Dwelling Unit to the Household through a separate and distinct lease agreement. 

Dwelling Unit (“Unit”)    

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Head of Household 

 
 

 
 

 

II. Term of Agreement 
The term of this Agreement shall begin on and shall end upon 

30 days written notice from Agency. 
 

 

III. Rental Assistance Payment 
 

 

The Agency agrees to pay a portion, as determined and calculated solely by the Agency, of the Unit 

rent. This amount is subject to change at any time during the term of this Agreement. Any portion of 

the rent that is paid by Agency will be paid to Owner on or about the first day of the month for 

which the Unit rent is due. The rental assistance payment is equal to the difference between the Unit 

rent and the rent paid by the Household; at no time shall the rent paid by the Household and the 

rental assistance payment exceed the Unit rent. The Agency assumes no obligation for the Unit rent, 

or payment of any claim by the Owner against the Household, for damages or other amounts owed to 

the Owner. 
 

 

IV. Notification to the Agency 
 

 

During the term of this Agreement, Owner agrees to provide Agency with a copy of the following 
documentation: 

A. Amendments to the lease agreement between the Owner and the Household, including 

but not limited to, changes in rent, utilities, ownership or mailing address; and 

B. Notices to the Household, including but not limited to, notices to comply, terminations of 
tenancy, or eviction. 

  



 

 

Attachment I 
 

Housing Stability Plan 
Client Name: ____________________________________ 

Goal Strategies & Steps Target Date Goal Achieved (Yes/No) 
If No, Why? 

Notes 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 
Client Signature:________________________________        Date:____________________________ 
Case Manager Signature:_________________________        Date:____________________________ 



 

 

Attachment J 
 

§ 5.2005 VAWA protections. 

(a) Notification of occupancy rights under VAWA, and certification form. 

(1) A covered housing provider must provide to each of its applicants and to each of its tenants the 
notice of occupancy rights and the certification form as described in this section: 

(i) A “Notice of Occupancy Rights under the Violence Against Women Act,” as prescribed and in 
accordance with directions provided by HUD, that explains the VAWA protections under this 
subpart, including the right to confidentiality, and any limitations on those protections; and 

(ii) A certification form, in a form approved by HUD, to be completed by the victim to document an 
incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, and that: 

(A) States that the applicant or tenant is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking; 

(B) States that the incident of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking that 
is the ground for protection under this subpart meets the applicable definition for such incident 
under § 5.2003; and 

(C) Includes the name of the individual who committed the domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, if the name is known and safe to provide. 

(2) The notice required by paragraph (a)(1)(i) of this section and certification form required 
by paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section must be provided to an applicant or tenant no later than at each 
of the following times: 

(i) At the time the applicant is denied assistance or admission under a covered housing program; 

(ii) At the time the individual is provided assistance or admission under the covered housing 
program; 

(iii) With any notification of eviction or notification of termination of assistance; and 

(iv) During the 12-month period following December 16, 2016, either during the annual 
recertification or lease renewal process, whichever is applicable, or, if there will be no recertification 
or lease renewal for a tenant during the first year after the rule takes effect, through other means. 

(3) The notice required by paragraph (a)(1)(i) of this section and the certification form required 
by paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section must be made available in multiple languages, consistent with 
guidance issued by HUD in accordance with Executive Order 13166 (Improving Access to Services for 
Persons with Limited English Proficiency, signed August 11, 2000, and published in the FEDERAL 

REGISTER on August 16, 2000 (at 65 FR 50121). 

(4) For the Housing Choice Voucher program under 24 CFR part 982, the project-based voucher 
program under 24 CFR part 983, the public housing admission and occupancy requirements under 24 
CFR part 960, and renewed funding or leases of the Section 8 project-based program under 24 CFR 
parts 880, 882, 883, 884, 886, as well as project-based section 8 provided in connection with housing 
under part 891, the HUD-required lease, lease addendum, or tenancy addendum, as applicable, must 
include a description of specific protections afforded to the victims of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as provided in this subpart. 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=4b78e5fd2284e72f267e7c82c1664dd7&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=4b78e5fd2284e72f267e7c82c1664dd7&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2003
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#a_1_i
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#a_1_ii
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#a_1_i
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#a_1_ii
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=4b78e5fd2284e72f267e7c82c1664dd7&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/rio/citation/65_FR_50121
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-982
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-983
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=f9620cc61bdef7a5b54a9413ab171a2d&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-960
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-960
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-880
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-882
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-883
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-884
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/part-886
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=4b78e5fd2284e72f267e7c82c1664dd7&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005


 

 

(b) Prohibited basis for denial or termination of assistance or eviction - 

(1) General. An applicant for assistance or tenant assisted under a covered housing program may not 
be denied admission to, denied assistance under, terminated from participation in, or evicted from the 
housing on the basis or as a direct result of the fact that the applicant or tenant is or has been a victim 
of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, if the applicant or tenant otherwise 
qualifies for admission, assistance, participation, or occupancy. 

(2) Termination on the basis of criminal activity. A tenant in a covered housing program may not be 
denied tenancy or occupancy rights solely on the basis of criminal activity directly relating to domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking if: 

(i) The criminal activity is engaged in by a member of the household of the tenant or any guest or 
other person under the control of the tenant, and 

(ii) The tenant or an affiliated individual of the tenant is the victim or threatened victim of 
such domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking. 

(c) Construction of lease terms and terms of assistance. An incident of actual or threatened domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking shall not be construed as: 

(1) A serious or repeated violation of a lease executed under a covered housing program by the victim 
or threatened victim of such incident; or 

(2) Good cause for terminating the assistance, tenancy, or occupancy rights under a covered housing 
program of the victim or threatened victim of such incident. 

(d) Limitations of VAWA protections. 

(1) Nothing in this section limits the authority of a covered housing provider, when notified of a court 
order, to comply with a court order with respect to: 

(i) The rights of access or control of property, including civil protection orders issued to protect a 
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking; or 

(ii) The distribution or possession of property among members of a household. 

(2) Nothing in this section limits any available authority of a covered housing provider to evict or 
terminate assistance to a tenant for any violation not premised on an act of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking that is in question against the tenant or an affiliated individual of 
the tenant. However, the covered housing provider must not subject the tenant, who is or has been a 
victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, or is affiliated with an individual 
who is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking, to a more 
demanding standard than other tenants in determining whether to evict or terminate assistance. 

(3) Nothing in this section limits the authority of a covered housing provider to terminate assistance to 
or evict a tenant under a covered housing program if the covered housing provider can demonstrate 
an actual and imminent threat to other tenants or those employed at or providing service to property 
of the covered housing provider would be present if that tenant or lawful occupant is not evicted or 
terminated from assistance. In this context, words, gestures, actions, or other indicators will be 
considered an “actual and imminent threat” if they meet the standards provided in the definition of 
“actual and imminent threat” in § 5.2003. 

(4) Any eviction or termination of assistance, as provided in paragraph (d)(3) of this section should be 
utilized by a covered housing provider only when there are no other actions that could be taken to 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cb4cea639e82023ca65000b3bb771d7c&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b2146686292e0763791c1afe4d463879&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=10&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=11&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=68f4ed95945f745fc671b87470d9e3f8&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=12&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=10&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=10&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=10&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=10&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cb4cea639e82023ca65000b3bb771d7c&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=13&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=11&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=11&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=11&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=11&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=11&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=14&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=68f4ed95945f745fc671b87470d9e3f8&term_occur=2&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=15&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=16&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=12&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=12&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=12&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=12&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=13&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=13&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=13&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=13&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=17&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=18&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=5cd689da1bee15f3647c28d76070a4db&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=19&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=20&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2003
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#d_3
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005


 

 

reduce or eliminate the threat, including, but not limited to, transferring the victim to a different unit, 
barring the perpetrator from the property, contacting law enforcement to increase police presence or 
develop other plans to keep the property safe, or seeking other legal remedies to prevent the 
perpetrator from acting on a threat. Restrictions predicated on public safety cannot be based on 
stereotypes, but must be tailored to particularized concerns about individual residents. 

(e) Emergency transfer plan. Each covered housing provider, as identified in the program-specific 
regulations for the covered housing program, shall adopt an emergency transfer plan, no later than 
June 14, 2017 based on HUD's model emergency transfer plan, in accordance with the following: 

(1) For purposes of this section, the following definitions apply: 

(i) Internal emergency transfer refers to an emergency relocation of a tenant to another unit where 
the tenant would not be categorized as a new applicant; that is, the tenant may reside in the new 
unit without having to undergo an application process. 

(ii) External emergency transfer refers to an emergency relocation of a tenant to another unit where 
the tenant would be categorized as a new applicant; that is the tenant must undergo an application 
process in order to reside in the new unit. 

(iii) Safe unit refers to a unit that the victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
or stalking believes is safe. 

(2) The emergency transfer plan must provide that a tenant receiving rental assistance through, or 
residing in a unit subsidized under, a covered housing program who is a victim of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking qualifies for an emergency transfer if: 

(i) The tenant expressly requests the transfer; and 

(ii) 

(A) The tenant reasonably believes there is a threat of imminent harm from further violence if 
the tenant remains within the same dwelling unit that the tenant is currently occupying; or 

(B) In the case of a tenant who is a victim of sexual assault, either the tenant reasonably believes 
there is a threat of imminent harm from further violence if the tenant remains within the same 
dwelling unit that the tenant is currently occupying, or the sexual assault occurred on the 
premises during the 90-calendar-day period preceding the date of the request for transfer. 

(3) The emergency transfer plan must detail the measure of any priority given to tenants who qualify 
for an emergency transfer under VAWA in relation to other categories of tenants seeking transfers and 
individuals seeking placement on waiting lists. 

(4) The emergency transfer plan must incorporate strict confidentiality measures to ensure that 
the covered housing provider does not disclose the location of the dwelling unit of the tenant to a 
person who committed or threatened to commit an act of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking against the tenant. 

(5) The emergency transfer plan must allow a tenant to make an internal emergency transfer 
under VAWA when a safe unit is immediately available. 

(6) The emergency transfer plan must describe policies for assisting a tenant in making an internal 
emergency transfer under VAWA when a safe unit is not immediately available, and these policies must 
ensure that requests for internal emergency transfers under VAWA receive, at a minimum, any 

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=4b78e5fd2284e72f267e7c82c1664dd7&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=21&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=22&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=23&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=24&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=25&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=3ee71cb3317d81c152ccf21be9711944&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=26&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=14&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=14&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=14&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=14&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=27&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=9&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=15&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=15&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=15&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=15&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=15&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=28&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=29&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=30&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=31&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=32&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=17&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=33&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=34&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=35&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=16&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=36&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=3&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=37&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=10&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=38&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=16&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=16&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=18&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=18&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=16&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=39&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=40&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=4&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=41&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=5&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005


 

 

applicable additional priority that housing providers may already provide to other types of emergency 
transfer requests. 

(7) The emergency transfer plan must describe reasonable efforts the covered housing provider will 
take to assist a tenant who wishes to make an external emergency transfer when a safe unit is not 
immediately available. The plan must include policies for assisting a tenant who is seeking an external 
emergency transfer under VAWA out of the covered housing provider's program or project, and 
a tenant who is seeking an external emergency transfer under VAWA into the covered housing 
provider's program or project. These policies may include: 

(i) Arrangements, including memoranda of understanding, with other covered housing providers to 
facilitate moves; and 

(ii) Outreach activities to organizations that assist or provide resources to victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 

(8) Nothing may preclude a tenant from seeking an internal emergency transfer and an external 
emergency transfer concurrently if a safe unit is not immediately available. 

(9) Where applicable, the emergency transfer plan must describe policies for a tenant who has tenant-
based rental assistance and who meets the requirements of paragraph (e)(2) of this section to move 
quickly with that assistance. 

(10) The emergency transfer plan may require documentation from a tenant seeking an emergency 
transfer, provided that: 

(i) The tenant's submission of a written request to the covered housing provider, where 
the tenant certifies that they meet the criteria in paragraph (e)(2)(ii) of this section, shall be 
sufficient documentation of the requirements in paragraph (e)(2) of this section; 

(ii) The covered housing provider may, at its discretion, ask an individual seeking an emergency 
transfer to document the occurrence of domestic violence, dating violence, asexual assault, 
or stalking, in accordance with § 5.2007, for which the individual is seeking the emergency transfer, 
if the individual has not already provided documentation of that occurrence; and 

(iii) No other documentation is required to qualify the tenant for an emergency transfer. 

(11) The covered housing provider must make its emergency transfer plan available upon request and, 
when feasible, must make its plan publicly available. 

(12) The covered housing provider must keep a record of all emergency transfers requested under its 
emergency transfer plan, and the outcomes of such requests, and retain these records for a period of 
three years, or for a period of time as specified in program regulations. Requests and outcomes of such 
requests must be reported to HUD annually. 

(13) Nothing in this paragraph (e) may be construed to supersede any eligibility or other occupancy 
requirements that may apply under a covered housing program. 

  

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=11&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=42&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=43&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=12&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=44&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=dda74f15827648a3bf96c33629390c69&term_occur=8&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=13&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=13&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=55325fc6e0e6f9a6e61a2d3bfd1c422b&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=17&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=17&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=17&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=19&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=17&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=45&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=46&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=47&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#e_2
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=48&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=49&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=14&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=50&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#e_2_ii
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2005#e_2
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=15&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ff124933889800dc6209a767e4b8e167&term_occur=18&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=cd8423fe6c3dbffd7ca77417be620a4d&term_occur=18&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=251a6340b94c467704440cc47e2483dc&term_occur=20&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=b0a8026225766717ae3a9247eac04345&term_occur=18&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/24/5.2007
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=ae446c33a0510a20363d26c1736ed28a&term_occur=51&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=16&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=66d973f5a6df3fd807182bb85f9c7b1a&term_occur=17&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=4b78e5fd2284e72f267e7c82c1664dd7&term_occur=6&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=1a7074b9935d953e7d8d8a3a19dd5f94&term_occur=10&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:L:5.2005


 

 

Attachment K 
 

PART 578—CONTINUUM OF CARE PROGRAM 
 
31. The authority citation for part 578 continues to read as follows: 
Authority: 42 U.S.C. 11371 et seq., 42 U.S.C. 3535(d). 
 
32. In § 578.7, paragraphs (a)(9)(ii), (iii) and (v) are revised and paragraph (d) is 
added to read as follows: 
 
§ 578.7 Responsibilities of the Continuum of Care. 
 
(a) * * * 
(9) * * * 
(ii) Policies and procedures for determining and prioritizing which eligible individuals and families will 
receive transitional housing assistance (these policies must include the emergency transfer priority 
required under § 578.99(j)(8)); 
(iii) Policies and procedures for determining and prioritizing which eligible individuals and families will 
receive rapid rehousing assistance (these policies must include the emergency transfer priority 
required under § 578.99(j)(8)); 
(v) Policies and procedures for determining and prioritizing which eligible individuals and families will 
receive permanent supportive housing assistance (these policies must include the emergency transfer 
priority required under § 78.99(j)(8)); and 
* 
(d) VAWA emergency transfer plan. The Continuum of Care must develop the emergency transfer plan 
for the Continuum of Care that meets the requirements under § 578.99(j)(8). 
 
33. In § 578.51, add paragraph (m) to read as follows: 
 
§ 578.51 Rental assistance.* 
 
(m) VAWA emergency transfer plan costs. Recipients and subrecipients of grants for tenant-based 
rental assistance may use grant funds to pay amounts owed for breaking the lease if the family 
qualifies for an emergency transfer under the emergency transfer plan established under § 
578.99(j)(8). 
 
34. In § 578.75, add paragraph (j) to read as follows: 
 
§ 578.75 General operations.* 
 
(j) Remaining program participants following bifurcation of a lease or eviction as a result of domestic 
violence. For permanent supportive housing projects, members of any household who were living in 
a unit assisted under this part at the time of a qualifying member's eviction from the unit because the 
qualifying member was found to have engaged in criminal activity directly relating to domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, have the right to rental 
assistance under this section until the expiration of the lease in effect at the time of the qualifying 
member's eviction. 
 



 

 

35. In § 578.99, add paragraph (j) to read as follows: 
 
§ 578.99 Applicability of other Federal requirements. 
 
(j) Protections for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking—(1) 
General. The requirements set forth in 24 CFR part 5, subpart L (Protection for Victims of Domestic 
Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking), implementing the requirements of VAWA apply 
to all permanent housing and transitional housing for which Continuum of Care program funds are 
used for acquisition, rehabilitation, new construction, leasing, rental assistance, or operating costs. 
The requirements also apply where funds are used for homelessness prevention, but only where the 
funds are used to provide short- and/or medium-term rental assistance. Safe havens are subject only 
to the requirements in paragraph (j)(9) of this section. 
 
(2) Definition of covered housing provider. For the Continuum of Care program, “covered housing 
provider,” as such term is used in HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 5, subpart L refers to:  
 
(i) The owner or landlord, which may be the recipient or subrecipient, for purposes of 24 CFR 
5.2005(d)(1) and 5.2009(a); 
 
(ii) The recipient, subrecipient, and owner or landlord for purposes of 24 CFR 5.2005(d)(2) through 
(d)(4); and 
 
(iii) The recipient, subrecipient, and owner or landlord for purposes of 24 CFR 5.2007. However, the 
recipient or subrecipient may limit documentation requests under § 5.2007 to only the recipient or 
subrecipient, provided that: 
 
(i) This limitation is made clear in both the notice described under 24 CFR 5.2005(a)(1) and the rental 
assistance agreement; 
 
(ii) The entity designated to receive documentation requests determines whether the program 
participant is entitled to protection under VAWA and immediately advise the program participant of 
the determination; and 
 
(iii) If the program participant is entitled to protection, the entity designated to receive 
documentation requests must notify the owner in writing that the program participant is entitled to 
protection under VAWA and work with the owner on the program participant's behalf. Any further 
sharing or disclosure of the program participant's information will be subject to the requirements in 
24 CFR 5.2007. 
 
(3) Effective date. The core statutory protections of VAWA that prohibit denial or termination of 
assistance or eviction solely because an applicant or tenant is a victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, applied upon enactment of VAWA 2013 on March 7, 2013. 
Compliance with the VAWA regulatory requirements under this section and at 24 CFR part 5, subpart 
L, is required for grants awarded pursuant to NOFAs published on or after December 16, 2016. 
 
(4) Notification requirements. (i) The recipient or subrecipient must provide each individual or family 
applying for permanent housing and transitional housing and each program participant the notice and 
the certification form described in 24 CFR 5.2005 at each of the following times: 
 



 

 

(A) When an individual or family is denied permanent housing or transitional housing; 
 
(B) When a program participant is admitted to permanent housing or transitional housing; 
 
(C) When a program participant receives notification of eviction; and 
 
(D) When a program participant is notified of termination of assistance. 
 
(ii) When grant funds are used for rental assistance, the recipient or subrecipient must ensure that 
the owner or manager of the housing provides the notice and certification form described in 24 CFR 
5.2005(a) to the program participant with any notification of eviction. This commitment and the 
confidentiality requirements under 24 CFR 
5.2007(c) must be set forth in a contract with the owner or landlord. 
 
(5) Contract, lease, and occupancy agreement provisions. (i) Recipients and subrecipients must include 
in any contracts and leases between the recipient or subrecipient, and an owner or landlord of the 
housing: 
 
(A) The requirement to comply with 24 CFR part 5, subpart L; and 
 
(B) Where the owner or landlord of the housing will have a lease with a program participant, the 
requirement to include a lease provision that include all requirements that apply to tenants, the 
owner or the lease under 24 CFR part 5, subpart L, as supplemented by this part, including the 
prohibited bases for eviction and restrictions on construing lease terms under 24 CFR 5.2005(b) and 
(c). 
 
(ii) The recipient or subrecipient must include in any lease, sublease, and occupancy agreement with 
the program participant a provision that include all requirements that apply to tenants, the owner or 
the lease under 24 CFR part 5, subpart L, as supplemented by this part, including the prohibited bases 
for eviction and restrictions on construing lease terms under 24 CFR 5.2005(b) and (c). The lease, 
sublease, and occupancy agreement may specify that the protections 
under 24 CFR part 5, subpart L, apply only during the period of assistance under the Continuum of 
Care Program. The period of assistance for housing where grant funds were used for acquisition, 
construction, or rehabilitation is 15 years from the date of initial occupancy or date of initial service 
provision. 
 
(iii) Except for tenant-based rental assistance, recipients and subrecipients must require that any 
lease, sublease, or occupancy agreement with a program participant permits the program participant 
to terminate the lease, sublease, or occupancy agreement without penalty if the recipient or 
subrecipient determines that the program participant qualifies for an emergency transfer under the 
emergency transfer plan established under paragraph (j)(8) of this section. 
 
(iv) For tenant-based rental assistance, the recipient or subrecipient must enter into a contract with 
the owner or landlord of the housing that: 
 
(A) Requires the owner or landlord of the housing to comply with the provisions of 24 CFR part 5, 
subpart L; and 
(B) Requires the owner or landlord of the housing to include a lease provision that include all 
requirements that apply to tenants, the owner or the lease under 24 CFR part 5, subpart L, as 



 

 

supplemented by this part, including the prohibited bases for eviction and restrictions on construing 
lease terms under 24 CFR 5.005(b) and (c). The lease may specify that the protections under 24 CFR 
part 5, subpart L, only apply while the program participant receives tenant-based rental assistance 
under the Continuum of Care Program. 
 
(6) Transition. (i) The recipient or subrecipient must ensure that the requirements set forth in 
paragraph (j)(5) of this section apply to any contracts, leases, subleases, or occupancy agreements 
entered into, or renewed, following the expiration of an existing term, on or after the effective date 
in paragraph (j)(2) of this section. This obligation includes any contracts, leases, subleases, and 
occupancy agreements that will automatically renew on or after the effective date in paragraph (j)(3) 
of this section. 
 
(ii) For leases for tenant-based rental assistance existing prior to the effective date in paragraph (j)(2) 
of this section, recipients and subrecipients must enter into a contract under paragraph (j)(6)(iv) of 
this section before the next renewal of the lease. 
 
(7) Bifurcation. For the purposes of this part, the following requirements shall apply in place of the 
requirements at 24 CFR 5.2009(b): 
 
(i) If a family who is receiving tenant-based rental assistance under this part separates under 24 CFR 
5.2009(a), the family's tenant-based rental assistance and any utility assistance shall continue for the 
family member(s) who are not evicted or removed. 
 
(ii) If a family living in permanent supportive housing separates under 24 CFR 5.2009(a), and the 
family's eligibility for the housing was based on the evicted individual's disability or chronically 
homeless status, the remaining tenants may stay in the project as provided under § 578.75(i) 
(2). Otherwise, if a family living in a project funded under this part separates under 24 CFR 5.2009(a), 
the remaining tenant(s) will be eligible to remain in the project. 
 
(8) Emergency transfer plan. The Continuum of Care must develop an emergency transfer plan for the 
Continuum of Care, and recipients and subrecipients in the Continuum of Care must follow that plan. 
The plan must comply with 24 CFR 5.2005(e) and include the following program requirements: 
 
(i) For families receiving tenant-based rental assistance, the plan must specify what will happen with 
respect to the non-transferring family member(s), if the family separates in order to effect an 
emergency transfer. 
 
(ii) For families living in units that are otherwise assisted under this part (assisted units), the required 
policies must provide that for program participants who qualify for an emergency transfer but a safe 
unit is not immediately available for an internal emergency transfer, the individual or family shall have 
priority over all other applicants for rental assistance, transitional housing, and permanent supportive 
housing projects funded under this part, provided that: The individual or family meets all eligibility 
criteria required by Federal law or regulation or HUD NOFA; and the individual or family meets any 
additional criteria or preferences established in accordance with § 578.93(b)(1), (4), (6), or (7). The 
individual or family shall not be required to meet any other eligibility criteria or preferences for the 
project. The individual or family shall retain their original homeless or chronically homeless status for 
the purposes of the transfer. 
 



 

 

(9) Protections with respect to safe havens. The following requirements apply to safe havens funded 
under this part: 
 
(i) No individual may be denied admission to or removed from the safe haven on the basis or as a 
direct result of the fact that the individual is or has been a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking, if the individual otherwise qualifies for admission or occupancy. 
 
(iii) The terms “affiliated individual,” “dating violence,” “domestic violence,” “sexual assault,” and 
“stalking” are defined in 24 CFR 5.2003. 
 
36. In § 578.103, revise the heading of paragraph (a)(6), redesignate paragraphs 
(a)(6)(i) and (ii) as paragraphs (a)(6)(i)(A) and (B), respectively, redesignate 
paragraph (a)(6) introductory text as (a)(6)(i) introductory text, and add new 
paragraph (a)(6)(ii) to read as follows: 
 
§ 578.103 Recordkeeping requirements. 
 
(a) * * * 
(6) Moves for victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, and stalking. * * * 
(ii) Data on emergency transfers requested under 24 CFR 5.2005(e) and § 578.99, pertaining to victims 
of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, including data on the outcomes of 
such requests. 
  



 

 

  
Attachment L 

 

Housing Providers with ESG and CoC Program Funds 

Emergency Transfer Plan for Victims of Domestic Violence, 

Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking 
 

 

Content 

I. Description 

II. Eligibility 

III. Emergency Transfer Request 

IV. Confidentiality 

V. Timing & Availability 

VI. Safety & Security of Tenants 

VII. Resources and Links to Services  

VIII. Denials for Service 

IX. Appendix D (HUD Form 5382) – Certification 

X. Appendix E (HUD Form 5383) – Transfer Request Form 

 

 

I. Description 
[Housing Provider Name] is concerned about the safety of its tenants, assisted through 
the Ventura County Continuum of Care (CoC). In accordance with the Violence Against 
Women Act (VAWA)¹, HP’s within the CoC will allow tenants who are victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to request emergency transfer of 
assistance between housing units when there is imminent risk of harm. The ability to request 
a transfer is available regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation.1  The ability of 
HP to honor such request for tenants currently receiving assistance, however, may depend 
upon: 
 

1. A preliminary determination that the tenant is or has been a victim of domestic 

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and  

2. Whether HP has another dwelling unit that is available and is safe to offer the tenant 

for temporary or more permanent occupancy.  

 
Furthermore, this plan identifies:  
 

1. Tenants who are eligible for an emergency transfer 

2. Documentation needed to request an emergency transfer 

3. Confidentiality protections 

 
1 Housing providers cannot discriminate on the basis of any protected characteristic, including race, color, 
national origin, religion, sex, familial status, disability, or age.  HUD-assisted and HUD-insured housing must be 
made available to all otherwise eligible individuals regardless of actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender 
identity, or marital status. 
 



 

 

4. How an emergency transfer may occur, and  

5. Guidance to tenants on safety and security  

 
This plan is based on a model emergency transfer plan published by the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the Federal agency that oversees that [name of 
(rental) assistance program] is in compliance with VAWA.  However, tenants must 
understand and acknowledge that transfers to other units is dependent upon availability. 

 
 
II. Eligibility for Emergency Transfers 

 
A tenant who is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as 
provided in HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR part 5, subpart L is eligible for an emergency 
transfer, if:  
 

1. The tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of imminent harm from further 

violence if the tenant remains within the same unit 

2. If the tenant is a victim of sexual assault, the tenant may also be eligible to transfer if 

the sexual assault occurred on the premises within the 90-calendar-day period 

preceding a request for an emergency transfer. 

 
A tenant requesting an emergency transfer must expressly request the transfer in accordance 
with the procedures described in this plan.   
 
Tenants who are not in good standing may still request an emergency transfer if they meet 
the eligibility requirements in this section.   
 
 

III. Emergency Transfer Request Documentation 

 
HP will make the Emergency Transfer Plans available to tenants upon request. 
 
To request an emergency transfer, the tenant shall notify HP’s management office and 
submit a written request for a transfer to [HP to insert location]. HP will provide 
reasonable accommodations to this policy for individuals with disabilities.  The tenant’s 
written request for an emergency transfer should include either: 
 

1. A statement expressing that the tenant reasonably believes that there is a threat of 

imminent harm from further violence if the tenant were to remain in the same 

dwelling unit assisted under HP’s program; OR 

2. A statement that the tenant was a sexual assault victim and that the sexual assault 

occurred on the premises during the 90-calendar-day period preceding the tenant’s 

request for an emergency transfer.   

Tenant’s written request to the HP, where the tenant self- certifies that they meet the criteria 
in the general qualifications section of this policy, is sufficient documentation to meet the 
VAWA requirements. The types of transfers that can take place are: 
 

• External emergency transfer refers to an emergency relocation of a tenant to another 

unit where the tenant would be categorized as a new applicant; that is, the tenant must 

undergo an application process in order to reside in the new unit. 



 

 

 

• Internal emergency transfer refers to an emergency relocation of a tenant to another 

unit where the tenant would not be categorized as a new applicant; that is, the tenant 

may reside in the new unit without having to undergo an application process.  

 
The housing provider and CoC Coordinated Entry System staff will take every reasonable 
effort to locate alternate safe housing for tenants requesting emergency transfer that meet 
VAWA eligibility as defined in section I. Housing comparable to that being vacated and 
which is acceptable to the tenant is preferred, however, an alternate form of housing that is 
safe may be offered as an immediate, temporary response. Efforts to identify alternate 
housing and client acceptance or refusal of the housing offered will be documented in a 
tenant record maintained by the agency receiving the request for transfer. 
 
 
 

IV. Confidentiality 

All persons assisting with the emergency transfer, (including non CoC HP’s), will keep 
confidential any information that the tenant submits in requesting an emergency transfer, 
and information about the emergency transfer, unless the tenant gives HP written 
permission to release the information on a time limited basis, or disclosure of the 
information is required by law or required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing 
regarding termination of assistance from the covered program. This specifically includes 
keeping confidential the new location of the dwelling unit of the tenant, if one is 
provided, from the person(s) that committed an act(s) of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking against the tenant.  See the Notice of 
Occupancy Rights under the Violence Against Women Act For All Tenants for more 
information about HP’s responsibility to maintain the confidentiality of information related 
to incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. 
 
To safeguard client data, HP must not allow any individual administering assistance or other 
services on behalf of HP (for example, employees and contractors) to have access to 
confidential information unless for reasons that specifically call for these individuals to have 
access to this information under applicable Federal, State, or local law. HP must not enter 
your information into any shared database or disclose your information to any other entity 
or individual. HP, however, may disclose the information provided if: 
 
1. You give written permission to HP to release the information on a time limited basis 
 
2. HP needs to use the information in an eviction or termination proceeding, such as to 

evict your abuser or perpetrator or terminate your abuser or perpetrator from assistance 
under this program 

 
3. A law requires HP or your landlord to release the information 
 
If a participant seeks the protections granted under VAWA (including, but not limited to an 
emergency transfer,) HP may, but is not required to, request in writing that the applicant or 
tenant submit documentation of the occurrence of domestic violence. If the HP requests 
such documentation, the tenant may submit any one of the following: 
 
 
 



 

 

1. The HUD-approved certification form (HUD-5382 – Appendix D, attached) that was 
provided along with the Notice of Occupancy Rights Under VAWA 

 
2. A signed Affidavit 
 
3. A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial or local law enforcement agency, court, or 

administrative agency; or 
 
4. At the discretion of a covered housing provider, a statement or other evidence provided 

by the applicant or tenant. 
 
It is at the discretion of the tenant or applicant which one of the above forms of 
documentation to submit. 
 
 

V. Emergency Transfer Timing and Availability 
 
HP cannot guarantee that a transfer request will be approved or how long it will take to 
process a transfer request.  HP will, however, act as quickly as possible to move a tenant who 
is a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking to another unit, 
subject to availability and safety of a unit.  If a tenant reasonably believes a proposed 
transfer would not be safe, the tenant may request a transfer to a different unit.  If a unit is 
available, the transferred tenant must agree to abide by the terms and conditions that govern 
occupancy in the unit to which the tenant has been transferred.  HP may be unable to 
transfer a tenant to a particular unit if the tenant has not or cannot establish eligibility for 
that unit.     
 
If HP has no safe and available units for which a tenant who needs an emergency is eligible, 
HP will assist the tenant in identifying other HP’s, or reach out to partner motel operators, 
who may have safe and available units to which the tenant could move.  It will be the tenants 
choice to select, choose or decline available housing options.  At the tenant’s request, HP will 
also assist tenants in contacting the local organizations offering assistance to victims of 
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking that are attached to this plan. 
 
Tenant transfer to a temporary safe housing location may be necessary for safety. In these 
instances, transfer may involve movement between housing types (such as moving from a 
permanent, or marketplace unit to an emergency safe house or sponsor-based facility). It is 
recommended that a housing provider make a direct referral to a Victim Service Provider for 
safe shelter or transitional housing through a domestic violence program. Immediate 
placement with a known hotel-motel provider will be used as a last resort and will be limited 
only to the time necessary to locate a more secure setting. 
 
When necessary, the HP will notify the Coordinated Entry System, Pathways to Home, to 
request an emergency transfer to another HP if possible and allow the tenant to choose if the 
proposed transfer would be safe and appropriate for their needs. Confidentiality of the 
tenant will be maintained by using a unique identifier during case conferencing.  
 
If a need to create a waitlist arises by the Victim Service Providers, priority will be given only 
to the extent necessary to facilitate transfer between housing units of the same housing type 
and to the extent that it does not violate Fair Housing regulations. 
 
 
 



 

 

VI. Safety and Security of Tenants 

 
Pending processing of the transfer and the actual transfer, if it is approved and occurs, the 
tenant is urged to take all reasonable precautions to be safe.   
 
Some cases of violence may require involvement of the Office of the Public Defender or other 
law enforcement agencies such as the Drug Enforcement Agency. In these cases, the 
responsible housing agency will assist the tenant in connecting with these external 
organizations. Information about the case continues to be governed by the terms and 
conditions described under confidentiality. 
 
Tenants who are or have been victims of domestic violence are encouraged to contact the 
National Domestic Violence Hotline at 1-800-799-7233, or a local domestic violence shelter 
(listed below in section VII), for assistance in creating a safety plan.  For persons with 
hearing impairments, that hotline can be accessed by calling 1-800-787-3224 (TTY).   
 
Tenants who have been victims of sexual assault may call the Rape, Abuse & Incest National 
Network’s National Sexual Assault Hotline at 800-656-HOPE, or visit the online hotline at 
https://ohl.rainn.org/online/.   
 
Tenants who are or have been victims of stalking seeking help may visit the National Center 
for Victims of Crime’s Stalking Resource Center at https://www.victimsofcrime.org/our-
programs/stalking-resource-center. 
 
 
VII.     Resources and Links to Services 
Local organizations offering assistance to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, 
sexual assault, or stalking include: 
 
Coalition for Family Harmony 
(Domestic Violence Shelter) 
Emergency Hotline 800-300-2181 
Office 805-983-6014 
Email: admin@thecoalition.org  
 
 
Interface Children & Family Services 
(Domestic Violence Shelter, Navigation and Supportive Services) 
Emergency Hotline 800-636-6738 
Office 805-485-6114 or 2-1-1 
Text your zip code to 898211  
 
 
Ventura County Family Justice Center 
(Restraining Orders, Court Accompaniment, Counseling)  
3170 Loma Vista Road, Ventura, CA 93003 
Call 805-652-7655 or 2-1-1 
Text 805-947-7981 
Email: vcfjc.coop@ventura.org  
 
 
 
 

mailto:admin@thecoalition.org
mailto:vcfjc.coop@ventura.org


 

 

VIII. Termination of Assistance or Denials for Service 
 
An applicant for assistance or tenant assisted under a covered HP may not be denied 
admission to, denied assistance under, terminated from participation in, or evicted from the 
housing on the basis or as a direct result of the fact that the applicant or tenant is or has 
been a victim of domestic violence if the applicant or tenant otherwise qualifies for 
admission, assistance, participation, or occupancy. A referral should be made to the Housing 
Rights Center if tenants require legal assistance for fair housing rights. 
 
A tenant in a HP may not be denied tenancy or occupancy rights solely on the basis of 
criminal activity directly relating to domestic violence if: 
 
1. The criminal activity is engaged in by a member of the household of the tenant or any 

guest or other person under the control of the tenant, and 
 
2. The tenant or an affiliated individual of the tenant is the victim or threatened victim of 

such domestic violence. 
 
An incident of actual or threatened domestic violence shall not be construed as a serious or 
repeated violation of a lease executed under a covered housing program by the victim or 
threatened victim of such incident; or good cause for terminating the assistance, tenancy, or 
occupancy rights under a covered housing program of the victim or threatened victim of 
such incident. 
 
Under this ETP, the conditions for termination of housing assistance or eviction from 
occupancy remain consistent with existing policies for any recipient, such as failure to pay 
rent. These policies consider the safety of tenants but do not permit the removal of 
assistance based on the mere fact of being a victim of violence. 
 
HP is not liable for the protection of tenants (damages, injury, harm) resulting from tenant 
refusal of safe housing, or from actions of individuals not under the direct control of HP. The 
responsibilities of agency and HP staff do not extend beyond the ordinary protections of 
clients as mandated by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Appendix A - Certification 
 

Certification of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, Sexual Assault, or Stalking, and 
Alternative Documentation (HUD Form 5382) 

 
CERTIFICATION OF          U.S. Department of Housing     OMB Approval No. 2577-
0286         
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE,       and Urban Development                               Exp. 
06/30/2017 
DATING VIOLENCE, 
SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING,                                                       
AND ALTERNATE DOCUMENTATION        
 
Purpose of Form:  The Violence Against Women Act (“VAWA”) protects applicants, 
tenants, and program participants in certain HUD programs from being evicted, denied 
housing assistance, or terminated from housing assistance based on acts of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking against them.  Despite the name of this 
law, VAWA protection is available to victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, and stalking, regardless of sex, gender identity, or sexual orientation. 

Use of This Optional Form:  If you are seeking VAWA protections from your housing 
provider, your housing provider may give you a written request that asks you to submit 
documentation about the incident or incidents of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking.   
 
In response to this request, you or someone on your behalf may complete this optional form 
and submit it to your housing provider, or you may submit one of the following types of 
third-party documentation: 
 

(1) A document signed by you and an employee, agent, or volunteer of a victim service 
provider, an attorney, or medical professional, or a mental health professional (collectively, 
“professional”) from whom you have sought assistance relating to domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking, or the effects of abuse.  The document must specify, under 
penalty of perjury, that the professional believes the incident or incidents of domestic violence, 
dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking occurred and meet the definition of “domestic 
violence,” “dating violence,” “sexual assault,” or “stalking” in HUD’s regulations at 24 CFR 
5.2003.  
 
(2) A record of a Federal, State, tribal, territorial or local law enforcement agency, court, or 
administrative agency; or 
 
(3) At the discretion of the housing provider, a statement or other evidence provided by the 
applicant or tenant. 

 
Submission of Documentation:  The time period to submit documentation is 14 
business days from the date that you receive a written request from your housing provider 
asking that you provide documentation of the occurrence of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Your housing provider may, but is not required to, 
extend the time period to submit the documentation, if you request an extension of the time 
period.  If the requested information is not received within 14 business days of when you 
received the request for the documentation, or any extension of the date provided by your 
housing provider, your housing provider does not need to grant you any of the VAWA 
protections. Distribution or issuance of this form does not serve as a written request for 
certification. 



 

 

 
 
 
Confidentiality:  All information provided to your housing provider concerning the 
incident(s) of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking shall be kept 
confidential and such details shall not be entered into any shared database.  Employees of 
your housing provider are not to have access to these details unless to grant or deny VAWA 
protections to you, and such employees may not disclose this information to any other entity 
or individual, except to the extent that disclosure is: (i) consented to by you in writing in a 
time-limited release; (ii) required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing regarding 
termination of assistance; or (iii) otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
TO BE COMPLETED BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE VICTIM OF DOMESTIC 
VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE, SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING  
 

1. Date the written request is received by victim:  
 

2. Name of victim:  
 

3. Your name (if different from victim’s):  
 

4. Name(s) of other family member(s) listed on the lease: 
 
 
 

 
5. Residence of victim(s): 

 
 
 

 
6. Name of the accused perpetrator (if known and can 

be safely disclosed): 
 

 
7. Relationship of the accused perpetrator to the 

victim: 
 

 
8. Date(s) and times(s) of incident(s) (if known):  

 
9. Location of incident(s):  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In your own words, briefly describe the incident(s):  

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________

____________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________



 

 

This is to certify that the information provided on this form is true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge and recollection, and that the individual named above in Item 2 is or has been 
a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking. I acknowledge that 
submission of false information could jeopardize program eligibility and could be the basis for 
denial of admission, termination of assistance, or eviction. 
 
Signature ______________________________Signed on (Date) 
________________ 
 
 
Public Reporting Burden:  The public reporting burden for this collection of information 
is estimated to average 1 hour per response.  This includes the time for collecting, reviewing, 
and reporting the data.  The information provided is to be used by the housing provider to 
request certification that the applicant or tenant is a victim of domestic violence, dating 
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  The information is subject to the confidentiality 
requirements of VAWA. This agency may not collect this information, and you are not 
required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid Office of Management and 
Budget control number.               

 
 

 
  



 

 

Appendix B – Emergency Transfer Plan 
 

An Emergency Transfer Request for Certain Victims of Domestic Violence, Dating Violence, 
Sexual Assault, or Stalking (HUD Form 5383) 

 
 
EMERGENCY TRANSFER     U.S. Department of Housing   OMB Approval No. 2577-
0286         
REQUEST FOR CERTAIN         and Urban Development                          Exp. 
06/30/2017 
VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC  
VIOLENCE, DATING VIOLENCE,  
SEXUAL ASSAULT, OR STALKING 
 
Purpose of Form: If you are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 
or stalking, and you are seeking an emergency transfer, you may use this form to request an 
emergency transfer and certify that you meet the requirements of eligibility for an 
emergency transfer under the Violence Against Women Act (VAWA).  Although the statutory 
name references women, VAWA rights and protections apply to all victims of domestic 
violence, dating violence, sexual assault or stalking. Using this form does not necessarily 
mean that you will receive an emergency transfer.  See your housing provider’s emergency 
transfer plan for more information about the availability of emergency transfers.    

The requirements you must meet are: 
 

(1) You are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking.  If your housing provider does not already have 
documentation that you are a victim of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking, your housing provider may ask you for such documentation.  
In response, you may submit Form HUD-5382, or any one of the other types of 
documentation listed on that Form. 
 
(2) You expressly request the emergency transfer.  Submission of this form 
confirms that you have expressly requested a transfer.  Your housing provider may 
choose to require that you submit this form, or may accept another written or oral 
request.  Please see your housing provider’s emergency transfer plan for more 
details. 
 
(3) You reasonably believe you are threatened with imminent harm 
from further violence if you remain in your current unit.  This means you 
have a reason to fear that if you do not receive a transfer you would suffer violence 
in the very near future.   
 
OR 
 
You are a victim of sexual assault and the assault occurred on the 
premises during the 90-calendar-day period before you request a 
transfer.  If you are a victim of sexual assault, then in addition to qualifying for 
an emergency transfer because you reasonably believe you are threatened with 
imminent harm from further violence if you remain in your unit, you may qualify 
for an emergency transfer if the sexual assault occurred on the premises of the 
property from which you are seeking your transfer, and that assault happened 



 

 

within the 90-calendar-day period before you submit this form or otherwise 
expressly request the transfer.      

 
Submission of Documentation:  If you have third-party documentation that 
demonstrates why you are eligible for an emergency transfer, you should submit that 
documentation to your housing provider if it is safe for you to do so.  Examples of third party 
documentation include, but are not limited to: a letter or other documentation from a victim 
service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health 
provider, or other professional from whom you have sought assistance; a current restraining 
order; a recent court order or other court records; a law enforcement report or records; 
communication records from the perpetrator of the violence or family members or friends of 
the perpetrator of the violence, including emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media 
posts. 
 
Confidentiality:  All information provided to your housing provider concerning the 
incident(s) of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, and concerning 
your request for an emergency transfer shall be kept confidential.  Such details shall not be 
entered into any shared database.  Employees of your housing provider are not to have 
access to these details unless to grant or deny VAWA protections or an emergency transfer to 
you.  Such employees may not disclose this information to any other entity or individual, 
except to the extent that disclosure is: (i) consented to by you in writing in a time-limited 
release; (ii) required for use in an eviction proceeding or hearing regarding termination of 
assistance; or (iii) otherwise required by applicable law.   
 
TO BE COMPLETED BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE PERSON REQUESTING A TRANSFER  

 
1. Name of victim requesting an emergency transfer:  

 
 

2. Your name (if different from victim’s)  
 
 

3. Name(s) of other family member(s) listed on the 
lease: 

 
 
 

 
4. Name(s) of other family member(s) who would 

transfer with the victim: 
 
 
 

 
 

5. Address of location from which the victim seeks 
to transfer: 

 
 
 
 

 
6. Address or phone number for contacting the 

victim: 
 
 
 

 
7. Name of the accused perpetrator (if known and 

can be safely disclosed): 
 
 



 

 

 
 

8. Relationship of the accused perpetrator to the 
victim: 

 

 
9. Date(s), Time(s) and location(s) of incident(s):  

 
 
 

 
10.  Is the person requesting the transfer a victim of a sexual assault that 
occurred in the past 90 days on the premises of the property from which the 
victim is seeking a transfer? If yes, skip question 11. If no, fill out question 11. 
 
11.  Describe why the victim believes they are threatened with imminent harm 
from further violence if they remain in their current unit.   
 
 
 
 
 
12.  If voluntarily provided, list any third-party documentation you are 
providing along with this notice:  
 
 
 
 
This is to certify that the information provided on this form is true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge, and that the individual named above in Item 1 meets the requirement laid out 
on this form for an emergency transfer.  I acknowledge that submission of false information 
could jeopardize program eligibility and could be the basis for denial of admission, 
termination of assistance, or eviction.  
 
 
Signature ____________________________Signed on (Date) _____________ 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda - September 11, 2024 VC CoC Board
	Item 5 - Minutes - August 26, 2024 VC CoC Board
	Item 6 - Authorization for CoC Staff to Release and Submit the HUD COC Builds NOFO
	Item 6a- 2024 HUD CoC Builds RFP_Draft
	Item 6b- 2024 HUD COC Builds NOFO Application_Draft
	Item 7 - Authorization for the CoC to contract with SimTech Solutions for the 2025 Homeless PIT Count
	Item 7a- Ventura County Point in Time Software Licensing and Professional Services Agreement 2025_Draft
	Item 8-  Approval of the 2024 VC CoC Written Standards
	Item 8a-VC CoC Policies and Procedures_Draft 9.5.24



